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hat an opening - enjoyed
by thousands of locals!

After 40 years apart, on 14 October 2019
Council consolidated all indoor activities
into Payinthi, our wonderful new civic
centre. Extraordinarily however, barely five
months later, it was largely closed to the
public, in line with the broader COVID-19
restrictions that swept the nation.

Pleasingly, the buzz that accompanied
the advent of the new facility flowed into
our response to the COVID-19 global
pandemic. Staff reinvented their roles,
redoubled their efforts and innovated to
not just continue serving the community,
but to step up and increase services in
many areas of need.

Packaging and delivering library books,
initiating regular telephone contact with
our elderly, taking Rhyme Time online,
podcasting Story Time, escalating public
health education, offering rate relief to
badly affected businesses, and providing
4,400 free meal vouchers to help keep our
hospitality sector alive.

These and many other initiatives were
seamlessly delivered alongside unabated
service levels in a range of areas such

as development assessment and public
health inspections, through to outdoor
maintenance and projects.

Elected Members met safely online,
determined to ensure we left no stone
unturned in our efforts to protect our
community’s health, both physically and
economically. We were delighted to be
supported by such a willing and innovative
cohort of staff, inspired by the leadership
of our new CEO, Nigel McBride.

In addition to our COVID-19 response from
March 2020, it was certainly a busy and
achievement packed year in total.

Our largest project completion was the
final stage of the Prospect Road upgrade
north of Regency Road, with powerlines
placed underground, infrastructure
renewed and landscaping installed -
beautifying a part of our city that has
languished far too long.

Other project completions included:

* Charles Cane Reserve / Parndo Yerta
Public Toilet and Change Rooms
Upgrade; and

* Stage one of the Collinswood Shops
Precinct Upgrade.

To guide future investment at a precinct
level, master plans were advanced for:

e Prospect Oval / Payinthi yarta at the
initiation of the North Adelaide Football
Club and Prospect District Cricket Club;
and
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* Broadview Sports & Recreation Precinct
/ Yarnta Tutu yarta, which was revisited
in consultation with key stakeholders
ahead of broader public consultation in
the new financial year.

Demonstrating the value of having master
plans and designs to hand, Council was
fortunate to win grant funding for the
following, for implementation next year:

« $750,000 Churchill Road Master Plan
(Stage 3 of 3);

« $218,500 Prospect Gardens / Narnu
Wirra Redevelopment; and

« $350,000 Broadview Oval / Yarnta
Tutu yarta Dog Park and Playspace
Upgrade.

Alongside projects, our stewardship of
Council’s assets and services continued,
with resurfacing of nearly 7000m2 of
roads, including Mawson Street, Murray
Street, Rolfe Street and Second Avenue.

We also co-signed Australia’s first Circular
Procurement Pilot Project to commit
Council to purchasing products made
from recycled plastics, sourced from our
kerbside collection.

A partnership approach was again
adopted this year to stimulate further
projects through our Community Facility
Upgrade Grants program. Many local
clubs received grants to help fund
upgrades or replacement of dated
facilities.

Never idle, our Business and Innovation
team excelled during the COVID-19
restrictions, increasing training support

by switching it to online, establishing a
comprehensive business support package,
reducing or eliminating fees, rebating
rates, and engineering the very successful
Prospect Delivers meal voucher program,
which saved many local cafes and
restaurants.

In addition we launched our inaugural

Prospect Innovation Awards in June 2019
at Prospect Palace Nova with four local
applicants receiving a total of $12,500 in
grants. The four winners were:

 Enee Solutions - Start Up Award
* The Physio Clinic - SME Award
 1UP Digital - SME Award

» Blackfriars Priory School - Education
Award

Confirmation our Smart City strategy is on
the right track was received in the form of
international and national recognition with
the City winning two Smart City awards:

* Top 21 Intelligent Community Forum
Smartest Cities in the World; and

* National Built Environment Award for
Connected Cities network, from the
Australian Smart Cities Council.

In September 2019 City of Prospect
established the Prospect Property
Network group to work with the
property sector to promote the benefits
of development in the Council area. To
guide our promotion activities, Council
developed a Strategic Sites Program
and guidelines in April 2020, and a
more targeted French Quarter Plan -

to capitalise on the increase in French
residents attracted to SA to work on the
submarine program.

City of Prospect’s 2020 Citizen of the
Year Awards were presented at the 2020
Tourrific Prospect Street Party to the
following very worthy recipients:

* Robert Roocke was awarded the City
of Prospect’s 2020 Citizen of the Year
Award.

e Dual recipients for the Young Citizen
of the Year, Charlotte Crosby and Max
Weir.

* Broadview Football Club for the 2020
Community Event of the Year for taking




a lead role in collaborating with three
other amateur league clubs to arrange
a “Community Day at the Footy” in
August 2019.

Many locals volunteer their time to help
others. It is a welcome generosity of spirit
which we again recognised this year via
the Community Service 2020 Awards,
awarding certificates to:

* Prospect District Cricket Club
 Rotary Club of Prospect

» Australian Plangon (Antique & Modern
Doll Collectors) Club Inc.

* Prospect Community Early Education
and Care

* Dennis Righey

* Lesley Attema

* Derek Williamson
* Hanni Howe

» Wendy Stephens
* Lynn Hughes

* David Johnston

* Nola Bellenger

Prospect Gallery, SA’s first purpose-built
community gallery, held its last exhibition
at the Thomas Street Centre in August
2019 after being open since 1988.

Also making history, Council resolved to
open the new gallery at Payinthi under

a new name. The official opening of
Newmarch Gallery was on Thursday 5
December 2019 and served as the opening
of the 10th Prospect Portrait Prize in
Payinthi. Ann Newmarch is the City’s
greatest living artist and was particularly
honoured by Council’s recognition of the
calibre and impact of her life’s work.

Prospect Spring Fair was held on Saturday
26 October 2019 at Broadview Oval /
Yarnta Tutu yarta for the third consecutive
year. Its success has led to Council
determining to make Broadview Oval its
permanent home.

The Tourrific Prospect street party was
again held in January 2020, attracting
nearly 17,000 patrons. Tours of the new
Payinthi facilities were a highlight with
thousands taking the opportunity for a
tour.

The 25th Twilight Sessions at Prospect
Memorial Gardens were once again a
success, presenting four nights of live
music and entertainment throughout
February within the very picturesque
Memorial Gardens precinct.

Prior to the advent of restrictions the
popular Club5082 ran sold out shows with
a particular highlight being the induction
of GANGgajang into the South Australian
Music Hall of Fame. An incredible night,
packed with longtime fans and new
devotees. We were honoured to be chosen
to host the event, not least because band
member Geoffrey Stapleton is a long term
resident of our city.

Financially, this year Council either
achieved or exceeded all of its Key
Financial Indicators. The focus of
2019/2020 budget was on the
continuation of the replacement and
renewal of existing infrastructure assets,
while completing the construction of
Payinthi - Council’s largest ever project.

Council achieved 2 out of 3 key financial
indicators targets set out in its Annual
Business Plan and surpassed the third.
Indicators continue to be on track with the
target ranges identified in the Long Term
Financial Plan, reflecting positively on the
work of staff and Council Members during
2019/2020.

Council presented an operating deficit for
the 2019/2020 year of approximately $11k.

In 2019/2020 approximately $8.95m
was spent on capital expenditure. $5.9m
of this was spent in the rejuvenation or
replacement of long term assets.




We recognise these results would not be
possible without the assistance of State
and Federal Government recurrent grants
which account for approximately 7% of
our revenue. Without these annual grants
local ratepayers would have to fill the gap
by paying higher rates, or decide which
of our valuable services would be cut - an
unenviable task.

In summary, a year of significant challenge
and extraordinary achievement. The
opening of Payinthi, our COVID-19
response, the very positive attitude

our team applied to stepping up to the
challenges, rather than stepping back, and
in maintaining services elsewhere confirms
we have a great team and leadership. Our
financial results confirm our approach to
stewardship is sustainable and robust,
perfectly positioning us to face the new,
uncertain year.

Mayor David O’Loughlin







Mayor

MAYOR DAVID O’LOUGHLIN

0408 598 863
david.oloughlin@prospect.sa.gov.au

North Ward

CR THUY NGUYEN

0413 499 109
thuy.nguyen@prospect.sa.gov.au

CR ROBIN PEARCE

0407 244 772
robin.pearce@prospect.sa.gov.au

Central Ward

CR MARK GROOTE

0401 717 491
mark.groote@prospect.sa.gov.au

CR ALISON DE BACKER

0423144170
alison.debacker@prospect.sa.gov.au

West Ward

CR KRISTINA BARNETT

0408 822 923
kristina.barnett@prospect.sa.gov.au

CR MATT LARWOOD
(DEPUTY MAYOR)

0458 019 994
matt.larwood@prospect.sa.gov.au

East Ward

CR ALLEN HARRIS

0419 324 397
allen.harris@prospect.sa.gov.au

CR STEVEN RYPP

0403 772 851
steven.rypp@prospect.sa.gov.au
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North Ward

Central Ward

North Ward - Prospect

East Ward - Nailsworth, Collinswod, Broadview, Sefton Park

Central Ward - Prospect, Nailsworth, Thorngate, Medindie Gardens

West Ward - Fitzroy, Ovingham, Prospect
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The following table compares the City of Prospect’s representation quota with that of
other councils of a similar size and type. The quota is derived by dividing the total num-
ber of electors for each council by the number of Council Members. The average for
these councils (based on the Representation Quota column below) is 1,696.

Council Number of Number of Council Ratio
Electors Members

Walkerville 5,720 9 1:635

Prospect 14,825 9 1:1,647

Norwood, Payneham & St Peters 25,334 14 11,810

Unley 27,247 13 1:2095

Adelaide 27,533 12 1:2,294

Source: Electoral Commission of SA (ECSA), current as at 28 February 2020

The legislation specifies that if a council is divided into wards, then the number of elec-
tors in each ward must fall within a ward quota so that there is fair representation on
Council.

The Office of the Minister for Local Government have provided notification of the
schedule for representation reviews to be completed by all South Australian councils.
City of Prospect must undertake its review in the upcoming year starting October 2020
and ending October 2021.

Section 74 of the Local Government Act 1999 (the Act) requires that the Remuneration
Tribunal determine, on a four yearly basis, allowances for all South Australian councils.

Prospect is classified as a Group Two Council (there are six groups all together).

The Local Government Act provides that Council Member allowances must be adjusted
in accordance with the Consumer Price Index. Following the determination, the allow-
ance was adjusted in accordance with the Consumer Price Index on the first anniversary
of the periodic election.

The allowances came into operation following the November 2018 Council elections,
and were adjusted on the 9 November 2019:

Prescribed Allowance 2018/19 2019/20
Mayor $69,080 $71,648
Deputy Mayor $21,587 $22,390

Council Member $17,270 $17,.912




Payments for 2019/2020

Name Council Member Allowance Council Member Allowance Paid
Entitlement’

Mayor O’Loughlin’ $71,006 $65,035
Cr Nguyen $17,751 $17,751
Cr Pearce $17,757 $17,751
Cr Barnett $17,751 $17,751
Cr Larwood $22,186 $22,189
Cr Groote $17,751 $17,751
Cr De Backer $17,751 $17,751
Cr Harris $17,751 $17,751
Cr Rypp $17,751 $17,751

1 The Mayor’s entitlement is paid on a monthly basis. The final payment for the 2019/2020 financial year was received on the 1 July 2020, and is

therefore not included in the final amount paid.

In accordance with City of Prospect’s Council Member Conferences, Education &
Development Policy, the Council Members were provided the opportunity to undertake
training and development activities during 2019/2020 as per the table below:

Name

Date Details

Cr Robin Pearce

18 October 2019

2019 Planning, Development & Environment
Master Class

Cr Robin Pearce

23-25 October 2019

International Cities, Town Centres &
Communities Conference 2019 (Townsville)

Mayor David O’Loughlin

10-11 November 2019

Mainstreet SA State Conference and AGM
(Adelaide)

Cr Thuy Nguyen
Cr Alison De Backer

13 November 2019

Public Speaking for Council Members

Cr Kristina Barnett
Cr Alison De Backer

5 December 2019

PLANET 2019 - Balancing Heritage
Conservation and Development Opportunity
(Adelaide)

Cr Thuy Nguyen

February 2020
(online)

Council Member Mandatory Training Module 3

Cr Kristina Barnett

17 February 2020

Leadership Skills Development - ‘Strategic
Development’

Mayor David O’Loughlin

25 May 2020

FACCI Webinar Economic Outlook Briefing
(Video Conferencing)




Ordinary Meetings of Council are held on the fourth Tuesday of the month starting at
7:00pm. Councillor Information and Workshop Sessions are held on an as-required
basis (as determined by the Chief Executive Officer), with a preference for them
being on a Tuesday evening commencing at 6.15pm.

Meetings attended by Council Members 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020
Council | Councillor Audit Strategic Council CEO
Information | Committee |Planning & Assessment | Performance
Workshop Development Panel (CAP) | Review
Policy Committee
Committee
Total Meetings 13 18 4 2 13 3
Mayor D 12 14 3 2 - 3
O’Loughlin
Cr Barnett 12 17 - 2 - -
Cr Larwood 13 14 - - - 3
Cr Groote 12 13 - 1 - 3
Cr De Backer 12 15 - 1 4* 3
Cr Harris n 16 - - - -
Cr Nguyen 13 17 - 1 - -
Cr Pearce 12 17 - - 8** -
Cr Rypp 13 17 4 - - 3

* Cr A De Backer held membership on CAP for the period of July 2019 to January 2020.

** Cr R Pearce was the Deputy Elected Member on CAP from November 2019 and the Elected Member Position from February 2020

The Council Assessment Panel (CAP) is a body established by Council under

the provisions of the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 for the
assessment and determination of development applications, including those where
representations from the public will be heard. The CAP also provides comments to
the State Planning Commission on applications to be determined by the Commission
and considers compromise proposals on appeals before the Environment, Resources
and Development Court.

Meetings of the Council Assessment Panel are held on the second Monday of each
month, commencing at 5:30pm.

The sitting fees for the Independent Members were increased to $475 in November
2019.




Council Assessment Panel Independent Members Allowances for the period July to
October 2019

Council Assessment Panel Independent Members Allowances paid

Sitting Fees per meeting Allowances paid July to October 2019
Presiding Member $550 Mr David Cooke (Presiding) $1,650
Independent Member $450 Mr Sam Green $1,800
Independent Member $450 Mr Julian Rutt $1,900
Independent Member $450 Mr Robert Gagetti $1,350
Deputy Member $450 Mr Ruan Perera $1,350

Council Assessment Panel Independent Members Allowances for the period October
2019 to June 2020

Council Assessment Panel Independent Member Allowances

Sitting Fees per meeting Allowances paid October 2019 to June 2020
Presiding Member $550 Mr Donato Donaldson (Presiding) $4,675
Member $475 Mr David Cooke $4,037.50
Member $475 Mr Ruan Perera $3,325
Member $475 Mr Robert Gagetti $4037.50
Deputy Member $475 Mr Julian Rutt $475

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is established to oversee risk management and audit initiatives
of council activities and to act as a source of advice to the Council and Chief
Executive Officer in relation to these matters. The Committee are expected to meet
at a minimum of four times per year.

Audit Committee Independent Member Allowances

Sitting Fees per meeting Allowances paid 2019/2020

Presiding Member $500 Ms Corinne Garrett (Presiding) $1,500
Member $400 Mr David Moffatt (until March 2020) | $1,300
Member $400 Mr Peter Fairlie-Jones $1,200
Member $400 Mr Peter Scargill (from April 2020) $400




City of Prospect operates within the framework of the Local Government Act 1999,
and the elected body may delegate authority to the Chief Executive Officer in
accordance with legislative requirements and the corporate structure.

e

e

e
ol
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Nigel McBride
Chief Executive Officer (from 14 October
2019)

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for the overall administration of the
Council and the employment and
management of all staff. The CEO is

also the Work Health Safety responsible
officer. He reports to Council and often
acts as Council’s delegate across a range
of its powers and responsibilities.

Ginny Moon
Director Corporate Services

The Director of Corporate Services is
responsible for ensuring the provision of
high level systems and services within
Corporate Management, Corporate
Governance (Delegations, Policy, and
Elections), Civic Governance (Council
Members, Council Meetings and
Workshops), Information Technology,
Information Management, Risk
Management, Work Health & Safety,
Human Resource Management, Customer
Service, Financial Services and Rates
Administration.

Nathan Cunningham
Director Community & Planning

The Director of Community & Planning

is responsible for a broad portfolio
covering Community Development, Aged
and Youth Programs, as well as Public
Art and programming the Newmarch
Gallery. These programs and services

are delivered together with city-wide
Events, Library services, Digital literacy
programs as well as Planning and Urban
Development throughout the City.

Simon Bradley
Director Infrastructure & Environment

The Director of Infrastructure and
Environment is responsible for Public
Realm Placemaking, City Maintenance,
Asset Management, Stormwater
Management, Traffic Management,
Contract Management, Capital Works
Programming, Parks and Gardens, Open
Space Management, Fleet Management,
Community Land and Property
Management, Waste Management,
Environmental Management and
Community Safety.

Chris Hannaford
Director Business & Innovation

The Director of Business and Innovation is
responsible for Economic Development,
Investment Attraction, Business Relations,
Village Heart Marketing Fund, GigCity,
External Funding Policy, Strategic
Economic Planning, and Communications,
including Media Relations, “Your Prospect’
Magazine, Branding, and Social Media.




Council maintains a policy of retaining a
balance of trained and engaged Council
employees and the use of contractors

for specialised projects and services. In
doing so, Council can ensure that projects
are carried out using the specialist
equipment and skills of contractors whilst
retaining a core in-house workforce that
can respond quickly and efficiently to
localised issues and concerns.

Council supports a diversity of
employment types including full-time,
part-time, role sharing, fixed-term
contract and casual employees, with
casual staff working predominantly in
customer facing roles that can deliver
services over seven days, peaking during
seasonal and high demand periods.

Employees range in age from 20 years
through to 68 years, holding job obtained
skills or qualifications at all levels,

from Certificate level through to Post
Graduate.

Employees are engaged under the South
Australian Municipal Salaried Officers
Award and the Local Government

Employees Award. Service delivery
standards and employment conditions
are enhanced through the enterprise
bargaining process, which involves
negotiation between Council employees
and management.

In addition, training is provided to Council
employees during the year to ensure they
are equipped with the knowledge and
skills required to service the community
efficiently.

Council experienced moderate employee
turnover during 2019/2020, with four
employees leaving the organisation

to pursue other promotional or career
opportunities and one employee retiring.

Council continues to develop strategies
to attract and retain quality employees.
Council seeks to balance the inevitable
employee turnover generated by the
tight labour market with core employees
who have dedicated significant periods of
their working life to serving the residents
and community organisations within
Prospect.

The tables below summarise the
age profile and length of service of

Age of Workforce Male Female Total

18-29 4 5 9

30-39 7 13 20

40-49 12 12 24

50-59 14 14 28

60+ 7 2 9

Total Employees 44 46 90

Length of Service | 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020
Oto5 34 40 34 33 32
5to10 33 29 26 25 26
10 to 15 9 14 19 18 20
15 to 20 4 6 7 4 4
20+ 5 5 7 8
Total 85 94 92 87 90




employees with City of Prospect as at 30
June 2020.

The Council employs staff across a range
of job roles, including:

* Management

* Administration

* Planning and Building

* Library Services

* Information Technology
 Work Health & Safety

* Horticulture & Civil

» Services

* Engineering

* Economic

* Development

« Community Services

* Arts

 Events

* Environmental Planning &
Management

Council seeks to ensure that rates are
applied fairly across the community

After Council has established what
services will be provided and how much
those services are expected to cost, it
then works out how much money will
be collected from various sources, and
how much it needs to collect from the
community in the form of rates.

Providing and maintaining services and
facilities costs money. Council must raise
sufficient funds and does this by charging
a rate on property.

While Council receives some money from
other sources such as grants and fees,
the largest portion (approximately 89%)
of the money that Council requires comes
from rate payers.

Rating Strategy

Before Council can set its rates each

financial year, it must review its Rating
Strategy to assess if strategy positions
previously taken need to be amended.

The Rating Strategy is a broad statement
by the Council of the approach that it will
take in determining rates and the reasons
for this approach. This process helps to
ensure accountability to the community.

The Rating Strategy for 2019/2020 was
adopted by Council on 25 June 2019
along with Council’s Annual Business
Plan. It took into account:

* Valuations set by the Valuer-General

» City of Prospect Strategic Plan to
2020

* Council’s Treasury Management Policy

* |nflation rates, Consumer Price Index
(CPD) and Local Government Price
Index (LGPI)

* The effect of rates on local business
« Employment rates

* Interest rates

 Council’s borrowings

* Legislative changes

* Any financial change imposed by
legislation

* Physical infrastructure requirements

* Environmental impacts and
opportunities

* |Income from fees and charges

* Income from grants

* Income from other sources

Council works hard to ensure rates are
kept to a responsible level, consistent

with meeting the needs and demands

of the local community in maintaining
infrastructure and providing services.

Council also seeks to ensure that rates
are applied fairly across the community.

In 2019/2020, the total revenue raised
from rates increased by 4.47%. This




increase was made up of average
residential rate increases of 3.33%

plus growth of 1.14%. Local residential
property valuations increased by an
average of 7.22% from the previous year.

Land Use & Locality

Council has chosen to have four different
rates depending on the type of land use
and location within the development
plan. One for residential, one for non-
residential (including commercial shops,
offices, light industry etc), one for
vacant land located in the residential
development zone and one for vacant
land not in the residential development
zone (non-residential).

Minimum Rate

Council considers it appropriate that all
rateable properties make a contribution
to the basic services provided for all rate
payers by way of a minimum rate. The
minimum rate was increased from $1,200
to $1,239 for the 2019/2020 financial year.

Payments

Council rates can be paid through a
variety of methods:

« EFTPOS
 Telephone
* Internet

* Direct Debit

* Australia Post
« BPay

« Cheque

« Cash

Every $100 spent by Council

Service $
Waste Management $8.12
Sanitation $0.21
Community Arts, Events & Gallery $4.35
Library $3.98
Community Wellbeing & $13.27
Development

Street Trees, Nature Strips, Parks $1.86
& Landscapes

Stormwater Drainage $1.02
Business & Economic Development | $2.24
Street Lighting $1.66
Public Health & Safety $1.35
Streets & Footpaths $9.97
Traffic Management $1.27
City Planning & Development $3.28
Fleet & Depot Operations $9.03
Governance & Administration $10.83
Information Technology $5.51
Rates Administration $3.16
Financial Management $2.41
(includes NRM Levy)

Reserves & Loans $9.84
Sports, Recreation & Playgrounds $5.58
Communication $1.06




Valuation

A capital value is assessed for each property and is used by Council for calculating

rates.

The capital value is provided each year by the Valuer-General. The table shows the
trend of capital valuation for City of Prospect over the last few years.

(Non-residential)

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20
Valuation of the $4,783 $4,877 $4,962 $5,205 $5,629 $5,981 $6,280
City (Million)
Minimum Rate $980 $1,050 $1,090 $1,118 $1,160 $1,200 $1,239
Residential Rate 0.314506 | 0.321690 | 0.322342 | 0.319577 | 0.303805 | 0.306640 | 0.298080
(in dollar)
Non-residential rate [ 0.609000 | 0.658500 | 0.683288 | 0.654307 | 0.637904 | 0.631026 | 0.592218
(in dollar)
Average Residential $1,531 $1,605 $1,683 $1,732 $1,780 $1,839 $1,899
Rate
Vacant Land Rate 0.393132 | 0.402112 | 0.402927 | 0.399471 | 0.379756 | 0.383300 | 0.372600
Vacant Land Rate 0.761250 | 0.823125 | 0.854110 | 0.817884 | 0.797380 | 0.788783 | 0.740273

Mandatory Rebates

During the 2019/2020 financial year, 143 properties were granted mandatory rebates

as follows:
No. of Rebates Reason Value of Rebate
1 Cemetaries $8721.81
N2 Community Services $149,674.83
10 Education $148,767.22
20 Religious $147,206.93
Total 135 $454,370.79

Discretionary Rebates

Eight applications for discretionary rebates were approved by Council during the
2019/2020 financial year.

No. of Rebates

Reason

Value of Rebate

3 Community Services $8,781.95
5 Separate Rate $750
Total 8 $9,531.95




Separate Rate - Village Heart Marketing
Fund

From 2017-2018, Council has managed
a new fund for the marketing and
promotion of the Prospect Road Village
Heart. This fund is provided to finance
activities as directed by the Prospect
Road Main Street Association.

Funding is achieved through a separate
rate applied to each non-residential
business or tenancy within the Prospect
Road High Street Development Zone. For
2019/2020, the zone was extended to the
South, up to Buller Street and Ballville
Street. Each business was billed a fixed
contribution of $150 annually, with a
rebate available to ensure that this is only
paid once per business per year. Council
waived the 4th Quarter instalment of

this separate rate ($37.50) as part of the
COVID-19 financial support package.

National Competition Policy - Clause 7
Statement Reporting

The National Competition Policy was last
revised in July 2002 and applies to all
Local

Government authorities in South
Australia, including City of Prospect. The
Policy aims to:

» Develop an open and integrated
Australian market for goods and
services by removing unnecessary
barriers to trade and competition;

* Ensure no buyer or seller in a market
is able to engage in anti-competitive
conduct against the public interest;

* As far as possible, apply the same
rules of market conduct to all market
participants, regardless of the form
of business ownership - that is
government business activities should
not enjoy any net advantages solely as

a result of their public ownership, and

* Ensure that regulation of business
activities that restrict competition is
subject to an assessment of the likely
costs and benefits.

National Competition Policy does not
mean competition at any cost, however
competitive neutrality is one of the key
principles of the Policy. The principle is
based on the concept of a level playing
field for people competing for business
and relates to situations where there is,
or the potential for, competition between
the private and public sectors.

Councils are required to identify any
significant business activities that it
undertakes in either Category One
(annual revenue in excess of $2m or
employing assets in excess of $20m)
or Category Two (all other significant
business activities).

Council continued to be a member of the
Eastern Health Authority Incorporated
and Eastern Waste Management
Authority (East Waste), and both
businesses operate with activity of
interest with respect to the National
Competition Policy.

Both the Eastern Health Authority and
Eastern Waste Management Authority
may be categorised as conducting
significant business activity for Category
One under the principles of the National
Competition Policy. There are no business
activities falling under Category Two

to which the principles of Competitive
Neutrality are to be applied.

City of Prospect has not received any
complaints in relation to its application of
competitive neutrality or the principles of
the National Competition Policy during
2019/2020.




Council By-Laws

Council’s By-Laws underwent a review

in the last quarter of 2015, thereafter
published in the SA Government Gazette
on 24 December 2015.

The following By-Laws remain effective
from 3 January 2016:

* Permits and Penalties

* Moveable Signs

* Local Government Land

* Roads

* Dogs

* Waste Management

List of Codes of Conduct / Practice

During 2019/2020 Council maintained the
following Codes of Conduct / Practice as
required under the Local Government Act
1999 and Local Government (Elections)
Act 1999.

* Code of Practice - Meeting Procedures
for Meetings of Council and Council
Standing Committees

 Code of Practice for Access to
Meetings and Documents

« Complaints Handling Procedure under
the Code of Conduct for Council
Members

These documents may be found on
Council’s website or from Council’s Office
(during business hours) throughout the
year.

List of Registers

Council maintained the following
registers throughout the year as required
by the Local Government Act 1999 or the
Local Government (Elections) Act 1999:

* Council Member Allowances and
Benefits Register

»  Council Member Gifts and Benefits
Register

* Council Member Register of Interests
(extract)

 Delegations Register

* Fees and Charges Register

* Register of By-Laws

* Register of Community Land

* Register of Public Roads

* Salaries Register

» Staff Gift and Benefit Register

* Prescribed Officer Register of Interests

Please note that the Prescribed Officer
Register of Interests is not available for
public viewing.




The Freedom of Information Act 1991 (the FOI Act) gives you the right to request
access to documents held by Council and plays a vital role in the overall transparency
of government.

To meet the requirements of Section 9(1a) of the FOI Act, Council is required to
publish an Information Statement. The purpose of the Information Statement is to
provide the public with an overview of information held by Council and details how
to access the information. The Information Statement will be updated annually and
published on Council’s website.

Information Requests

During the 2019/2020 financial year, Council received a total of 10 requests for
information under the provisions of the FOI Act.

Freedom of Information application forms, as well as details of applicable processing
fees and conditions, can be obtained from Council’s website www.prospect.sa.gov.au
or alternatively from Customer Service.

All applications should be submitted in writing and forwarded with the application
fee to:

The FOI Officer
City of Prospect
PO Box 171
Prospect SA 5082




In accordance with Section 90(1) of the Local Government Act 1999 all Council
and Committee Meetings were conducted in a place open to the public. On every

occasion that Section 90(2) of the Act was applied to exclude the public, the minutes

included the proceedings for making a confidentiality order and the grounds on
which the order was made.

During the 2019/2020 financial year, the confidentiality provisions of the Act were

used by Council a total of eight times to consider matters in confidence.

Council adopted 217 resolutions on a broad range of issues during this period.

Matters considered ‘in confidence’ therefore represents an estimated 3.6% of the total

matters considered.

Orders made under Section 90(2) of the Local Government Act 1999 for 2019/2020

Prospect

Date of Subject Reason
Meeting (Section
90(3))
24/9/2019 |Item 19.1 CEO Recruitment Process and Appointment (a)
17/12/2019 |Item 18.1 Recycling Legal Matter (h)
28/1/2020 |ltem 16.1 Appointment of East Waste Independent Chair (a)
24/3/2020 |ltem 16.1 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, (b)
Prospect
24/3/2020 |ltem 16.2 Chief Executive Officer Performance Development (a)
Review Committee Meeting Minutes
28/4/2020 |Item 16.1 Community Service Awards 2020 (@
26/5/2020 |Iltem 16.1 CEO Performance Development Review Committee (a)
23/6/2020 |ltem 16.1 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, (b)

Orders made under Section 91(7) of the Local Government Act 1999 for 2019/2020

Prospect

Date of Subject Reason
Meeting (Section
90(3))
24/9/2019 ltem 19.1 CEO Recruitment Process and Appointment @
17/12/2019 Iltem 18.1 Recycling Legal Matter (h)
28/1/2020 ltem 16.1 Appointment of East Waste Independent chair (a)
24/3/2020 I[tem 16.1 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, (b
Prospect
24/3/2020 Iltem 16.2 Chief Executive Officer Performance Development (a)
Review Committee Meeting Minutes
28/4/2020 |lItem 16.1 Community Service Awards a)
26/5/2020 Item 16.1 CEO Performance Development Review Committee (a)
23/6/2020 [tem 16.1 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, | (b)




Orders made under 91(7) that expired, ceased or were revoked during 2019/2020
One Confidential Item was released during the 2019/2020 financial year.

Date of Subject Reason Date
Meeting (Section 90(3)) | Released
17/12/2019 [tem 18.2 Australia Day Citizen of the Year ) 31/1/2020
Awards 2020 Minutes and Council Report
33 Items remain in confidence as at 30 June 2020.
Date of Item Title and Description Nature of
Original Confidentiality
Order under LG Act
25/10/2005 ltem 21.4 Supplementary Report - Supported Residential Facility - | 90(3)(a)
Proposed cancellation of licence for Emily Grove 90(3)(d)
90(3)(h)
22/2/201 Unauthorised removal of six significant trees at 252 Churchill Road, | 90(3)(h)
Prospect
19/4/2011 Unauthorised removal of six significant trees at 252 Churchill Road | 90(3)(h)
21/2/2012 ltem 3.2 Settlement Proposal for removal of six significant trees - 90(3)(f)
252 CHR - Consideration of Proposal 90(3)(h)
13/3/2012 ltem 3.2 Settlement Proposal for removal of six significant trees - 90(3)(f)
252 CHR - Consideration of Proposal 90(3)(h)
13/3/2012 ltem 3.4 Revised Settlement Proposal for removal of six significant | 90(3)(f)
trees - 252 CHR - Consideration of Proposal 90(3)(h)
15/5/2012 ltem 3.2 Removal of six significant trees - 252 CHR - Consideration | 90(3)(f)
of Proposal 90(3)(h)
27/1/2012 Iltem 25.4 Rates Outstanding Report 90(3)(a)
25/3/2014 ltem 24.4 Digital Economy Strategy: 2014-2018 - Commercial 90(3)(b)
Information
26/6/2017 ltem 23.1 Eastern Waste Management Authority Membership 90(3)(b)
28/2/2017 ltem 23.2 Recommendation for Award of Waste Contract 90(3)(d)
90(3)(h)
90(3)(k)
27/4/2017 Item 14.1 Award of Waste Contract 90(3)(d)
90(3)(h)
90(3)(k)
9/5/2017 Item 4.1 Award of Waste Contract - Commercial Information and 90(3)(d)
Tender 90(3) (h)
90(3)(k)
5/9/2017 Item 3.1 Selection of Architects for the Community Hub, Library 90(3)(d)
and Innovation
12/9/2017 Iltem 3.1 Selection of Architects for the Community Hub, Library 90(3)(d)
and Innovation Centre Project
26/9/2017 Iltem 23.1 Sale of 132-134 Prospect Road, Prospect 90(3)(d)
19/12/2017 Iltem 18.2 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, 90(3)(b)

Prospect




6/2/2018 ltem 3.1 Appointment of Managing Contractor for the construction | 90(3)(d)
of the Community, Library and Innovation Centre
6/2/2018 ltem 3.2 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, 90(3)(b)
Prospect
13/2/2018 ltem 3.1 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, 90(3)(b)
Prospect
27/2/2018 ltem 18.1 Waste Disposal Contract 90(3)(d)
90(3)(k)
24/4/2018 Iltem 19.2 Update on the disposal of recyclable material 90(3)(d)
22/1/2019 Iltem 18.1 Supported Residential Facilities Act Licencing - Clifford 90(3)(h)
House 90(3)()
23/4/2019 ltem 18.1 East Waste Recycling Contract 90(3)(d)
90(3)(k)
24/4/2019 ltem 8.1 Community Hub, Library and Innovation Centre (CLIC) 90(3)(d)
- Risk and Financial Management Report and Project Prudential
Report Update
24/9/2019 ltem 19.1 CEO Recruitment Process and Appointment 90(3)(a)
17/12/2019 ltem 18.1 Recycling Legal Matter 90(3)(h)
28/1/2020 Item 16.1 Appointment of East Waste Independent Chair 90(3)(a)
24/3/2020 ltem 16.2 Chief Executive Officer Performance Development 90(3)(a)
Review Committee Meeting Minutes
24/3/2020 Iltem 16.1 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, 90(3)(b)
Prospect
28/4/2020 Iltem 16.1 Community Service Awards 2020 90(3)(a)
90(3)
26/5/2020 Iltem 16.1 CEO Performance Development Review Committee 90(3)(a)
23/6/2020 Item 16.1 Sale of 82-90 Johns Road and 218 Main North Road, 90(3)(b)

Prospect




Council staff achieved approximately 77% completion of all budgeted projects for
2019/2020.

Of the fifteen incomplete projects, seven were scheduled to be multi-year projects
with planned budgets straddling into the 2019/2020 financial year. These projects
included:

» Strategic Plan Development & Resident Satisfaction Survey
* SharePoint Implementation

* Heritage Development Plan Amendment (DPA)

» Broadview Oval / Yarnta Tutu yerta upgrade

« Charles Cane / Pando yerta clubroom upgrade

» Collinswood Shopping Centre Precinct

* Vine Street Plaza upgrade

Whilst every effort was made to complete all projects, eight remaining projects
were delayed, predominately by COVID disruptions to supply chains. These project
budgets have been carried forward to 2020/2021 and include:

* Heritage Street Signs

* Connected Cities

* InfoCouncil Implementation

* Secured Document Management & Distribution
* Mobile Access for Field Staff

* Major Art Installation

* Maker Space Equipment

* Fleet Replacement

During the year, Council has achieved or favourably exceeded all of the three key
financial indicators.

The key financial indicators are reported in Council’s Audited Financial Statements
(see Note 15) and are summarised as follows:

Key Financial Indicator Adopted Target | Ratio Achieved | Target Achieved | Ratio Achieved
Range 2018-2019 2018-2019 2017-2018

Operating Surplus Ratio (%) - 5% 0.0% Achieved 3.4%

Net Financial Liabilities 10% - 90% 73% Achieved 74%

Ratio

Asset Sustainability Ratio 100% - 120% 169% Exceeded 285%

Council remains on track to maintain its key financial indicators as outline in its ten
year Long Term Financial Plan.







Without doubt, 2019/2020 was the most
extraordinary period in the 40 year history
of the Prospect Library, going from the
incredible highs of moving into and
opening the new facility in October 2019,
to the challenging lows of having to close
the facility to the public due to COVID-19
state of emergency closure directives in
March 2020. Even without COVID, it was
truly a landmark year for Council and its
Library Services.

Opening of Payinthi

On Monday 14 October 2019 the new
Payinthi library/civic/community facility
was opened to the public. The impact

was immediate, with the community
attending in huge numbers to see, use and
experience the new facility.

In the first month of operation nearly
30,000 people walked through the doors,
with the reaction upon seeing the facility

/-

i

for the first time being overwhelmingly
positive. Particular highlights of the first
months of operation in Payinthi included:

e The ‘Experience Payinthi Open Day’
event held on Sunday 10 November
2019where over 2000 people attended
to participate in a fantastic day at the
facility full of fun and activities;

e Ahead of the opening (in the final
weeks of construction) we held fully
booked out ‘sneak peek’ tours, giving
community members, visitors and other
parties a unique and unforgettable
behind the scenes tour hosted by one
of Council’s project team members;

e High foot traffic through the building
on the return of the Council’s flagship
‘Touriffic’ street party on Prospect
Road, with nearly 6000 people visiting
the building during the event;

e Overall visitations more than doubling
in comparison to figures from the
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previous Thomas Street premises
(averaging approx. 700 - 800 people a
day);

e Library item borrowing increasing by
35%;

e Renewed popularity of regular library
programs, headlined by 140+ parents/
carers and babies/toddlers attending
Rhymetime each week;

e Substantial increases in both standard
and also Toy Library memberships.

COVID-19 Closure & Response

Just as these highs of the new building
were subsiding and operations were
starting to settle into the new rhythm of
‘Payinthi’, the COVID-19 crisis hit.

Council made the extremely difficult
decision to close down library services and
limit public access to the Payinthi facility
on Friday 20 March 2020 for the safety of
the community and staff.

On Tuesday 24 March 2020 this closure
was further confirmed with the Federal
government issuing a closure order for all

public libraries Australia-wide.

Despite these closures, library staff moved
very quickly to implement modified
services that could be delivered to people
online or in their homes, which included:

Recording and delivering Storytime
and Rhymetime sessions online via the
library’s Facebook page;

e Contacting customers located within
the Prospect council area who had
reservations and delivering them to
their homes;

e Contacting known vulnerable
households and offering home delivery
of library items;

e Extending all items out on loan to
customers so they did not have to leave
their homes to return them;

Promoting online ebook and audiobook
platforms, and diverting funding to
purchase additional content for these
platforms to cope with the increased
demand.
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A substantial amount of positive feedback
was received from the community for all
of these services and while challenging,
the closure period really proved how
important the library is to the people

of Prospect and served as a great
opportunity to connect in a different way,
and grow the audience.

In 2019/2020 our Youth program
expanded to include school holiday
programs, information and sports sessions,
access to ‘employment ready’ skill lessons,
music programs and the provision of basic
but fundamental qualifications. We saw
increased participation from our primary
and secondary schools following a more
tailored approach to these organisations,
including the electronic distribution of City
of Prospect’s Children, Youth and Schools
Update. This went to over 1,100 people
each term and assisted in building the
audience and exposing our Youth services

to where they are needed.

For the second year, we scheduled Youth
DJ’s at our annual Twilight Sessions. A
revised engagement process for Local
Schools Art Exhibition was undertaken,
seeing it move to a 100% online exhibition
opening and an evening projection of the
exhibition in the window of Newmarch
Gallery.

The secondary school Annual Business
Plan Budget workshops were refreshed
and we finished the year with a range

of skills development programs
including Responsible Service of Alcohol
certification and First Aid courses

to support Youth with employment
opportunities during COVID-19 recovery.

There was also a stronger link between
Newmarch Gallery and Youth programs
established, seeing a range of art initiatives
take shape throughout the year, including
the popular Drawing Bots sessions with
renowned Adelaide artist Jimmy Dodd
who was part of the opening exhibition
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at the Gallery. We also offered a new
program of Street Arts Tours with Seb
Humphreys that proved very successful
and will now become an ongoing offering
at Newmarch Gallery.

Youth FM and Youth Parliament

City of Prospect continues to be an

active participant and contributor to

these popular regional programs, always
offering fully funded places for local Youth
to participate. We heavily promote these
through local schools, youth organisations,
social media and the designated youth
electronic mail out.

Each year young people from the
participating Council areas come
together for training and mentoring that
supports them to prepare and present
radio programs. One intake was held in
September 2019 and we sponsored six
young people aged between 15-25 to
participate. Due to COVID-19 the program
went into recess in March 2020 and is
currently under review.

Our support for Youth Parliament also
continued and we selected three young
people to represent City of Prospect at
2020 Youth Parliament. This included a
representative from Blackfriars Priory
School, Prescott College and a local
community leader who were celebrated on
Council’s Facebook page during National
Youth Week (April 2020). The trio will
work as a team to prepare a Bill on a topic
of their choice and present it at Parliament
House at a week long residential now
planned for late September. Developed
and run by YMCA South Australia, Youth
Parliament is a non-partisan program
providing a platform for young people
aged 15-25 to have their say on important
issues, build skills and parliamentary
understanding. It focuses on personal
development, empowerment and
connecting politicians and decision makers

with youth voices and opinions.
Children’s School Holiday Program

This year’s program fluctuated in delivery
method however still proved very popular
within our community. In winter of 2019
we took a traditional approach to the
program offering a range of sessions
including print making, craft and sports,
dance classes and skills workshops, with

a majority reaching full capacity. The
spring program directly coincided with the
relocation to Payinthi, and therefore we
conducted skills development sessions in
August, and focussed on the opening of
George Whittle Reserve in October which
attracted hundreds of people throughout
an amazing fun day. The planned April
program was impacted enormously by
COVID-19, so we moved two scheduled
Eliza Hall children’s shows to online, and
postponed the newly designed Get Active
Program, the flagship program for this
year with it moved to spring 2020 (subject
to restrictions).

Youth Sponsorship Program

For the second year in a row the Youth
Sponsorship Program offered by City

of Prospect in 2019/2020 was fully
expended. The program aims to encourage
and support young people aged 21 years
and under who have been selected

to represent their institution, club or
organisation in sport & recreation, science,
technology, arts or cultural pursuits.

A total of 36 sponsorships were provided
this financial year enabling young people
to compete at events held interstate

(29) and overseas (7). The successful
applications included 15 people that had
not received support from City of Prospect
previously.




Community Buses

You might have seen them navigating
their way around the winding streets

of Prospect, colourful buses stopping
regularly to allow our older residents to
embark and be transported to various
locations within our City and further afield.
Each journey is as much about catching
up with friends as it is to make use of the
door to door, low cost bus service.

The buses are driven by Council volunteers
who are assisted by a volunteer ‘helper’
to store any shopping that may have
been picked up on the journey or to hold
personal belongings while passengers
navigate steps on and off the bus. With
one of the buses fitted with a wheelchair
lift, our volunteers are there to assist our
older residents to get out and about in
our community, no matter their level of
mobility.

I .

Community
¥ Bus

Although paused during the COVID-19
health crisis, a door to door pick-up and
return service was provided throughout
2019/2020 for the following activities:

e Door to Door Shopping - transport
to and from North Park and Sefton
Park Shopping Centres, offered
each Tuesday and Friday. This is the
program’s most popular service,
offering lots of time for leisurely
shopping and even enjoy a coffee with
new friends before getting back on
board the bus.

e Day Tours - transport to and from
popular destinations within greater
Adelaide and interesting regional
locations, offered on the second
Monday of each month.

During the COVID-19 health crisis both
of the community buses were used
to provide support to our vulnerable

]
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residents for fresh food and grocery
shopping. The size and space of each bus
allowed for social distancing requirements

to be maintained with only two passengers

and the driver each bus trip. This
amended service was greatly valued
and helped some of our most vulnerable
residents through the unprecedented
times.

Prospect Community Support

For our older residents who want to

continue to live independently in their own

home yet need some help with daily tasks
or wish to socialise more, the Prospect
Community Support team, funded by My
Aged Care, continues to help.

My Aged Care is the starting point to
access Australian Government funded
services. Commonwealth Home Support
Program (CHSP) - is the entry level
social activity and home help program
for older people. City of Prospect, as a
service provider, has helped our older
residents access these services through
the Prospect Community Support team.
Services provided to eligible participants
have included:

Help at Home services

e Domestic assistance for general house
cleaning.

e Minor home maintenance helping with
changing tap washes, smoke alarm
batteries etc.

e Gardening maintenance assisting with
tree trimming and low maintenance of
yards.

e Annual services including gutter, spring
and window cleaning.

¢ Home modifications assisting with the
installation of grab rails.

Social programs and activities

Mondays

Chair-based exercises to help maintain
or regain flexibility and balance.

Strength for Life classes promoting
strength, balance and flexibility.

Hotel Lunch Group visiting a variety of
metropolitan venues.

Tuesdays

The Friendship Group offered a variety
of indoor activities and afternoon tea.

Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Thursdays
- Men’s Shed enabled the blokes to
further their woodworking skills over
coffee and a chat.

Wednesdays

Participating in door-to-door shopping
experiences and enjoying the ambiance
of the Central Market and other
metropolitan shopping centres.

Regular programs of healthy lunches,
cooking lessons as well as wellbeing
seminars to promote healthy choices
and lifestyles.

Thursdays

Outings and events to enjoy the
company of others and experience
something different in and around
Adelaide.

The Community Lunch offered a 3
course meal and entertainment while
socialising in the company of other
local residents.

Fridays

Strength for Life classes promoting
strength, balance and flexibility.




COVID-19 Support for our Vulnerable protocols and a no-touch practice

Residents regarding pens and paperwork.

Where some metropolitan councils e A program of regular welfare telephone
cancelled their home support services calls was newly established during the
during the COVID-19 health crisis, Prospect crisis, ensuring community connection
Community Support team maintained their with our older residents was retained
strong connection with the community during their self-isolation.

during this time. e Many residents changed to online or

The team made various changes phone ordering and deliveries for their
to the way services were delivered, fresh food, grocery and pharmacy
implementing a range of measures to needs. Residents with limited or no
reduce the potential risk of transmission family or social contacts utilised a one-
allowing residents to stay safe at home on-one community bus service to North
yet connected with their regular home Park Shopping Centre to obtain cash,
supports. pay bills and do grocery shopping.

e Support workers made screening calls e Our residents also greatly appreciated
with the residents prior to scheduled the meal service distributed through
home visits to ensure residents were the Prospect Delivers meal voucher
symptom free and not in contact program.

with anyone exposed to the virus,
maintaining the required social
distancing, correct strict hand hygiene

Maintaining these regular home supports,
welfare calls and modified services has
been important aspects of keeping our
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older residents in our community safe and
connected.

City of Prospect’s 2020 Citizen of the Year
awards.

These awards recognise the outstanding
contributions made by our residents
who demonstrate strong leadership and
commitment to improve community life
in City of Prospect, over and above their
normal employment duties.

Residents were asked - “Do you know
someone who makes a difference in our
community?”

The awards acknowledge three categories:

e Citizen of the Year Award - to be
eligible, the person must be an
Australian Citizen.

¢ Young Citizen of the Year Award - to
be eligible, the person must be an
Australian Citizen under 30 years of
age on January 26 of the year of award.

e Community Event of the Year Award -
this is presented to the person/group
who has staged the most outstanding
community event during the past year.

Nominations closed Friday 15 November
2019.

City of Prospect proudly presented

our Citizen of the Year Awards at our
2020 Tourrific Prospect Street Party on
Monday 20 January 2020 to the following
recipients.

e Robert Roocke was awarded City of
Prospect’s 2020 Citizen of the Year
Award.

e This year we had dual recipients for the
Young Citizen of the Year, Charlotte
Crosby and Max Weir.

e Broadview Football Club was presented
with the 2020 Community Event

of the Year for taking a lead role in
collaborating with three other amateur
league clubs to arrange a “Community
Day at the Footy” in August 2019.

Acknowledgement of our Community
Heroes

Usually, presentation of the Community
Service Awards are a feature of our
National Volunteer Week event, held

in May of each year. This year, because

of the restrictions on public gatherings
associated with COVID-19, presentation

of the awards has been paused to be
presented at a later date, in line with social
distancing requirements.

We are proud to announce the following
recipients will be receiving a City of
Prospect Community Service 2020 Award
and we look forward to celebrating with
them in the next Financial Year.

e Prospect District Cricket Club
e Rotary Club of Prospect

e Australian Plangon (Antique & Modern
Doll Collectors) Club Inc.

e Prospect Community Early Education
and Care

e Dennis Righey

e Lesley Attema

e Derek Williamson
e Hanni Howe

e Wendy Stephens
e Lynn Hughes

e David Johnston

e Nolla Bellenger

English as a Second Language Program

With a pause to the program because of
the COVID-19 health crisis, Council offered
free group classes and individual tutoring




sessions at Payinthi, 128 Prospect Road
Prospect.

Classes and tutoring sessions were made
available to adults who are newly arrived
in Australia or who may have been here
for some time, but speak a different
language at home. Students are given

the opportunity to practice and develop
skills and confidence in speaking, listening,
reading and writing to assist in everyday
life.

Kaurna Warra Karrpanthi

Kaurna Warra Karrpanthi (KWK) is the
leading group dedicated to Kaurna
language revitalisation and maintenance.
The traditional lands and language of
the Kaurna people include the Adelaide
Plains of South Australia. Council has on
a number of occasions consulted KWK
to pursue an interest in the use of Kaurna
language for naming sites and locations
throughout our City as part of respecting
and celebrating this ancient connection to
the land.

Most recently, Payinthi was the name
chosen for the newly constructed library,
community hub and administration centre
at 128 Prospect Road, Prospect. Payinthi

is a simple translation into Kaurna of the
English language phrase ‘Good Prospects’,

with correct pronunciation being Pay-in-di.

Other examples of Kaurna language in
use throughout our City include our ‘dual
named’ parks and spaces of:

e Narnu Wirra (Prospect Gardens)

e Payinthi yarta (Prospect Oval)

e Yarnta Tutu yarta (Broadview Sports
and Recreation Precinct)

e Parndo yerta (Charles Cane Reserve).

Council was keen to seize the opportunity
of the new large property development
at the northern end of Churchill Road

to use Kaurna language for some of the
new street names. With the development

opened, you are able to drive, walk or ride
a bike down Parnta Avenue or Payinthi
Drive or simply sit and enjoy the small
park named Pingku Walk. Each of these
Kaurna words have the English language
translation as follows:

e Parnta - Lime; limestone; brick
e Payinthi - Good Prospects
e Pingku - Bilby.

Council’s ongoing commitment to
reconciliation with the Kaurna people

is most strongly expressed through

our Reconciliation Action Plan which
concluded at the end of the reporting
period after achieving some great results,
and now looking forward to continuing the
reconciliation journey.

Prospect Active Walkers

With the support of the Heart Foundation,
Prospect Active Walkers has a focus upon
keeping fit, having fun and socialising

with other walkers. The group met each
Monday, Wednesday and Friday morning
throughout the year, although the program
was paused due to COVID-19.

The walkers were able to recommence
walking in late June, with some
adjustments made to this activity, such as
observing social distancing. The walkers
were very keen to come together again
as a group and this friendly group always
welcome new walkers.

Prospect Singing Group

Prospect Singing Group was an informal
and fun group, welcome to everyone
regardless of age or ability. You didn’t
need to be a good or experienced singer;
all you need was a willingness to ‘give it a
go’. Until the move to Payinthi, the group
was meeting each Tuesday at Broadview
Uniting Church Hall.

The group was led each week by
well-known Adelaide musicians and
experienced choir leaders Heather Frahn




and Cindy-Anne McDonald who ensure
everyone’s voice is included within positive
uplifting songs, drawing from varied
musical influences both popular and lesser
known.

A recent comment from a regular singing
group member - “l sometimes arrive
feeling tired but always leave feeling so
much better, Cindy and Heather are so
positive and enthusiastic it’s impossible
to not get caught up in a great group
experience.” City of Prospect was grateful
to the Office for Ageing Well, SA Health
for funding this project and is actively
pursuing Grant funding to continue the
program next year.

Food Safety and our Immunisation
program

Eastern Health Authority (EHA) provides
free immunisation services to residents on
behalf of City of Prospect. EHA provides
vaccines recommended for children and
adults on the National Immunisation
Program (NIP) to people with a current

Medicare card and also provides the
School Immunisation Program (SIP)
and adolescent catch-up programs for
students/residents of our Council area.

During the past two years, City of
Prospect residents have been invited

to attend EHA’s St Peters clinic while
the redevelopment of Payinthi was in
progress. Up until the COVID-19 health
crisis, immunisation services were made
available in Prospect on the second Friday
of the month at Payinthi. Depending on
the progress of responding to COVID-19,
there are plans in place to bring back
the immunisation program to operate
from Payinthi provided it can be safely
managed.

Annual Grant Program

The Grants were available to local
community groups and organisations for
funding to support their activities and to
develop new programs and events that will
benefit our community.

e Community Support Fund grants were

-

e .
)
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available for up to $5,000 for small
equipment purchases, community
development programs, facilities

improvement and environmental grants.

These grants are a great opportunity
for local groups to focus on the things
they need to improve and enhance the
services provided to the community.

e Cultural Festival and Event grants were
made available for community groups
looking to run large community events
and need the financial support with
the expertise of our Community Event
Coordinator. Grants were available up
to $10,000 to support the development
and delivery of public cultural festival
and events that celebrate and raise
awareness of our inclusive community,
especially through the sharing of cross
cultural experiences.

e Heritage Grant Fund grants were made
available to support local residents and
businesses to maintain and upgrade
their heritage and character properties
through Council’s Heritage Grant
Program. The type of conservation
works granted funding under the
program have included:

o Verandah replacement or repair

o Chimney repairs

o Re-pointing, and salt damp repairs
to original stone walls

o Front fencing and

o Re-roofing.

Examples of activities completed with
support of Council’s grants program
include:

e Eagles Lacrosse Club - Expanding
existing workshops that introduce
lacrosse programs into schools, keeping
this sport affordable and accessible to
all children wishing to participate.

¢ Kiwanis Club of Prospect - Towards
funding three buses to transport
disadvantaged students on a weekend

day trip to Monarto Zoo.

e Prospect Local History Group -
Partially fund the purchase of cleaning
equipment, shelving and a storage
cupboard for the Air Raid Shelter.

e Prospect and Enfield Kindergym Inc.
- Towards the purchase of gymnastic
equipment, storage cabinets, and a
baby change station for the St Phillips
Church Hall.

Have Your Say

Council is committed to involve our
communities in our decision-making
processes, including the adoption of our
Annual Business Plan, Strategic Plan, and
local initiatives such as the development of
parks and children’s play spaces.

Community engagement enables a

better understanding of our community’s
needs and aspirations, leading to more
equitable and sustainable public decisions
that improve the liveability of our local
communities.

Getting involved is as simple as visiting
Council’s website to find details of current
community consultation opportunities.
Engagement Hub is our online tool that
provides easy access to background
information and updates on projects and
initiatives, along with community polls,
public meetings, surveys and other ways
to have your say.

Community input was received for the
following projects and initiatives:

e CLIC (Payinthi) Community Reference
Group

e Draft Broadview Sports & Recreation
Precinct / Yarnta Tutu yarta Master Plan

¢ Implementation of Churchill Road
Master plan - Stage Three

e Annual Business Plan 2020-2021

e Disability Access and Inclusion plan
(early input)

e Prospect Gardens / Narnu Wirra
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Playspace upgrade.
Our Volunteering Community

At City of Prospect we are so proud of
our volunteers, and so grateful for all they
do. One of our volunteer programs is the
popular Justice of the Peace program
where local JPs volunteer their time to
provide a free service to the community.
Having a positive attitude is a quality
attribute for volunteers in this program,
one of these valued volunteers is Richard
Harvey who has been a JP since 1962.
Richard commenced as a Justice of the
Peace with City of Prospect in 2005

and finds his Justice of the Peace work
interesting because he meets all sorts

of people from different backgrounds,
nationalities and experiences.

Council has an active volunteer program
featuring many local residents, however
in March 2020 the COVID-19 health
crisis forced the closure of most of our
community programs and our volunteer
program was paused until restrictions
eased.

At the end of 2019/2020 Council had 143
active volunteers. Over the year 183 local
residents applied to take up volunteer
roles within Council, with 103 of those
referred to local Clubs and Community
Groups according to their skills and
interests. During the COVID-19 health
crisis, a number of our volunteers provided
assistance with telephone support and
community transport for residents who
were unable to leave their home. These
people are an invaluable resource for the
Council and the Community.

City of Prospect - Annual Report 2019/2020

Page 38



Newmarch Gallery and Exhibition
Program

In August 2019 we farewelled Prospect
Gallery at Thomas Street with the Poles
of Art exhibition; a nod to decades of
community inspiration, creativity and
the hundreds of artists that commenced,
developed and delivered programs and
exhibitions since its opening in 1988.

Opening its doors for the first time on

14 October 2019, Newmarch Gallery is
named after local resident and artist

Ann Newmarch (OAM). The Gallery is a
testament to the guidance, perseverance
and strong determination that Ann, staff,
artists and the broader community showed
in the 1980s in raising the profile of arts

in the community and creating a strong
grass roots movement. An outstanding
political activist and a trailblazer in feminist
art, Ann remains incredibly humbled and
community focused, “| feel very privileged
in many areas of my life, and this is a real
honour.”

Newmarch Gallery, through detailed
planning by Council, staff and Prospect
Arts Action Network (PAAN), provides a
modern and contemporary yet community
focussed space for exhibitions and
programming and has already made waves
in Adelaide’s arts sector.

Prospect Gallery delivered 2 exhibitions in

the 2019/2020 financial year:

e July - Celebrating NAIDOC

e August - Poles of Art

e September - closed to relocate to
Prospect Road.

Newmarch Gallery delivered 6 exhibitions
in the 2019/2020 financial year:

* Mid October and November - 7 Artists
in 7 Weeks - Jimmy Dodd, Laura Wills,
Nat Penney, Holy Rollers Studios

(involving 6 artists), Christopher Pope,
Fran Callen, Daniel Connell

» December and January - Opening of
Newmarch Gallery and 10th Prospect
Portrait Prize

* February - An Archaeological Study
of the Layering of Graffiti - Seb
Humphreys

* March - Dark Places (closed part way
through) - Janine Dello, Sharyn Louise
Ingham and Kate Dowling

« April/May - Nightlife at Newmarch :
Our Digitised Collection (replaced 1000
Ways to Rainbow by Eleanor Zecchin
which has been rescheduled to the
2021 program)

 June - Local Schools Art Exhibition.

The highlight of the year was
unquestionably the official opening

of Newmarch Gallery on Thursday 5
December 2019, a night of celebration
combining with the opening of the 10th
Prospect Portrait Prize. Many of Ann
Newmarch’s family attended the event
along with past staff, PAAN (current and
past members), Councillors, staff and
community.

Newmarch Gallery launched into 2020
with DJs at openings, street art tours

and school visits to name just some

of the fresh new initiatives. As is well
documented, the impact of COVID-19
restrictions hit in March 2020, seeing the
understandable cancellation of 1000 Ways
to Rainbow by artist Eleanor Zecchin. The
team moved quickly to establish online
content of the Civic Art Collection and
produced the first digital exhibition.

Nightlife at Newmarch : Our Digitised
Collection was a projection in the
Prospect Road window of the Gallery
and ran from dusk until dawn every
day. This was followed by the Local




Schools Art Exhibition, also being
exhibited predominantly via digital
platforms, which included a pre-recorded
opening with schools and our Mayor, a
Facebook Live opening event and all

art work was featured online as a digital
exhibition. During Reconciliation Week an
outstanding interview with Damien Shen
was released and linked our Reconciliation
Action Plan (RAP) to the Gallery and
PAAN. By June 2020, the doors reopened,
albeit with restrictions, and Newmarch
Galley was able to recommence ‘new
normal’ programming.

The following public art initiatives (capital
and operational) were completed with
support from the City Wide Public Art
Roundtable (CWPAR) for 2019/2020:

e Restoration of two historic murals
including Community House Mural
and Australian Flora Mural - works

completed by Seb Humphreys and
Jasmine Crisp.

Installation of piece by Joseph
Stanislaus Ostoja-Kotkowski AM at 91
Prospect Road.

Collinswood beautification project -
artist Matt Stuckey engaged to develop
concepts and deliver installations to
improve aesthetics of site, and brighten
the busy commercial precinct.

Public Art Collection Management

- work has been completed to
ascertain size and condition of
collection, including documenting and
photographing over 90 pieces that
make up the collection. A significant
portion was also made accessible via an
online platform.

Inside Out - a temporary public art
project involving the installation of
50 works on footpaths. This was a
response to the increase in residents
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walking and exercising during COVID-19
restrictions, recognising many art
institutions were closed or operating
with limited hours.

e The Quick Response Public Art Grants
program continued with projects
including: Kab101 Lane, Stobie Poles in
Allan Street, Vinnie, Jack Fran’s mural
on Wild Fusion and commencing work
with Prospect Kindergarten for a mural
replacement.

e Public Art Plagues - the purchase of
10 public art plagues to commence the
identification of key works throughout
the city.

e Community Tile Bench - completed the
installation involving over 200 custom
tiles for the community bench as part
of Payinthi’'s embedded public art.

e Support to infrastructure projects
including:
o Broadview Oval / Yarnta Tutu
yarta Play Space upgrade (concept
designs)

o JW Rattley Reserve (mural).

e Broadview Oval / Yarnta Tutu yarta
amenities block - KAB101 upgrade to
two murals.

e Street Art Tour with schools - trialled
the first public art tour for schools, with
intent if successful this becomes linked
to Newmarch Gallery programming.

e Repairs to local murals that have been
tagged or damaged.

Arts SA Major Commission Grant for
Payinthi Foyer

In September 2019 we were announced
as the sole recipient of Arts SA’s annual
Public Art and Design Major Commission
Grant. What a fantastic recognition and
achievement.

This project was commissioned by Council,
with support from Arts South Australia,
with artist Karl Meyer in association with

Exhibitions Studios being pre-selected
through a robust and competitive
Expression of Interest process conducted
in May 2019. Karl explains that Threads in
Motion, a large scale kinetic piece has been
designed ‘to create a visual experience
that is engaging and unexpected, born of
place, and enhances the way people see
and experience the City of Prospect ..... Itis
symbolic of the coming together of these
‘threads’, the elements of a community
when working together actively can not
only uplift and inspire through unison, but
also create something beautiful.

This project is the largest commissioned
art work by Council. It commenced
construction in November 2019 and is
scheduled for installation September or
October 2020.

Prospect Arts Action Network (PAAN)
and City Wide Public Art Roundtable
(CWPAR)

PAAN continues to meet monthly to guide
and provide advice on Gallery business
and exhibition programming, as well as
the PAAN member-led arts projects and
initiatives whilst also volunteering at
Gallery events. The group also continued
to play a key role in designing Newmarch
Gallery for the CLIC Project team.

PAAN includes Council Members Cr
Kristina Barnett and Cr Allen Harris, and
community members Peter Lindon, Sue
Michael (stepped down May 2020), Cathy
Brooks, Katie Harten, Youngsoon Jin, Gus
Clutterbuck, Joanna Majchroswska, Sarah
Northcott and Claire Chessman.

The City Wide Public Art Advisory
Roundtable (CWPAR), a group supporting
the direction of Public Art throughout the
City, meets bi-monthly to discuss a range
of projects including major installations,
shared projects with other Council
departments and smaller initiatives.
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CWPAR consists of eight members
including Mayor David O’Loughlin, Deputy
Mayor Matt Larwood and community
members Cathy Brooks, Katie Harten, Seb
Humphreys, Gerry McMahon (stepped
down June 2020), Peter Syndicas and
Jason Sims.

Events & Major Programs
Payinthi Opening Event Series

We designed and delivered an ambitious
program of events and activations over a
period of two months to commemorate
the opening of Payinthi and stimulate
visitation. Our team celebrated everything
from the arts and schools, to significant
milestones such as the Kaurna Smoking
Ceremony of the site and official plague
unveiling.

Notable activities included:

e Kaurna Welcome - by Senior Aboriginal
Man and descendant of the Kaurna
and Narrunga peoples, Michael O’Brien

(Mickey). This was conducted alongside
Councillors and staff on the evening of
Friday 4 October 2019.

Sneak Peek Tours - ‘behind the
scenes’ all access experience for our
community in the week prior to the
building being opened to the public.

Your First Day is Our First Day - we
welcomed approximately 400 local
school students to the building on
first day of public operations, with
specifically designed 30 minute tours
on Monday 14 October 2019.

Experience Payinthi Open Day - The
largest of the events attracted over
2,400 visitors on Sunday 10 November
2019 between 12noon - 5pm. All public
areas of the building and Vine Street
Plaza were activated.

Payinthi Official Opening and Mayor’s
Dinner - a gala night was a fitting event
to mark the Official Opening of the
building with over 150 attendees being
part of the Official Opening and plaque
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unveiling in the Grand Foyer, followed
by Mayor’s Dinner in Eliza Hall.

e Official Opening of Newmarch Gallery
- a designated event coinciding the
opening of the 10th Prospect Portrait
Prize opening, Newmarch Gallery was
declared officially opened on Thursday
5 December 2019.

The range of events saw extensive cross
department collaboration in programing
and activations, many being done for
the first time and setting the scene for
exponential growth in visitation for the
site.

Prospect Spring Fair

For the third year in a row the Prospect
Spring Fair, on Saturday 26 October 2019,
was held at Broadview Oval / Yarnta

Tutu yarta, cementing itself as our major
day time family event for our city and its
visitors. This completed the three year
trial at the new location, and despite very

challenging weather leading up to the
2019 event, great crowds were recorded
for the Fair’s 42nd year with the Council
committing to the Broadview location for
the long term given the success of the trial.

The event made some operational
changes including improved and refreshed
layout and branding updates, welcomed
almost 100 stallholders, and enjoyed
entertainment from 25 stage performers,
two roving performers, 4 sports zones,

a new nature play area, animal rides, a
climbing wall and an EcoMaze.

As mentioned, following the consecutive
successes over the three year trial period,
in November 2019 Council formally
adopted the new home of the Prospect
Spring Fair as Broadview Oval / Yarnta
Tutu yarta, paving the way for the eastern
side of our council area to host a major
family event annually.
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Tourrific Prospect 2020

After a ‘year off’, the 2020 Tourrific
Prospect Street Party was held on Monday
20 January 2020 from 6.00pm - 11.00pm.
In its eighth year it is estimated that 16,800
people attended the event despite the
weather being the coolest in the event’s
history (by a significant margin!).

The team adopted a new structure in
2020, and brought the event management
in-house with support from specific major
event experts. The event was the official
‘Rest Day’ of the Santos Tour Down Under
(STDU), meaning we again had a slot early
in the STDU week, and while cool weather
was a challenge for the event, feedback
was very positive and residents and
businesses welcomed the return of this
cornerstone event to Prospect Road.

Replicating a similar event site and layout
of the very successful 2018 event, Tourrific
Prospect 2020 was conducted between
Azalea Street and Olive Street and
presented five entertainment stages, two
DJ areas, 98 traders and stallholders, 13
sponsors, over 30 performers, a dedicated
Kid’s Zone, a curated market with 11 stalls,
a live mural artwork (south wall of Wild
Fusion), as well as the annual Loopy Kids
Ride with over 200 registrations. For the
first time the main Council facility at 128
Prospect Road, Payinthi, was included

as part of the event and showcased the
incredible community facility to thousands
of people.

The 2020 Tourrific Prospect event plans
continued to apply the event objectives
endorsed 2016-2020:

e Place - Put a spotlight on ‘Brand’
Prospect to showcase it to the world;
where people champion Prospect
as a vital place to be and invest.
Working with Network Prospect,
attracting a huge online following and
internationally by being the only event

without a Stage included in the 2020
Santos Tour Down Under booklet and
website.

e Prosperity - Leverage the event to
stimulate and sustain business activity
and community benefit. Working with
Network Prospect and local service
groups, schools and local artists/
makers who, as participants were able
to generate sales and increased brand
awareness with the almost 177,000
attendees.

e People - Create an inclusive, innovative,
culturally diverse and entertaining
celebration that is a resident and visitor
attractor. The event entertainment
program was developed to be as
culturally representative and inclusive
as possible, including a Kaurna
Welcome and smoking ceremony and
Indigenous dance performances.

Overall, the event was seen as another
great success and provides a cut-through
in Adelaide’s busy event season to
showcase City of Prospect as a highly
respected destination for work and retail.
It provides a lot for local business, it helps
to consistently brand the City as a modern,
vibrant and progressive council well
beyond the event date itself.

2020 Twilight Sessions

The 25th annual event presented four
nights of live music and entertainment
all in the very popular and relaxed picnic
atmosphere at the Prospect Memorial
Gardens throughout February.

The series of concerts was a registered
event within the world renowned Adelaide
Fringe 2020, and attendances were above
average with approximately 3,300 people
across the four Friday nights.

We continued with the local Youth DJs
introduced in 2019, the festoon lighting,
MC, food trucks and the expanded kids’




activities area. The themes over the four
weeks varied and in 2020 included Hot
Hits, Jour d’amour (Valentine’s Day), Soul
and the ever-popular Latin Loco.

Club5082

While Club5082 was only able to open
for a short time in 2019/2020, it did so
with enormous support from the local
community with all shows sold out during
its short five months of operation from
Payinthi opening through to COVID-19
shutdown requirements. Opening on 1
November 2019 after almost 12 months out
of the industry, Club5082 propelled into
the event season with an album launch

of Lazy Eye Band to get the new facility
settled in. Then in mid-November 2019,
we hosted an incredible night with the
induction of GANGgajang into the South
Australian Music Hall of Fame, and the
re-establishment of the popular OOTS
Matinee Series.

The start of the New Year saw the return
of Tourrific Prospect to the space, with
guests enjoying Amy Winehouse and

Cat Empire tribute gigs, and in February
2020 the Prospect Blues and Roots Series
recommenced with a line-up of local youth
alongside international artists.

Additionally the Club also hosted tribute
bands, the first Youth in Blues Program,
several designated children’s shows during
school holidays and was a key part of
Experience Payinthi Open Day.

Due to COVID-19 restrictions, Club5082
was closed in March 2020. It remains a key
component of social media for Council,
and is still engaging with its high audience
of over 4,700 followers and will reopen its
doors in 2020/2021 once restrictions ease
and viability is achievable.
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The Draft Broadview Sports & Recreation
Precinct / Yarnta Tutu yarta Master Plan
was revisited in consultation with key
stakeholders including representatives of
the football, tennis, cricket and bowling
clubs, as well as relevant peak sporting
bodies and the local Lions Club. The Draft
Master Plan was endorsed for broader
community consultation to provide local
residents and other users of the precinct
an opportunity to provide feedback, and a
final draft to be completed.

An updated Draft Master Plan for Prospect
Oval / Payinthi yarta was developed in
consultation with key stakeholders and
represents a clear and detailed vision for
the future of the precinct. This Draft Master
Plan was driven by the North Adelaide
Football Club and the Prospect District
Cricket Club, who are the key tenants of
Prospect Oval / Payinthi yarta.

Council’s Community Safety Team protect
the safety of the local community and
visitors to City of Prospect by providing
services to fulfil Council’s obligations
under relevant acts and legislation
concerned with the safety and wellbeing
of the general public for:

* Parking control

* Animal management

* Litter and nuisance control

* Fire prevention
 Enforcing Council’s By-Laws
* Public safety

Staff aim to develop positive relationships
with the community by using a range

of strategies including education and
enforcement. With community safety
always front of mind, staff conduct a range
of proactive patrols in public spaces and
are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week
to respond to customer requests.

Parking

Parking patrols are prioritised according to
the potential risk associated with motorists
parking illegally. Over the past 12 months
focus areas have included parking zones
around our schools and bicycle lanes on
arterial roads.

To monitor compliance and address
safety concerns, regular patrols of these
key locations are conducted to educate
motorists as well as issue warnings and
expiations.

In 2019/2020 a total of 1,526 parking
expiations and 657 written warnings were
issued.

Dog and Cat Management

Pets are an important part of our
community and under the Dog and Cat
Management Act, Council staff use a range
of educational and enforcement strategies
to educate pet owners and encourage
responsible pet ownership.

Highlights and actions from the Dog
and Cat Management Plan in 2019/2020
included:

* No increase to dog registration fees
with 2,603 dogs registered and 97%
microchipped

* Voluntary registration of 438 cats with
99% microchipped

* Improved engagement with pet owners
using social media and text messages
regarding registration, microchipping,
desexing and pet safety at peak times
such as New Year’s Eve

* Installing new signage around fenced
playgrounds to improve community
safety through restricting access to
dogs in children’s play areas

* Providing community education
through articles on relevant issues such
as ‘scooping the poop’ encouraging
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dog owners to do the right thing and
clean up after their dogs in public

e Ceasing the hire of cat traps and
citronella collars as these practices are

no longer recommended by the RSPCA.
2019/2020 Animal Management Statistics:

Wandering at
Large

Issue Complaints Action taken by
received council
Dogs 1o 35 returned to

owner before
impounded

36 impounded
at AWL

28 returned
to owner from
AWL

32 expiations
issued

Issue Complaints Action taken by
received council

Nuisance 12 Positively

Barking resolved

Complaints O expiations
issued

Dog 13 8 expiations

Harassment issued

/Attack

Complaints

Cats 29* 90 impounded

Complaints at AWL
(generally feral/
un-owned/
litters)

*Note: one complaint may relate to multiple cats
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Local Nuisance and Litter Control

Under the Local Nuisance and Litter
Control Act 2016, Council has a
responsibility to investigate complaints
relating noise, smoke, dust, odour, litter,
waste and unsightly conditions, and take
appropriate action including education
and enforcement.

2019/2020 Local Nuisance and Litter
Control Statistics:

Issue No of No of No of
complaints | expiations | abatement
received issued notices

issued

Noise 57 ] 0

nuisance

Smoke/ 26 0 1

dust/

odour

Unsightly 21 2 5

conditions

Litter/ 468 6 0

waste

Bees and Wasps

Council Officers attended to 66 complaints
relating to both bee and European Wasp
issues and located and destroyed 7
European wasp nests.

Development Assessment

During 2019/2020, City of Prospect
received 584 development applications,
which is an increase of 30 applications
compared with the previous year. The total
value of applications received (excluding
project staging applications) was $103.9
million, which is $3.8 million more than

the 2018/2019 financial year. These figures
show a continuing level of development
activity and despite economic impacts of
COVID-19 from March 2020, this outcome
represents the fifth consecutive financial
year in which the value of development
applications lodged with City of Prospect
exceeded $100 million. By way of
comparison that the total value of all
development applications received by City
of Prospect in 2012/2013 (immediately
prior to the introduction of the Urban
Corridor Zone) was $45.6 million.

Ninety one Development Applications
were lodged within the Urban Corridor
Zone during the 2019/2020 financial year,
with a total value of $58 million (excluding
project staging applications). This is

$25 million more than the total value of
applications lodged within the Urban
Corridor Zone in the 2018/2019 financial
year.

City Planning

City of Prospect’s Heritage Grant Program
approved ten properties for funding in a
range of Historical Conservation Policy
Areas or to Local Heritage Items.

One grant application was not allocated
funding as part of the 2019/2020 process.
The $16,000 allocated by Council will

lead to restoration work with a value of
$64,060 (total value of works) and the
activities undertaken included new roofs
and front verandahs, repair and re-pointing
of front walls, front fencing and gates as
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well as repairs of front windows.

As part of the ongoing implementation

of the Planning, Development and
Infrastructure Act 2016, which will
significantly reform the South Australian
planning and development system, Council
is continuing to provide commentary to
the State on a number of technical matters
as part of the consultation processes on
the Planning and Design Code.

In early 2020, the State Planning
Commission and Department of Planning,
Transport and Infrastructure (DPTI)
indicated that councils can undertake a
Development Plan Amendment (DPA)

to ‘upgrade’ Contributory Items to Local
Heritage Places if they are able to be
assessed as meeting the Local Heritage
Criteria. A detailed investigation by Council
staff and independent heritage consultant
Hosking Willis Architects considered each
of the existing 169 Contributory Items

to determine whether they are suitable
for inclusion in the Planning and Design
Code as Local Heritage Places. Ultimately,
Hosking Willis Architects consider that

59 Contributory Items achieve the

Local Heritage Place criteria and were
recommended to be upgraded. A draft
Statement of Intent is being prepared to
commence that formal process.

The planning team were reaching
conclusion of the Housing Diversity and
Desirable Neighbourhoods Study during
the reporting period; which includes

a suite of investigations as well as
stakeholder and community engagement
to assist Council in advocating for an
updated policy position for the future of
the Residential Zones under the provisions
of the Planning and Design Code. It is also
designed to inform the development of
guidelines and related documents that will
assist stakeholders to comprehensively
understand Prospect’s existing and desired
built form landscape characteristics.

Sound asset management is a key to the
financial sustainability for City of Prospect.
Council has an obligation to ensure that
current assets are managed efficiently and
effectively and that decisions regarding
the renewal, upgrade, maintenance

of assets is undertaken openly and
transparently. The management of assets
needs to consider financial, social and
environmental factors in decision making.

The development of Asset Management
Plans documents the way Council
manages its assets, and ensures
compliance with legislative requirements.
Asset Management Plans set out the costs
to Council to provide the required levels of
service over the 10 year long term financial
planning period (LTFP).

Draft Asset Management Plans are
developed for all Council owned assets,
including:

Description of Assets
within Category/Class

Category/Class

Road pavement & seal,
kerbing, car parks,
footpaths, kerb & gutter,
traffic control devices

1. Transport

2. Stormwater Pipes, pits, pump station
and other drainage

infrastructure

3. Buildings Council-owned buildings
& storage sheds either
occupied by Council or

others, public toilets

4. Plant &
Equipment

Cars, trucks, utes, heavy
equipment and other
vehicle types

5. Open Space Irrigation, playgrounds, park

furniture, oval lighting

Council administration is in the process
of finalising Asset Management Plans to
present to Council in late 2020.

Kerb and Gutter Reconstruction Program

Council completed the renewal of close
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to one kilometre of kerb and gutter
throughout the City, which included a full
kerb renewal in Rolfe Street, Murray Street
and Winter Terrace. The works consist of
the reconstruction of kerb in conjunction
with road works where the existing kerb
has either lifted due to tree roots to cause
ponding issues, or has exceeded its useful
life and has deteriorated beyond the point
of repair.

New kerbs and gutter improves
stormwater management along a road
by ensuring adequate flow of water to
our underground drainage systems, and
improves the amenity and integrity of a
new road surface.

We have continued to include tree

inlet watering system installation when
undertaking kerb renewals, to provide
additional watering for street trees, and to
prevent issues with ponded water should
the kerb lift again due to tree roots.

Road Resurfacing and Reconstruction
Program

Council’s 2019/2020 Road Renewal
Program included the resurfacing of close
to 7,000m? of roads in the City, which
equates to over one thousand tonnes of
asphalt. The roads were resurfaced with
asphalt containing 50% recycled materials,
and included the renewal of Murray Street,
Mawson Street, Stuart Road, Second
Avenue and Rolfe Street.

The local road network forms part of

the City’s streetscape and amenity, and

is a key asset. Council is committed to
providing a high level of service to improve
road safety for motorists, pedestrians and
cyclists moving within and throughout the
City.

Streetscape Upgrade of Prospect Road

The undergrounding of power lines along
Prospect Road (from Regency Road to
Angwin Avenue) and improvements to
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the footpaths marked the completion of
a 12 stage project over 25 years in a joint
project between SA Power Networks,
City of Port Adelaide Enfield and City

of Prospect, with a total cost of $13.14m
(of which City of Prospect contributed
$2.36m).

Grant Funding for Infrastructure Projects

The projects that Council delivers would
not be possible without grant funding,
and as such we actively seek funding

from Federal and State governments

to minimise the reliance on rate income

to deliver improved new and improved
facilities and spaces for our community.
Council was successful in securing funding
contributions as below to deliver great
projects for our community.

Grant funding is usually subject to a 50/
50 contribution by the funding body and
Council, although this can vary depending
on the grant conditions.

Source Project

Churchill Road Master Plan
(Stage 3 of 3)

State Government’s
2019/2020 Planning
and Development
Fund

Prospect Gardens / Narnu
Wirra Redevelopment

State Government’s
2019/2020 Planning
and Development
Fund

Broadview Oval / Yarnta
Tutu yarta Dog Park and
Playspace Upgrade

Fed Gov: Open
Space and Places for
People funding

Fed Gov: Open
Space and Places for
People funding

Charles Cane Reserve /
Parndo Yerta

Property Maintenance and Renewal

Council owns and maintains a number of
community assets that are highly utilised
by residents and visitors, which require
ongoing maintenance and periodic
upgrades or renewals to ensure that their
important function continues. Significant
maintenance and upgrade projects that
were undertaken this year (including
projects straddling two financial years)
included:

* Broadview Sports & Recreation
Precinct / Yarnta Tutu yarta Dog Park
and Playspace Upgrade

« Charles Cane Reserve / Parndo Yerta
Public Toilet and Change Rooms
Upgrade

e Charles Cane Reserve / Parndo Yerta
Playspace and Fitness Hub (design)

 JW Rattley Reserve Playground
Upgrade

* Vine Plaza Upgrade (design)
* Nailsworth Hall Upgrade (design)

e Prospect Gardens / Narnu Wirra
Upgrade

* Collinswood Shopping Centre Precinct
Upgrade

* Asbestos removal at St Helens Park
Rotunda and the Prospect District
Cricket Club

In addition to works identified and
delivered by Council, the Community
Facility Upgrade Grant Program provided
local groups and organisations an
opportunity to apply for part funding

to support facility upgrades that will be
of benefit to the Prospect community.
Grants of up to 50% of total costs for
facility upgrades or equipment purchases
were made available and Council received
a large number of applications.

Priority was given to projects that are new
and innovative and aim to satisfy an unmet
community need, as well as projects that
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have no alternative sources of funding
and that have not previously received
funding from Council. Successful projects
included:

* Blair Athol Tennis Club - a new
defibrillator

* Prospect Broadview Bowling Club -
new storage facility and signage

* Prospect Community Garden -
replacement of a pergola

* Prospect Petanque Club - new
dishwasher and external pavement

* Prospect RSL - new solar panel system

* Prospect Tennis Club - new nets and
facility upgrades

* North Adelaide Croquet Club - new air
conditioning unit

* Prospect and Enfield Kindergym - new
play equipment

* Prospect District Cricket Club - new
nets.

Green Tunnel Program

The Green Tunnel Program targets areas
throughout our City identified as having
low tree canopy cover as well as locations
where street trees have been removed
either due to age, ill health or damage.
The aim is to plant these areas with
additional street trees so as to form a
green leafy tunnel in future years.

The Green Tunnel Program will provide
a range of environmental, social and
economic benefits, and 302 street trees
were planted throughout the City in
2019/2020.

Park Trees

A total of 26 trees were also planted
throughout our parks and reserves to
either replace trees or increase tree
plantings.

Maintenance preserves the overall
character and amenity of our streetscapes
and much loved, well used open spaces.
The City Maintenance Team’s purpose is to
create a safe and enjoyable environment
for all to enjoy through the provision of

a range of reactive and programmed
maintenance services.

Reactive Services and Customer Requests

We welcome customer feedback from the
community regarding maintenance issues
identified throughout the City and apply a
risk based approach to prioritise repairs.

With community safety always front of
mind, Rapid Response staff are available
staff 24 hours a day, 7 days a week to
respond to customer requests for urgent
issues such as those that occur during
storm events.

In 2019/2020, approximately 3,404
requests were entered into Council’s
Customer Request Management System
for City Maintenance related issues. These
include not only requests from members
of the community but also those entered
by staff who identify and record issues
when out in the field.

Proactive Maintenance Services

The City Maintenance team is an agile
multi-skilled team capable of delivering
both horticulture and civil maintenance
across our City. Works are programmed
in accordance with the Annual Works Plan
that has been developed to ensure the
following services are routinely scheduled
and delivered across the year:

Seasonal and Cyclic Works

Street sweeping/blowing
Sanitation

Weed spraying

Tree watering
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Parks and Reserves Maintenance ¢ Sign maintenance

« Lawn mowing and maintenance * Drain maintenance

e Garden bed and plant maintenance Main Roads

* Tree maintenance

* Irrigation maintenance

e Playground safety inspections and
maintenance

* Sanitation

* Paving/bitumen repairs

* Graffiti removal

* Garden bed maintenance and weeding
* Footpath maintenance

* Tree maintenance

e Graffiti removal

* Irrigation maintenance

* Sanitation

Sporting Grounds (turf maintenance)

e Turf mowing and maintenance
* Cricket wicket preparation

e Line marking

* Irrigation maintenance

Precinct Services

* Footpath repairs

* Road repairs

« Kerb and gutter repairs

* Street tree pruning (footpath and road
clearance)

==
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=
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Waste Processing

Waste management continues to be a key
focus of Council. City of Prospect collected
8,746.78 tonnes of waste as part of its
kerbside collection. 54.07% of this waste,
namely compostable waste, recyclables
and E-waste, was diverted from landfill.

2020 2019 Trend

Tonnes recycling
waste diverted from
landfill

1,787.34  1,682.18

A

Tonnes food and
organic waste
diverted from
landfill

2,943.24 | 2,662.64

A

Tonnes general 4,016.20| 3,910.55

waste collected

Tonnes hard waste 339 345.22

collected

<

Kerbside collection 54.07% 52.56%

diversion from

landfill rate

Waste Education

Council continues to develop ways

of promoting our message to the
community to reduce waste to landfill and
contamination of other waste streams. A
range of actions undertaken included:

* Articles in Your Prospect magazine.

* Waste education on Council’s website
including brochures, recycling and
composting information, E-waste and
hard waste information.

* Delivered community workshops
in partnership with East Waste and
KESAB Environmental on Cooking with
food scraps, Why waste it when you
can compost it?, How to set up a worm
farm, Composting at home, Is it really
being recycled? National Recycling
Week Presentation, Virtual tours of
Jeffries composting plant, NAWMA’s
recovery materials facility, landfill sites

and local business involved in circular
economy, Which bin and where does
it go?, Make your own beeswax wraps
and DIY cleaning and personal care
products.

Delivered education workshops to
school in partnership with East Waste
and KESAB Environmental. Activities
included: Statewide Education Centre
excursion, Waste and Recycling
Presentation, Papermaking incursion
and supply of the Mini Bin Game.

* Promotion of MyLocalServices apps for
access to collection calendars, waste
tips and A-Z information on what goes
where straight from your phone.

* Promotion of State Government’s
Which Bin? campaign.

* Moving towards zero waste at all
Council community events.

* As part of Council’s commitment to
reduce printing unnecessary paper, the
annual Waste Calendar is no longer
be printed and information is available
electronically via Council’s website.

Household Bin Audit 2019

A comprehensive bin audit was conducted
by East Waste. Material from 100
households in Prospect was collected,
separated into approximately 100
categories, weighed, and counted. The
results provide an enormous insight into
the disposal behaviours of our community
and the opportunities to improve landfill
diversion rates to reduce Council’s

waste processing costs and improve
environmental outcomes related to
resource recovery.

Kitchen Organics Basket

Council continues to offer and supply
residents with kitchen organics baskets,
including 150 compostable (corn starch)
bags to help assist with the collection
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of food scraps for disposal into organics
(lime green) lid bin. The food scraps

are processed into compost rather

than landfill, which is a much better
environmental option and is cheaper than
sending to landfill.

A Green Industries SA grant for the
Kerbside Performance plus Food Organics
Incentive Scheme provides kitchen
organics baskets and education materials
for another 1,000 households.

Compost Bins and Worm Farms

Council continues to offer residents a
rebate for the purchase of compost bins
and worm farms through the ‘Compost
Bin and Worm Farm Incentive Scheme’.
Residents may receive a rebate of $20
towards the purchase cost of these
products as acknowledgement of your
commitment to reduce landfill.

Circular Procurement Pilot Project

Nine SA councils, including Prospect,
have bought over 17,000 tonnes of
recycled materials in the first six months
of a pilot project aimed at supporting the
development of a circular economy in
South Australia. The nine councils, led by
the Local Government Association (LGA),
signed a Memorandum of Understanding
in September 2019 with funding provided
through a Green Industries SA grant,
committing them to prioritising recycled
content through their procurement
processes.

Since tracking purchases from January
2020, the councils have:

Identified over 150 suppliers of
recycled-content products and
materials available in SA,

* Made more than 450 individual
purchases of these products,

Bought over 17,000 tonnes (or 13,000

City of Prospect - Annual Report 2019/2020
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cars worth!) of recycled materials,

 Bought 106 tonnes of recycled plastic
(the equivalent of 177,000 households’
milk bottles for a year!).

As part of City of Prospect’s Annual

Road Renewal Program in 2019/2020 we
partnered with our asphalt contractor to
install asphalt with 50% recycled content
on all our roads, including recycled
aggregate, glass, toner cartridges, rubber,
and plastic bags.

Our roads alone diverted over 741,000
plastic bags and 21,000 printer cartridges
from landfill.

Implementation of Resilient East, Climate
Ready Eastern Adelaide

Resilient East is a regional climate initiative
between state and local government
organisations in eastern Adelaide. The year
saw a range of research, collaboration,
trialling, community projects and

outreach that have continued to optimise
understanding, future investments and
prioritise work for future years, this
includes:

« Completion of a study looking at the
monetised benefits of water sensitive
urban design (WSUD) for five Resilient
East on-ground projects,

* Participation in the Australian Red
Cross Climate Ready Champions
program, expanding our understanding
of community needs,

« WSUD for a Resilient East report,
demonstrating the breadth and
diversity of WSUD use, effectiveness
and knowledge within our region,

* A research project on the risk to
productivity for councils during days of
extreme heat,

* Organising a Cool Infrastructure Forum
for staff, and subsequent trials of cool

road products in City of Adelaide and
Campbelltown City Council,

Analysis of canopy LIDAR (light
detection and ranging) data, to improve
data of current canopy percentages
and provide a benchmark to work with
for potential analysis,

Multiple submissions, advocacy and
engagement on State Government’s
planning reform, most specifically on
the draft Phase Three of the Planning
and Design Code,

Renewal of the Sector Agreement for
another five years,

Developing the draft action plan to
2025,

Fostering stronger partnerships,
working collaboratively, storytelling
and sharing learnings within councils,
across councils and with governments,
external organisations and
communities.
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Business and Economic
Development

During the COVID-19 lockdown City of
Prospect quickly adapted to provide a
new level of support for local businesses.
City of Prospect responded to the
unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic with
a $620,000 Prospect COVID Recovery
Package. This is in addition to an improved
hardship provision for all community and
business ratepayers to enable deferment
of rates to take pressure off of cash flow.

The response was in two key areas: the
Prospect Delivers program and Rate
Remissions.

Prospect Delivers

The Prospect Delivers program provided
meals to vulnerable community members
from Prospect’s ‘locked down’ café and
food service sector, and injected up to
$120,000 directly into the local economy.

Prospect Delivers was rolled out within 10
days of the decision by Council on 22 April
2020, with the first vouchers being hand
delivered into targeted letter boxes on 1
May 2020.

Over a seven week period 555 vulnerable
residents (generally locals over the age
of 65) were delivered over 4,400 meal
vouchers at a value of $25 each to spend
on meals from 25 of Prospect’s cafes and
restaurants. This provided much needed
cash for businesses whose visitation had
collapsed, while helping the vulnerable
stay home and limit their potential
exposure to the pandemic.

The program received excellent
community response from the vulnerable
residents with 29 unsolicited emails and a
number of thank you cards. An example of
the appreciation is:

“Thank you to the Prospect Council very
much for the meal vouchers ... it's been

absolutely a joy... it’s been lovely able to try
different cuisines ... a real bright spot in
my life”.

Rate Remissions

City of Prospect further responded to the
pandemic by waiving and remitting of

rates was estimated to be $500,000. The
key components included rate remissions
for commercial businesses who had been:

* Forced to close or had their trade
modified by Government regulation.
These businesses received 100%
remission for rates in the current
quarter.

+ Closed/impacted trade due to impact
of COVID-19. These businesses received
50% remission for rates in the current
quarter.

Network Prospect Webinar Series

As part of City of Prospect’s COVID
response, Network Prospect shifted its
business events (designed to upskill local
operators) from in-person events held
every month, to fortnightly webinars
specifically targeted to help businesses in
their rapid digital transformation bought
on by the pandemic. City of Prospect has
increased a sharp spike in registrations

by shifting online, holding 5 live streamed
events between mid-April 2020 and the
end of financial year. This format has
allowed registered participants to rewatch
the webinars online, creating hundreds of
additional views after the event on private
links.

Village Heart Marketing Fund

Mainstreets like Prospect Village Heart
are in competition with a wide range of
other main streets and retailers, including
the Parade at Norwood, Burnside Village,
O’Connell Street North Adelaide and
Adelaide’s CBD.

Prospect Road has had the Village Heart
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Marketing Fund for three years and
following requests from local business
and property owners, extended the

geographical area in 2019/2020, increasing

the budget.

Fees for the Village Heart Marketing
Fund, Separate Rate were waived for the
fourth quarter 2019/2020. Council has
continued it digital marketing efforts and
local businesses have been enjoying a
busy mainstreet as a result of increased
visitation following Council initiatives to
keep businesses open.

Prospect Innovation Awards

The Prospect Innovation Awards were
announced at Prospect Palace Nova
theatre on 25 June 2020.

The event was attended by Minister for
Innovation and Skills Hon David Pisoni,
local MP and Minister for Child Protection
Hon Rachel Sanderson, Mayor David
O’Loughlin, Deputy Mayor Matt Larwood,

Councillor Alison De Backer, Prospect CEO
Nigel McBride, Marissa Schulze, Chair of
Prospect Business Leaders and a wide
range of local innovators.

A judging panel of leading innovators,
academics, business and entrepreneurs
awarded four local applicants $12,500 in
grants in three categories.

The four winners of the Prospect
Innovation Awards were:

* Enee Solutions - Start Up Award.
Received $5,000 for the Business
Continuity Planner to help businesses
develop a plan during an emergency.

* The Physio Clinic - SME Award.
Received $4,000 for the Standing up
for Hips and Knees program to develop
fitness programs during isolation.

* 1UP Digital - SME Award. Received
$2,500 for three Prospect Road Trivia
Crawl nights to promote Prospect Road
to local audiences using social media.
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* Blackfriars - Education award. Received
$1,000 for the Back Yard Poultry
project to promote sustainability and
business skills.

Prior to COVID-19

The Business & Innovation team have been
effective in promoting local businesses.
This is evidenced by positive business
growth of nearly 40 new businesses in
City of Prospect per annum over the last
four years. This growth in business has
been in part simulated by the strength

of Prospect’s brand in the business
community, nbn™ and the training
workshops of Network Prospect.

As a result of our revitalisation of Prospect
and Churchill roads and the new Urban
Corridor Zones, Prospect has seen a
spectacular increase in apartment and
commercial development. One of the
most recent developments, the cinema
complex on Prospect Road, has seen foot
traffic and vibrancy increase. Council has
also introduced a GigCity Network on
Prospect Road that delivers speeds of

up to 10 Gigabits per second and as such
will support new opportunities for office
development with a focus on high end
telecommunications companies.

In addition, an Investment Attraction
Strategy for Main North Road and North
East Road is being implemented. The
combination of these new technologies,
strategies and promotional platforms

is highlighting the development
opportunities focused on City of
Prospect’s corridors, while still maintaining

residential amenity in our suburban streets.

Investment Attraction

City of Prospect is seeking to attract new
businesses and development to increase
the vitality of its commercial roads.
Prospect Road has been a consistent
winner of Mainstreet Awards both for its

marketing and its vibrancy. In an effort

to further this type of local investment,
Business and Innovation staff are taking a
hands-on, one-on-one approach to meet
with potential investors, property owners,
and businesses. This approach has seen
number of new investments and projects
begin to take shape, both in the Village
Heart and across the City, including the
sale of a long held development site. We
look forward to these projects beginning
soon.

Nature Foundation

We were pleased to welcome Nature
Foundation to the top floor tenancy

at Payinthi, Council’s new premises on
Prospect Road. Nature Foundation is a
leading not-for-profit foundation that
invests in conserving, restoring and
protecting South Australian landscapes,
flora and fauna. Active in South Australia
for nearly 40 years, they have helped
protect over one million hectares of the
state. Hugo Hopton, Nature Foundation’s
CEO said they were attracted to

Prospect by the excellent community

vibe on Prospect Road and the world
class connectivity. The GigCity Adelaide
network with its super-fast broadband has
been useful for everything from phones to
GIS mapping work.

Smart City

Prospect is now the most-awarded Smart
City in the nation. City of Prospect won
two Smart City awards in 2019/2020:

* Once again, being named one of the
Intelligent Community Forum, Smart 21
Smartest Cities in the world (October
2019);

e Received a National Built Environment
Award for Connected Cities network,
Smart Cities Council (October 2019).

The most prestigious award is Prospect’s
inclusion in the top 21 Smart Cities in
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the world. The awards were announced

in Rochester, New York on 22 October
2019. This is the seventh time that City

of Prospect has won this award! The top
21 Intelligent Communities were from 10
nations including Issy-les-Moulineaux,
France and Rochester, New York. Prospect
is one of three Australian cities on the list.

Prospect Property Network

In September 2019 City of Prospect
established the Prospect Property
Network group to work with the property
sector to promote the benefits of
development in the Council area.

The first Prospect Property Network
event was held at Northpoint Toyota with
presentations from Kate Gray of Colliers
International and Pat Gerace, CEO of the
Urban Development Institute of Australia
(SA). This event was attended by 80
people, representing a mix of property
developers, real-estate professionals, and
investors. This project represents a strong
first step into Prospect’s new approach to
investment attractions, by strengthening
the relationship between City of Prospect
and investors.

The Prospect Property Network also
hosted an event in the new Payinthi
building to promote the Bloom
development which is currently under
construction at 132 Prospect Road
adjacent to Payinthi. This event resulting in
a number of properties being sold off the
plan.

Strategic Sites

In April 2020, the Council adopted
guidelines for the Strategic Sites Program.

The Program seeks to:

* promote quality urban design
outcomes in Prospect;

* promote the development of larger and
underutilised sites.

This project will roll out in 2020/2021,
with an initial focus on helping bring
underutilised sites to market, and
supporting local construction jobs.

French Quarter Plan

City of Prospect adopted the Creating a
French Quarter plan in February 2020. The
creation of a French Quarter in Prospect is
the aim of the Plan. The Plan seeks to build
off the $50 Billion submarine contract to
work on a number of levels, from cultural
events to residential housing, to education
programs, and business attraction.

Communications Strategy
City of Prospect Website

The new look and feel of our Council
website was launched in March 2019.
During the development of the new look
Council website, the Local Government
Association engaged a new supplier

to deliver a replacement Content
Management System to operate the ‘back
end’ of our website. Prospect worked
closely with staff at the Local Government
Association to perform a seamless
migration with minimal impacts to user
experience. Transferring to this Content
Management System has also allowed for
improvements to be made to our website.

Prospect Magazine - Your Prospect

In September 2019, a decision was made
to change the look and feel of “Your
Prospect’ magazine. The changes included
moving the magazine to a ‘non-glossy’,
uncoated paper, and changing the design
of the content. In January 2020, we moved
to an Australia Post unaddressed mail drop
delivery system, being the first council in
Australia to trial this system. This allowed
us to move away from plastic sleeves and
also represents big cost savings for our
community.
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Financial Management

For 2019/2020, Council has either
achieved or exceeded all of its

Key Financial Indicators. The focus

of 2019/2020 budget was on the
continuation of the replacing and
renewing of existing infrastructure assets,
while completing the construction of
Payinthi.

Although Council continues to be largely
dependent on residential rates income to
fund its operations, Council is beginning
to see growth in the rate revenue from
the corridor roads and non-residential
sector. This growth was originally
initiated by Council’s investment of
recent years in the Prospect Road and
Churchill Road Masterplans. Development
growth is being experienced in residential
rate income as new developments are
constructed following the changes in
2013 to the Inner Metro Development
Plan. The changes allowed increased
density of properties along the corridor
roads of Main North, Prospect and
Churchill.

Council has a Long Term Financial Plan
to ensure its financial viability into

the future. This plan documents key
assumptions and the financial impact of
the policy decisions over future years.
In developing this Plan and the Annual
Budget for 2019/2020, Council has
continued to keep its overall rate increase
at a ‘modest’ level, with the average
residential rate increase for 2019/2020
being 3.33% plus Growth.

Council presented an operating deficit
for the 2019/2020 year of approximately
$11k. This surplus represents 0.0% of

the total adopted Operating Income for
2019/2020. In 2019/2020 approximately
$8.95m was spent on capital expenditure.
$5.9m of this was spent in the
rejuvenation or replacement of assets

already owned by Council to continue
to enhance the longevity of service
provision for the community.

Council achieved 2 out of 3 key financial
indicators targets and exceeded a third
one of its key financial indicators, as

set out in its Annual Business Plan.
Indicators continue to be on track with
the target ranges identified in the Long
Term Financial Plan and are a positive
reflection on the work of staff and
Council Members during 2019/2020.

In the month of June in recent years, the
Federal Government has paid amounts of
untied financial assistance grants, which
are recognised on receipt, in advance of
the year of allocation. Council received
an advance payment of $371,063 for the
2020/2021 year in June 2020.

2020/2021 Draft Annual Business Plan
and Budget Consultation

Various forms of community consultation
were provided regarding the Annual
Business Plan 2020/2021. These were
modified to support physical distancing
requirements at the time due to the
COVID-19 global pandemic but to
maintain a level of connection and
feedback from the community, the
following events were held:

« Engagement Hub:
- Online poll
- Online ideas wall
- Submission feedback form

* Youth Focus Group Forums with local
high school students (Blackfriars
Priory and Prescott College)

* Interactive public webinar
» Website and other written submissions

The results of the consultation were
reported to Council on 23 June 2020.
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Rates and Property Administration

Property values are used as a basis for
determining what share of the total rate
revenue individual ratepayers are to pay.
The property values used by the Council
are independently set by the Valuer-
General.

Ratepayers can object to the valuation

if they believe it is inaccurate. A total of
52 valuation objections were received by
Council via the Valuer-General in respect
of 2019/2020 rates levied.

As a result of property valuation
increases and natural growth on the
City’s valuation, created by subdivisions
and building approvals, taking into
account of Council’s rating strategy,
Council’s rate revenue increased from
$20.2m to $21.1m in 2019/2020.

Council again acted as a collection
agency for the Natural Resources
Management Levy, which is used by the
State Government to improve water
quality in the catchment areas.

A number of opportunities for
community consultation were provided
during the year for the community to
provide input. The rating framework for
2020/2021 was presented and discussed
as part of activities for the 2020/2021
Draft Annual Business Plan and Budget
Consultation, as detailed above.

Rates in our City are determined based
on the capital value of the property -
which includes both the value of the land
and the value of any buildings or other
structures. The overall capital value for all
properties in our city is made up of 92%
residential, 7% non-residential and the
remaining 1% as vacant land.

Information Technology

Council continues its commitment to
maintain Information Technology (IT) and
systems that enables its employees to
perform their responsibilities efficiently
as well as enabling customers to interact
with Council electronically.

Several months of IT infrastructure
planning was completed to prepare
Payinthi for our community and
occupation by Council, including time
to fine tune services in the new building.
Significant effort was spent refreshing
IT desktop equipment and vacating the
Thomas Street Centre and Walkerville
Depot sites and included the disposal of
redundant and end of life IT equipment.

Following the introduction of COVID-19
restrictions in early 2020, City of
Prospect’s IT team prepared laptops
and PCs for staff to work remotely.
Approximately 55 staff had Council
hardware prepared and enabled to work
from home. Customer Services similarly
worked remotely, operating the phone
system and call queues with mobile
phones, whilst also continuing to deliver
council services at the front counter.
Several operational procedures were
reviewed and modified to ensure core
services were maintained during the
COVID-19 crisis.

Various ‘behind the scenes’ activities
were impacted by the COVID-19 crisis
during the year, but have since gained
momentum, including software and
hardware upgrades to ensure equipment,
tools and systems are available for
employees to perform their work and
interact with the community. This
includes the progressing of a major
upgrade of City of Prospect’s enterprise
application suite and additional
technology to assist general operations
for field staff.
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Financial Statements 2020

City of Prospect

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Council to certify the financial statements in thelr final form.

In cur opinion:

« the accompanying fnancial statements comply with the Loca! Govermvment Act 1899, Local Government {Financial
Management] Regulations 20717 and Australian Accounting Standasds,

+  the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council's financial position at 20 June 2020 and the results
of its operations and cash Aows for the financial vear,

internal controls implemented by the Council provide a reascnable assurance that the Council's financial records are
compiete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

+ the financial siatements accurately reflect the Council's accounting and other reconds.

Drandid O'Loy in
Mayor

2T Oclober 2020 27 October 2020
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City of Prospect

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020

$'000 Hotes 2020 2019
Income

Rates 2n 21,713 20,802
Statutory Charges ™ ] 573
User Charges e ey | 265
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 25 1,682 2,266
Investment Income 2 109 186
Reimbursements 2e TV 70
Cther income r 454 288
Met Gain - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 198} 32 20
Total Income 24 B85 24 570
Expenses

Ermployers costs %a 9,305 8,280
Materials, Contracts and Cther Expenses % 10,144 10,621
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 3c 4 805 4135
Finance Cosls M B35 702
MNet koss - Equily Accounted Councll Businesses 18a) T -
Total Expenses 24,897 23,7289
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) (11} 841
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments 4 1,608 (541)
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 2 234 1.075

Net Surplus / (Deficit) 1921 1375

Other Comprehensive Income
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to
operating result

Changes in Revaluation Surplus - | PR&E a - 12,221
Total Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to

operating result - 12,221
Total Other Comprehensive Income - 12231
Total Comprehensive Income 1.921 13,596

The above Satement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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City of Prospect

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2020

3000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets
Trade & Other Recewables
Mon-Current Asselts Held for Sale
Total current assets

HNen-current assets

Financial Assets

Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses
Cther Mon-Current Assets

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

Total non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables
Borrowings

Provisions

Total Current Liabilities

Nen-Current Liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Met Assets

EQUITY

Accumulated surplus
Asset revaluation reserves
Cther reseves

Total Equity

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Financial Statements 2020

381
1,666
1,771

3828

1,347
139
250
192,603
194 543

198,371

5183
1,369
1,953

5,485

15,007
118

15123
21,608

176,763

78,655
95,343

2,765

176,763

2018

1,088
2,087
3,451

7,507

1,344
114
14,511
174,845
190 814

198,321

5,274
a7
1,85

8,086

15,331
82
15,413

23,479
174,842

77,085
85,343
2414

174,842
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2020

§ 000

2020

Balance at the end of previcus reporting period
Adjustrments [Correction of Pnor Penod Errors)
Restated opening balance

Met Surplus f (Deficit) for Year

Other Comprehensive Income
- Gain {Less) on Revaluation of | PREE
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Transfers between Reserves
Balance at the end of period

2019

Balance at the end of previcus reporting period
Adjustments (Cormrecticn of Prior Period Errors)
Restated opening balance

Met Surplus / (Deficit) for Year

Other Comprehensive Income
= Gain {Less) en Revaluation of | PREE
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Transfers between Reserves
Balance at the end of period

Accumulated
Nobes surplus

77,085

77,085

¥

1,921

74,375
1,853
76,228

1,575

Ta -

1,375

(518)
77,085

83122

83,122

12.2M
12,221

12,221

85,343

The & bove Stalement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noes,

Financial Statements 2020

351
2,765

1,696

1,896

518
2,414

159,293
1,853
161,246

1,375
12,21
12 221

13,596

174,842
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City of Prospect

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020

'000 Hobes

Cash flows from operating activities

Recaipls

Rates Receipls

Statutory Charges

User Charges

Grants, Subsidies and Contributions (oparating purpose)
Investment Receipts

Reimbursemeants

Cther Receipts

Payments

Finance Payments

FPayments to Employees

Payments for Materials, Contracts & Cther Expenses
Met cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities L

Cash flows from investing activities

Amounts Receved Specihcally for NewUpgraded Assets
Sale of Replaced Assets

Repayments of Loans by Community Groups

Payments

Expenditure on RenewalReplacement of Assets
Expenditure on NewfUpgraded Assats

Met cash provided (or used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Receipts
Proceeds from Bormowings

Payments

Repayments of Borrowings

Repayment of Finance Lease Liabilities

MNet Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities

MHet Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at begmning of penod
Cash and cash equivalents held at end of period e

Additional Information:
Total Cash, Cash EQLIi'H"E|EI"ItE & Investments

The above Satement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanmying nobes.

Financial Statements 2020

2020

2,277

&N
2,738
109
v

(5836
(,868)
{12,770
2,681

1,203
4734
124

(5,887)
(3,063)
(2.889)

(508)
(62)
(670)

(578

1.068
391

391

2019

20958
573
285

1.273
1848
70
287

(702)
{8,2686)
{8,528)

5716

1.075
142
154

(8.843)

{6,237)
(14,809)

4,483

{1,045)
3,438

(5,655)

6724
1,069

1,069
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Motes to and forming part of the Principal Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Contents of the Notes accompanying the General Purpose Financial Statements

Mote Details Page
1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies B
2 Income 17
3 Expensas 20
4 Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments 21
5 Current Azsets 2
G Mon-Current Assets 2
T Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 24
B Liabilities 26
] Feserves 29
10 Assets Subject to Restrictions 30
11 Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows 30
12(a) Functions ]|
12(b) Components of Functions 3z
13 Financial Instrumerts 33
14 Capital Expenditure and Investment Froperty Commitments T
15 Financial Indicators 38
16 Uniform Presentation of Finances 41
17 Leases 42
18 Superannuation 43
19 Interests in Other Entities A4
20 Mon-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations 46
21 Contingencies & Assets/Lizbiliies Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet 46
22 Related Farty Transactions 47
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City of Prospect

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting palices adopted by Council in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below:

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless ctherwise stated,
{1} Basis of Preparation
1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis using the historical cost convention in
accordance wilth Australan Accounting Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entiies, olher authortative pronouncements
of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial repot was authorised for isue by cerificate under regulation 14 of the Local Governmen! (Financial
Marnagement) Reguiations 2071 dated 27 October 2020

1.2 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Council's accounting palicies.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumplions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are specifically referred 1o in the relevant sactions of these MNotes,

1.2 Rounding
All armounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars (5'000).
1.4 Impact of COVD-1% Global Pandemic

The COVID-18 pandemic has impacted the 2012-2020 financial statements, which may impact on the comparabdity of some
line ®eéms and amounts reparted in this financial repart.

The financial impacts are a direct result of ether Council's response to the pandermas or due to the mandatory shut downs as
directed by the Australian Government and the advice from the Australian Government Department of Health and SA Health,

The impacts on the Council's financial performance and financial position are outlined below:

*  Decrease in rates revenue of approx. 583 471.85 due to the remession of Quarter 4 commercial rates

= Decrease in rates revenue of apprex. $15,000 due 1o the suspension of fines and interest on late installments, as well
as debt collection procedures,

= Reduction in income of 560,000 related to business support in the form of tlemporary suspension of footpath trader fees
ard rent (including sports helkds, clubroormes and cence fees)

Council estimates that the reduction in revenue and increase in expenditure resulted in a decrease of approximately $180.000
in the 20192020 net surplus. Itis expected that further financial impacts, though not significant, wall flow into the 2020-2021
financial year.

Council has considered the consequences of COVID-19 and other events and conditions, and it has determined that they do
not create a material uncertainty that casts significant doubt upon the Council's ability to continue as a going concern.

{2) The Local Government Reporting Entity

City of Prospect is incorporated under the South Australian Lecal Government sct 1983 and has its principal place of business
at 1 Themas Street, Nailsworth, South Australia 5083, These financial statements indlude the Council's direct operations and
all entities through which Council contrels resources to carry on its funclions, In the process of reporting on the Council as a
single unit, all ransachons and balances between activity areas and controlled enthies have been eliminated

The principal activites and entities conducted other than in the Councils own name that have been included in these
consolidated financial statements are;

continued on next page ., Page 8 of 53
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Mote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

1. EasternWaste Management Inc, commonly known as East Waste (6.6% Cwmnership Interest; 14% Yoting Power). Council
joined this organisation on 1 Cotober 2017
2. Eastern Health Authority Inc [13% Ownership Interest, 20% Voting Power)

{2} Income Recognition

The Council recagnises revenue under AASE 1058 Incorme of Noi-for-Profit Entities (AASE 1058) or AASE 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers [AASE 15) when appropriate.

In cases where there 15 an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with “sufficently specilic’ perflormance obligations, the
transaction is accounted for under AASE 15 where income is recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied
{i.e. when it transfers control of a8 product or service to a customer). Revenusa is measured tasad on the consideration towhich
the Council expects 1o be entitied in a contract with a custamer.

In aother cases, AASE 1058 applies whan a nol-for-profit (MFP) entity enters into ransactions where the consideration to acquire
an asset is significantly bess than the fair value of the asset principally to enakle the entity to futher s chjectives. The excess
of the asset recognised [at fair value) over any ‘related amcunts’ is recognised as income immediately, except in the case
where a financial asset has been received to enable the coundil bo acquire of construct a recognisable non-financial asset that
is 1o be controlled by the council, In this case, the counal recognises the excess as a liabilly that s recognised over time in
profit and loss when (o as) the enlity satisfies its obligations under the transfer,

In recent years the payment of untied grants (financial assistance grants f local reads / supplementary local road grants) has
varied from the annual allocation a5 shown in the table below:

p“"'c_"ﬂ A"m Ciffemece
Recewed
201715 5765 746 £740,664 + 528,082
2018189 3046 056 ET48.645] + 5188120
2018020 G664 811 S750,152 - 574,241

Inclusive above, the 2019-2020 and 2020-201 Supplementary Local Road Grants of $201,204 was paid in advance in June
2019,

Because these grants are untied, the Australian Accounting Standards require that paymenls be recognised upon receipt.
Accordingly, the operating results of these penods have been distorted compared to those that would have been reported had
the grants been paid in the year to which they were allocated.

The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Note 15 has also been calculated after adjusting for the distortions resulting from
the diflerences between the actual grants received and the grants entitiements allocated.

Construction Contracts

Construction works undertaken by Council for third parties are generally on an agency basis where the third party reimburses
Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the reporting penod. Reimbursements not received are
recognised as receivables and reimbursements received in advance are recognised as “payments received in advance”.

For works undertaken on a fixed price contract basis, revenues are recognised over time using the input methed, with costs
incurred compared to total expected costs used as a measure of progress, When it is probable that total contract costs will
excesd tolal contract revenue, the expected kiss is recognised as an expense immediately.

continued on next page ., Page 9 of 53
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MNote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(4) Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments
Cash Assets include all amounts readily conwvertible to cash on hand at Council's option with an insignificant risk of changes
in vake with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables for rates and annual charges are secured over the subject land, and bear interest at rates determined in
accordance with the Local Governnment Act 1999, Cther receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear interest

All recevables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is
considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition, except for irade receivables from a contract with
a customer, which are measured at the transaction price. A detailed stalement of the accounting policies applied to financaal
instruments forms part of Mote 13,

(5) Inventories

Inventaries held in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual basis, after
adustment for loss of Service potential. Inventones held in respect of business undedakings have bean valued at the lower
of cost and net realisakle value.

5.1 Real Estate Held for Resale

Properties not acquired for developmeant, but which Council has decided to sell as surplus to requirements, are recognised at
the carrying value at the time of that decision. Settlements on these properties are scheduled within the next 12 manths

(8) Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
6.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initally recognised at cost For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as
fair value at the date of acquisition

All non-cumrent assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure isincurred and depreciated as soon as the
asset is held “ready for use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs incidental
to the acquisition, including architects' fees and engineering design fees and all other costs incurred, The cost of non-current
assels constructed by the Council indudes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct lakour on the project and an
appropriate proportion of vanable and fwed overhead

6.2 Materiality

Aszets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds materiality
thresholds established by Council lor each lype of assel In determiming (and in annually reviesang) such thresholds, regard
is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service Iite

Mo capitalisation threshold = applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

B.2 Subsequent Recognition

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular kasis such that the carrying values are not materially different from fair
value. Significant uncertainties exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of asset classes including land, buildings and

associated structures and infrastructure. Further detail of these uncertainties, and of existing valuations, methods and valuers
are provided at Note 7,

continued on next page .., Page 10 of 53
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MNote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Crther than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over their
useful Iives on a straight-Eine basis which, in the opinion of Council, best reflects the consumphion of the service potential
embodied in those assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually and reflected in Note Tb,
Major depreciation pericds for each class of asset are listed below. Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have been
estimated based cn the best information available to Council, but appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of these
assels are not available, and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.

Building & Olher Skuciures

Buildings 20 to 80 years
Sheds & Shelters 2510 35 years
Toilet Blocks, Storerooms & Clubrooms 40 to 50 years
Civic Centre & Grandstands B0 years
Infrastructure

Roads = Surface 13 to 80 years
Roads = Base G5 to 273 years
Kerb & Gutter 70 years
Foolpaths — Surface 15 to 30 years
Foolpaths — Base 40 o 160 years
Stormwater Drainage 100 years
Pipes 100 years
Side Entry Box Draing & Junction Boxes 30 years
Cpen Channel 70 years
Qther Assel Classes

Plant & Equipment Syears
Furniture & Fittings 5 to 10 years
Library Books Syears
Arbworks 100 years
Cpen Space 10 to 20 years
6.5 Impairment

Assets whose fulure economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and where the future economac
benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not subject to impairment testing

Cther assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (which is the higher of the present value of future cash inflows orvalue in use)

‘Where an assel that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such amount as stands
to the credit of that class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess bemng recognised as an expense

6.6 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing cosls in relation to qualifying assets (nel of offsetting investment revenue) have been capitalised in accordance with

AASE 123 “Borrowang Cosls”. The amounts of borrowing costs recognised as an expense or as part of the canrying amount of
qualifying assets are disclosad in Mote 3, and the amount {if any) of interest revenue cffset against borrowing costs in Mote 2,

continued on next page .., Page 11 of 53
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MNote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{7} Payables
74 Goods & Sarvices

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as [mbdites when the
goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of invoice. No interest s payable on
these amaounts.

7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts other than grants received from external parties in advance of sevice delivery, and security deposits held against
possible damage to Council assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage reinstated, or the
amount is refunded as the case may be.

(8) Borrawings

Borroeings ane intially recognised at far value, net of transaction cosls incurred and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of fransaction costs) and the redempticn amount is recognised in the income
statement cver the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method,

Borrowings are carmed at ther pnncipal amounts which represant the present value of future cash Hlows associated with
servicing the debt. Interest is accrued over the penod to which it relates, and is recorded as part of “Payables”.

{8) Employee Benefits
9.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilites far emplovees’ entitlernents to salaries, wages and compensated absences expecied to be paid or settled within
12 manties of reporing date are accrued at normanal amounts (includmng payroll based oncosts) measured in acoordance with
AASE 118

Liabilites for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 manths are measured as the present value of the
estimated luture cash outflows (induding payroll based oncests) to be made n respect of services provided by employvees up
to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government guaranteed securities rates with samaar matunty terms.

Mo accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each reporting period
is less than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this expenence is expected to recur in future reporting periods. Council
does not make payment for untaken sick leave and s nol required to pay any outstanding accrual to employees on cessabon

of employment.
4.2 Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Statewide Superannuation
Scheme The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently, Mo changes in accounting palicy
have cccurred during either the currant or previous reporting penicds. Details of the accounting policies applied and Councils
involvement with the schemes are reported in Note 15,

{10) Provisions for Reinstatemant, Restoration and Rehabilitation

Close down and restoration costs include the dismanting and demalition of infrastructure and the remaval of residual materials
and remediation and rehabiltation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are provided for in the
accounting period when the cbligation arising from the related disturbance occurs and are carried at the net present value
of estimated future costs

Although estimated future costs are based on a closure plan, such plans are based on current environmental requirements
which may change. Council's policy to maximise recycling is extending the operational life of these facilities, and significant
uncertainty exists in the estimation of the future closure date

continued on next page ., Page 12 of 53
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MNote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(11) Leases
Accounting policy applicable from 04 July 2019

The Council assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or containg, a lease. That is, if the contract corveys the right
to contral the use of an Wenlihed asset for a penod of time in exchange for consideraton,

11.1 Council as a lessee

The Council recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets

i} Right-of-Use-Assets

Thex Council recognises right-ol-use assels at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assels are measured al cost,
less any accumulated deprecmtion and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease labilibes. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease Babilties recognised, initial direct casts incurred, lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and the estimate of costs to be incurred to restore the
leased asset. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Land & Buildings (Depot Cohabitation) 10 years

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policses above - Impairment of non-financial
assels.

i} Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Council recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the leasa term In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Council uses its incremental
borrowing rate or the interest rate implicit in the lease.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Council applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (Le.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date). It also applies the low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be lowvalue. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assels ane recognsed as expansa on a straght-line bases aver the lease term.

(12) Equity Accounted Council Businesses

Counal particpates in cooperative arrangements with other Councils for the provision of services and laciies. Counal s
interests in cooperative arrangements, which are only recognised if material, are accounted for in accordance with AASE
126 and set out in detail in Mote 18,

{13) GST Implications

In accardance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Sarvices Tax”

Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and opearating expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable
Men-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.

Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

continued on next page .., Page 13 of 53
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Mote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{14) New accounting standards and UIG interpretations

In the cument year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations ssued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASE) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period. The
adoplion of the newand revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any material changes to Council's accounting
policies.

City of Frospect has not applied any Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

Adoption of AASE 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers and AASE 1058 income of Not-far-Profit Entities

The Council applied AASE 15 and AASE 1058, for the first time from 1 July 2019, AASE 1058 clarifies and simplfies the
income recognition requirements that apply to not-for-profit (NFP) entities, in conjunction with AASE 15. These Standards
supersede the NFP income recognition requirements previously in AASE 1004 Contributions (with the exception of certain
matters relating to public sector NFP entities) as well as current revenue recegnition guidance including AASE 118 Revenue,
AASE 111 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations. The timing of income recognition depends on whether such
a transaction gives rise 1o a liability or other performance cbligation (a promise to ransfer a good or service). Details of the
accounting policy adopted for these standards can be found in Nole 1 Significant Accounting Policies. The Council has elected
to adopt the modihied retrospective method on transibon o the new standards with an initial appcation date of 1 July 219, The
cumulative affect of initially applying AASE 15 and AASE 1058 is recognised at the date of initial application as an adjustment
to the opening balance of Accumulated Surplus. Therefora, the comparative information was not restated and continues to be
reported under AASE 111, AASE 118, AASS 1004 and related Interpretations.

Counal has elected to apply AASE 15 and AASE 1058 retrospectively only 1o conlracts and lransachons that were not
completed contracts at the date of intial applcation. Council did not have any transaction or contract that were not completed
contracts at the date of initial application. As a result, no adjustments were made to the opening balance of Accumulated
Surplus.

Council has delermined the impact of the new standards only impacted the iming of révenue recegnition in relation o special
purpose grants. These grants are provided to the Council to canstruct or acquire an asset to be contralled by the Coundil,
They are accounted for under AASE 1058 and as such, amounts recenved in relation to these grants are recorded as a liability
"Amounts in Advance” and recorded in revenue as the asset is constructed. The impact of adopling the new standards as at
1 July 219 was an increase to liabilibes of $068 000 and a decrease to Accumulated Surplus of $880,000

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line item is affected as at and for the year ended 30 June
2020 as a result of the adoption of AASE 15 and AASE 1058,

The first column shows amounts prepared under AASE 15 and AASE 1058 and the second column shows what the amounts
would have been had AASE 15 and AASE 1058 not been adopted:

Amounts prepared under | Ameounts prepared under Irroact
AASE 15 / 1058 Previous AASE e
£'000 £'000
lAmounts Received Specifically for New or
Upgraded A 5224 $1,202 -5060
Payments Received in Advance 5960 50 +E060
AMASE 16 Leases

The Council applied AASE 16 Leases, for the first ime from 1 July 2018 This standard requires that the right of use comveyed
by leasing contracts (except leases with a maximum term of 12 months and leases for low-value assets) be recognised as a
form of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment, and that the lease liability be disclosed as a liakility.

Adoption of AASE 16 Leases [AASB 16)

ABSE 16 supersedes AASE 117 Leases, Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and other
related Interpretations. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees o recognise most leases on the balance sheet under a single on-balance sheet model. Before
the adoption of AASE 16, the Council classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance leasa
of an operating lease,

continued on next page ., Page 14 of 53
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Mote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The Council applied AASE 16 retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognised at 1 July
2019 (comparatives were not restated)

The Councll recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified as operating leases,
except for short-term leases with lease terms that end within 12 months of the dale of initial application and leases of bw-value
assets. The night-of-use assels for all leases were recognised basad on the amount equal to the lease liabilities. Mo adjusiments
were needed for any previously recognised prepaid or accrued lease expenses as there were none. Lease lwbilites were
recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application.

The effect of adoption AASE 16 as at 1 July 2013 (increasefidecrease]) is, as follows:

$'000

|Assals
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equip
| Right-ol-Use-Assels 71

otal Assets 71
Liabilities
Interesi-bearing loans and bormowings 714
[Total Liabilities T15
Accumulated Surplus 0

The lease liabities as at 1 July 2018 can be reconciled to the operating lease commilments as of 30 June 2018, as follows:

$'000)
[Operating lease commitments as at 30 June 924
(2019
Effect of discounting using the weighted J
laverage incremental borrowing rate as at 1 -12
Wuly 2019 of 3.35%
Less:
ICommitments relating to short-term leases {85
Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2018 il |

Standards issued by the AASE not yet effective

The AASE has issued Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which are not effective at 30 June 2020, these
standards have nol been adopled by Council and will be included in the financial staterments on their effective date. Where
the standard s expected 1o have a signihcant impact for Council then further information has been provided in thes nole.

The following list icentifies all the new and amended Australian Accounting Standards, and Interpretation, that were issued
but not yet effective at the time of compiling these illustrative staterments that could be applicable to Councils

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

AASE 1088 Sevice Concession Amangements; Grantors

AASE 2MB-G Amendments lo Australia Accounting Standards — Definition of 8 Business

AASE 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Definition of Material

AASE 2018-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Effective for NFP annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

=  AASEB 17 Insurance Contracts

continued on next page ., Paege 15 of 53
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MNote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Effective for NFF annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

= AASE 2014-10 Sale or Conbribution of Assels between and Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (amended by
AASHE 2015-10 and AASE 2017.5)

(158) Comparative Figures

Te ensure comparability with the current reporting pericd's figures, some comparative period ling items and amounts may
have been reclassified or individually reported for the first time within these financial statements andfor the notes.

(16) Disclaimer

Mothing contained within these statements may be taken to be an admission of any labilty to any person under any
circumstance.

Page 15 of 53
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MNate 2. Income

§'000

{a) Rates

General Rates

General Rates
Less: Mandatory Rebales

Less: Remissions - COVID-18 Financial Suppant Package

Total General Rates

Other Rates (Including Service Charges)

Matural Resource Management Levy
Village Heart Separate Rate

Total Other Rates (Including Service Charges)

Other Charges

Penalties for Late Payment
Lagal & Cther Costs Recovered
Total Other Charges

Less: Descretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs

Total Rates

(b) Statutory Charges

Parking Fines ! Expiation Fees
Animal Registration Fees & Fines
Towm Plannmg Fees
Development Act Fees

Rate Searches

Total Statutory Charges

{¢) User Charges

Council Land Usage
Function and Event Charges
Rents & Fees

Services to Aged & Disabled
Payinthi Lease Income
Prospect Magazine - Income
Library Services

Haill & BEquipment Hire
Prospect Spring Fair Income

Metwork Prospect Events Digital Marketing - Income

Bi Annual Prespect Pretrall Prize - |ncome
Milk Depot Rental Income
Crher

Total User Charges

continued on next page ..

Financial Statements 2020

2020

21,604
{431)
(53)
21,080

G603

41

(26)

21,713

147
119

598

2019

20,594
(411)

20,283

10
574

a7
a7

(42)
20,902
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Mote 2. Income (continued)
£ '000 2020 2018
{d) Investment Income

Interest on Investments

- Local Govermnment Finance Authority 31 73
= Loans to Community Groups 78 113
Total Investment Income 1 186

(e) Reimbursements

Insurance Reimbursements 48 s
Private Works 10 33
Connected Cities Reimbursament ] 3
Fuel Tax Credit Reimbursement & 7
Digital Literacy = 3
Other 5 -
Total Reimbursements 77 70
(f) Other income

Open Space Development Fund Contrbution 177 140
Refund - Electricity Metwork Charges 124 -
Sponsarship 42 11
Insurance Specal Destnbution 41

Mmncr Asset Sale 22 -
Donations or Resources Contributed Received 14 7
Waste Management Cther Income 11 ]
Car Park Development Fund Contribution = 21
Plart Hire - Other Councils -
Other 17 10
Total Other income 454 288
(g) Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets

- Charles Cane f Parndo Yerta Revedelopment Grant A0 630
- Australian Men's Shed Development Program = 3
- GigCity Capital Contibution = 43
- Broadview Sports/ Yarnta Tutu Flayspace Grant = 380
- Rose Streel Reconstruction Contribution amd Grant = 16
- Connected Cities Grant Capital - 33
- Prespect Read Upgrade 114 -
- Prospect Gardens/Mamu Wima = =
- Payinthi Major Art Installation a0 -
Total Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 34 1,075
continued on next page ., Paege 16 of 53
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Mote 2. Income (continuad)

£ '000 2020 2018
Cther Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
- Commomwealth Home Suppart Programme (CHSP) 297 850
- General Purpose Grant ) 218
- Roads to Recovery 204 483
- Local Raad Grant 8g 185
- Record Library Materials Grant 85 a4
= Pubhe Library Services Grant 7 67
- Connected Cibes Grant and pariner council contribubons 30 -
- Wasta Managament 10 -
- Prospect Singing Group Grant = 20
- Arts SA CLIC Atrium Grant = 15
Individually Significant item - Additicnal Grants Commission Payment (refer balow) v 545
Total Other Grants, Subsidies and Conftributions 1,682 2,266
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions 1,916 3,341
The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 12 . '
(i} Sources of grants
Commonwealth Government a2 1,287
State Government 1.085 1.981
Ciher 30 83
Total 1,916 3,41
(i) Individually Significant ltems
Grant Commission (FAG) Grant Recognised as Inoome KTh | 545
2020
50% cf FY21 General Purpose Grant $235 255 brought foraard
50% of FY21 Local Roads Grant $135,808 brought forward
2019
50% of FY20 General Purpose Grant 3215 876 bought forward
S0% of FY'20 Local Roads Grant $124.7 25 bought farward
100% of FY20 and FY21 Supplementary Road Funding, $201,404 bought forward
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Note 3. Expenses
$'000 Notes 2020 2019

(a) Employee costs

Salaries and Wages 7.941 FA LY
Employes Leave Expense 324 133
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plan Contributions 18 588 220
Superannuation - Defined Benefit Plan Confributions 18 121 450
Workers' Compensation Insurance 178 203
Persanal Accident & Sickness Insurance 133 123
Total Operating Employee Costs _ 9,305 8,280
Teotal Number of Employees (full ime equivalent at end of reporting period) B7 B85

(b) Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses

Auditors Remunaration

- Auditing the Financial Reports 23 23
Bad and Doublful Debts 15 10
Elected Members' Expenses 262 277
Cperating Lease Rentals - MNon-Cancellable Leases 17

- Minimum Lease Payments =i 185
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 308 485
(ii) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses

Contractors 11.207 18,126
Waste Services 2115 1,958
Materials 1,133 762
Consultants 586 1,432
Levies Paid to Government - MRM levy 576 S5
Information Technology - Computing 520 585
Electricty & Gas 434 419
Vater aroe 341
Hired Temporary Staff 326 735
Insurance 243 258
Courses & Conferences 126 174
Communications ) S5
Sukscriptions B4 B5
Legal Expenses &3 185
Telephone T0 T0
Postage ee %0
Fuel B8 78
Bank Charges &7 a3
Contnibutions & Denations &1 27
Meals & Entertainment ) a7
Rates & Taxes (including FET) 47 45
Dog and Cat Management Board 28 18
Travel & Accormmodation 28 21
Mator Vehicle Registration 28 1
Sundry 25 25
Stationery and Office Consumables 24 18
Levies - Other 11 9
continued on next page ., Page 20 of 53
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Mote 3. Expenses (continued)
$'000

Irrigation

Refunds

Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts & Expenses

Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

{¢) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(I) Depreciation and Am ortisation
Buildings & Other Structures
Infrastructure

- Stormwater Drainage

- Roads

- Footpaths

- Traffic Control Devices
Right-of-use Assets

Plant & Equipment

Furniture & Fitings

Library Books

Artworks

Open Space

Subtotal

Total Depreciation. Amortisation and Impairment

(d) Finance Costs

Intezrest on Loans
Interest of Lease Liabilites

Total Finance Costs

Mote 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

$'000
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

{i) Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced
Preceeds from Disposal

Less: Carrying Amcunt of Assets Sald

Gain (Loss) on Disposal

Fair Value Adjustments
Rewvaluation Decrements Expensed
Total Fair Value Adjustments

Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assels

Financial Statements 2020

Mobes 2020

(48)
(8, 767)
9,746

10,144

1,356

580
1,079
539

328
113
127

484
4,605

4 605

&06
28

836

2020

4,734
(2,502)
2232

(534)
(234)

1,698

2018

14

4
(16,179)
10,128

10,621

521
4126

4126

o2

702

2018

142
(B83)
(541)

(541)
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Mote 5. Current Assets
§ 000 2020 2013
(a) Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash on Hand at Bank 57 192
Short Term Deposits & Bills, et 334 877
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets M 1,069

i{b) Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other T84 358
Council Rates Postponement Scheme 48 38
Accrued Revenues - 1
Deblors - General 473 1,530
GST Recoupment 112 632
Prepayments 208 262
Loans to Community Organsations 45 165
Subtotal 1,666 2,887
Total Trade & Other Receivables 1,666 2987
Page 22 of 53
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Mote 6. Non-Current Assets

§ 000
{a) Financial Assets

Receivables
Loans to Community Organisations
Subtotal

Total Receivables

Total Financial Asseis

5 "000

{b) Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses

Easlarm Health Authorly (EH&)

Eastem Waste Management Autharity INC (East Waste)
Total Equity Accounted Investments in Council

Businesses

(c) Other Mon-Current Assets

Other
Capital Works-in-Progress
Total Other

Total Other Mon-Current Assets

Financial Statements 2020

2020

1,341
1,341

1,341
1,341

Hatos 2020

15{n] 60
15(m) 79

139

480
480

2019

1,344
1,344

1,344

1,344

2018

&7
4F

114

14,511
14,511

14,511
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Mote 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment {continued)

(b) Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment & Investment Property
Valuation of Assets

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with vanous Accounting Sandards for either recognition
and measurement réquirements o for disclosure purposes.

AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and iabilities measured at fair value to be assigned 1o a "level in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1. Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurament date.

Level 2 Inputs olher than quoled prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or kabilty, either dwectly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data [unobserable inputs)
Refer to Note Ta for the disclosure of the Fair Value Levels of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment Assets,
Infermation an Valuations

Certainland, and the buildings and structures thereon, are shown above as being based on fairvalue hierarchy level 2 valuation
inputs. They are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with directly or indirectly observable adjustments for
speciho advantages or disadvantages attaching o the parbcular asset

Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restricions on use or disposal, shown above as being
based on fair value hierarchy leved 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, but include
adpstments for specilic advanlages or disadvantages attaching lo the particular asset that are not direclly or indwectly
chsarvable in that market, ar the number and / or amount of cbeervable adjustments of which are so great that the valuation
is mare fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs.

There is no known market for buildings, infragiructure and other assets. These assets are valued at depreciated current
replacement cost. This methad invohves
*  The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its medern engneering equivalent) using current prices for
materials and labour, the guantities of each being estimated based an recent experience of this or similar Councils, or
on industry construction guides where thesa are more appropriate,
«  The calkculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original constructian using current estimates of
residual value and useful [ife under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council,

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour, residual values
and usefd lives, and the possikility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for developrment of more
eflicient construction techniques.

Other Information

At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASE 1.0510 retain a previously established deemed
cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addifion at cost, this remains as the basis of recognition of non-matenal
assel classes

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re-stated such that the difference
represents the fair value of the asset determined in accordance with AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement accumulated
depreciation is taken to be the difference betwean current new replacement cast and fair value, In the case of land, current
replacement cost is taken to be the fair value

Highast and best use
Thee following non financial assets of Councll are being utilised at other than ther highest and best use:
1) Land - Civie Centre {Payinth) & Town Hall

2) Lard - Plant Nursery
3) Recreation Reserve - Bradlord Reserve

continued on next page .., Page 25 of 53
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MNote 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

4) Recrealion Reserve - Main Norih Road & Regency Gargens
5) Recrealion Reserve - WT Smith Reserve

8) Dead End Street - off Darmody Streef

7) Land - Johns Road Depat

&) Land - Mitk Depot

9) Land - Town Hall

1) Land - Developrmen! Site

Fer land which Council has an unfettered right to sell, the "highest and best use” recognises the possibility of the demalition
of substantial modification of some or all of the exigting buildings and structures afficed to the land.

Much of the land under Council's care and contral is Crown land or has been declared as community land under the provisions
of the Local Government Act 1929, Qther types of restrictions also exist

Fer land subject to these restrictions, the highest and best use is taken to be the "highest and best use™ available to Coundal,
with a rebuttable presumgtion that the current use is the "highest and best use". The reason for the current use of a large
proportion of Councils assets being other than the "highest and best use” relates to Council's principal role as the provider of
services to the community, rather than the use of those assels for the generation of revenue.

Fer buildings and other structures on and in the land, including infrastructure, "highest and best use” is determined in
accordance with the land on and in which they are situated.

Transition to AASE 13 - Fair Value Measurament

The requirements of AASE 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July 2013 as
shown by the valuation dates by ndividual asset classes below,

Land & Land Improvements

= Basis of valuation: Fair Value
= Date of valuation: 1 July 2018 by JLL
= Valuer Kate Tynan, B Bus Property (Valuation) AAPI, JLL

Council being of the opinion that it i not possible to attibute a value sufficiently reliably to qualify for recegnition, land under
roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recegnised at cost,
but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

Fair value erarnchy level 2 valuations: Certain land, and the buildings and structures therean, are shown above as being
basad on fair value hierarchy level 2 valuation inputs. They are based on pricas for similar assets in an active market, with
directly or indirectly observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular assat

Fair value hrerarchy level 3 valuations of fand: Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restrictions
on use of disposal, shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy level 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar
assets in an active market, but include adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching 1o the particular asset
that are not directly of indirectly observable in that market, or the number andior amount of observable adjustments of which
are 5o great that the valuation i mare fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs.

Buildings & Other Structures

*  [Basis of valuation: Fair Value
*  Dale of valuation: 1 July 2018 by JLL
=  Valuer. Kate Tynan, B Bus Property (Valuation] AARI, JLL

Fair value hierarchy level 2 valuations: Certain land, and the buildings and structures therean, are shown above as being
based on fair value hierarchy level 2 valuation inputs. They are based an prices for similar assets in an active market, with
directly or indirectly observable adpustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset

Fair value hierarchy level 3 valuations of buikdings, infrastructure and other assefs: There is no known market for these assets
and they are valued at depreciated current replacement cost. This methed involves:

continued on next page ., Page 26 of 53
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MNote 7. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment (continued)

The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using current prices for materials
and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience of this or similar Councils, or on industry
construction guides where these are more appropriate

Infrastructure

Roads, Kerb and Gulter, Foolpaths
Assets were valued by B C Tonkin & Associates as at 1 July 2015, All acguisitions made after the respective dates of valuation
are recorded at cost

The primary change through revaluation is the extension to useful lives based on historical data of consumption, The extension
has led to a reduction in anmwal depreciation expected in the future. Revaluation of footpaths has included the adjustment of
unit rates to include associated disposal costs of the expired asset. This has increased annual depreciation due to a higher
base value. Footpath assets have also been componetised between surface and base,

Srormwater Drainage
Assets were valued by B C Tonkin & Associates as at 1 July 2015, All acguisitions made after the respective dates of valuation
are recorded at cost

Open Space
Assets were valued by Public Private Property as at 1 July 2019, All acquisitions made after the respective dates of valuation
are recorded at cost

Plant & Equiprment
These assats are recognised on the cost basis.

Furniture & Firtings
These assets are recegnised on the cost basis.

ANl other Assers
These assels are recognised on the cost basis. Library books and other lending matarals are capitalised in bulk and written
out when fully depreciated.
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Maote 8. Liabilities

§'000
(a) Trade and Other Payables

Goods & Services

Payments Received in Advance

Acorsed Expenses - Employes Entitlernents
Accrued Expenses - Other

Crher

TOTAL Trade and Other Payables

$ 000 Haotes
{b) Borrowings

Loans
Lease Liabilities 17

TOTAL Borrowings

All interest bearing Babiliies are secured over
the future revenues of the Council

(c) Provisions

Emgloyee Entitlements

(including onoosts) - Long Senace Leave
Employesa Entitlerments

(including oncosts) - Annual Leave

TOTAL Provisions

Current

1238

A26

144

3,163

Current

1,203

1,369

1,085

1,953

2020
Men Current

2020
Men Current

14 417
520

15,007

116

16

Financial Statements 2020

2018
Current

2018
Current

997

1,083

712
1.795

2018
Nen Current

2018
Nen Current

15,331

15,331

82
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Mote 9. Reserves

as al MWOEH S
Cpaning

5 "000 Balance
(a) Asset Revaluation Reserve
Land 11,466
Euldings & Qther Struchures 755
Infracstrscture
- Stormwater Drainage 2,548
= Roads 21,340
- Fecipaths 11,448
Land and Euldngs 47181
Vs f Associales - Other Comprehensive Income: 194
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 95 343
Comparatives B3 122

as at MWOEH S

Qpening

5 "0 Balance
(b) Other Reserves
Car Purk Development Resenve 437
Carry Forward Reserve 1713
Development Resense 64
Total Other Reserves 2. 414
Cormparlives 1.896

PURPOSES OF RESERVES

Asset Revaluation Reserves

Increments
(Decrements)

1221

Tirs to
Reserve

9
1876
179

2,064

il

(1.185)

Transfers

Tirs from
Raserva

(1.713)

(1 ,713}

1713

Financial Statements 2020

Impairments

Other
Mowvaments

as at J00E20

Closing
Balance

11,466
755

2945
21,340
11,448
47 191

194
95,343

5,343

as at J0E20

Closing
Balance

446
1,878
443

2,765

2474

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of non current
assels (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Car Park Development Reserve

The car park development reserve is used for the development of future car parking facilities.

Carry Forward Reserve

The carry forward reserve temporarily holds the unspent capital and grant funded project budgets from the 2018-19 Budget.
This surplus will be included n the 2013-2020 Budget through Budget Review 1 and will be used to finalise the incomplete

projects of 2018-2019

Development Reserve

The development resenve 15 used bor fulure development or redevelopment of open space faclities
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Mote 10. Assets Subject to Restrictions

Council does nat hold any assats subject to restrictions

Note 11. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

000 Mobes 2020 2013
(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to

maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of

the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled
to the related tems in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Total Cash & Equivalent Assels 5 38 1,089
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 3 1,068
(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from
Operating Activities

Met SurplusiDeficit) 1,821 1,375
Hon-Cash ltems in Income Statements
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impaimment 4 605 41235
Fair Value Adjustrnents 524 =
Equity Movements in Equity Accounted Investments (Increasej/Decrease [25) (20)
Grants for capital acquisitions treated as Investing Activity (Z34) {1,075)
Met {Gain) Loss on Disposals (2,232) 541

4 569 4 947
Add [Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
Met {Increase)Decrease in Receivables 1,200 {1.018)
Met {IncreaselDecrease in Inventories - 7
Met Increasal{Decreasa) in Trade & Cther Payables (3,080) 1.767
Met Increasal{Decrease) in Cther Provisians 152 11
MHet Cash provided by (or used in) operations 2,881 5716
(c) Financing Arrangements
Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of
credit:
Corporate Credit Cards 100 125
LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility 11,000 6,000
The bank overdraft faciliies may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank without notice
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for the year ended 30 June 2020

Mote 12{b). Components of Functions

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

FLANNING AND COMMUNITY

INFRASTRUCTURE, ASSETS AND ENVIRONMENT

City Planning
Development Assessment
Heritage

Community Development (includes Community and Youth Services, Home Assist)

Recreation and Sports
Library

Commrmunity Transport
Community Ars

Enwvironmental Sustainability
Enviranmental Health

Waste Management (Domestic, Green and Recycling)
Community Safety (includes Parking and Dog Control & General Inspections)

Traffic Management

Streets and Foolpaths
Stormwater Drainage

Opean Spaces

Street Trees and Mature Strips
Street Cleaning and Public Toilets
Fleet Management

Depot Operations

Street Lighting

CORPORATE SERVICES

Governance

Rates Administration

Employee Relations and Training

Customer Service & Administration Services
Financial Management

Information Management

Elected Membars

Human Resources

BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Business & Economc Inibatves
IMarketing

Financial Statements 2020
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for the year ended 30 June 2020

Mote 13. Financial Instruments

Recognised Financial Instruments
Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits

Accounting Policy:
Iniially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost; interest is recognised when eamed

Terms & Conditions:
Deposits are returning fixed interest rates between 0.45% and 0.85% (2013: 1.25% and 1.90%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the shor term to maturity.

Recelvables - Rates & Associated Charges

Accounting Pelicy:
Iniially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost An impairment provision is recognised using
the expeded credit loss methed.

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over the subject land, arears attract interest of 5.2% (2019 6.6%). Council is not materially exposed to any individual
debtor, credit risk expasure s concentrated within the Council's boundaries in the State.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Receivables - Fees & Other Charges

Accounting Policy:
Infeally recogresed at far value and subsequently measured al amortised cost An impasmenl provison is recognised usmg
the expected credit loss method

Terms & Conditions:
Unsecured, and do not bear interest Council is not maternally exposed to any individeal debtor, credit nsk exposure is
concentrated within the Councils boundaries

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deducbon of any allowanca).

Receivables - Other Levels of Government

Accounting Policy:
Intially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amorised cost An impairment provision is recognised using
the expected credit loss methed.

Terms & Conditions:
Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective pregrams following advice
of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal Governments,

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

continued on next page ., Page 33 of 53

City of Prospect - Annual Report 2019/2020 Page 100



Appendices

Financial Statements 2020

City of Prospect

Motes to the Financial Statements
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Mote 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy:
Liabilties are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether ar not bdled to the
Couneil

Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally setthed on 30 day terms.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.
Liabilities - Interest Bearing Borrowings

Accounting Policy:
Initzally recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Terms & Conditions:
Secured over future revenues, borowings are repayable (describe basis); interest s charged at fixed {or variable - describe)
rates between 3.4% and 7.0% (2019 3.67% and 7.0%).

Carrying Amount
Approximates fair value.

continued on next page .., Page 34 of 53
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Mote 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ 000

2020

Financial Assets

Cash & Equivalents
Recewvables

Cther Fnancial Assets
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payabhes

Current Borrowings
MNen-Current Bormowings
Total Financial Liabilities

2018

Cash & Equivalents
Receivables

Cther Fnancial Assets
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables

Current Borrowings
Man-Current Bormowings

Total Financial Liabilities

The following interest rates
were applicable to Council's
Borrowings at balance date;

5 '000

Fized Interest Rates

MNet Fair Value

Due < 1 year

391
1 452

1,853

1622
2,040

3,662

1,080
2724
168
3,859

4,702
1,781

6483

Due > 1 year
& £ 5 years

T
781

8,088
8,086

78S
785

B892

6,992

2020

Weighted Avg
Interast Rate

4.43%

Due = 5 years

10,061
10,061

13.420
13,420

Carrying
Value

18,378
16,378

Financial Statements 2020

Tatal
Contractual
Cash Flows

1,462
1,341
3,194

1,622
2040
18,147
21,809

1,068
2,724
1,511
5,304

4,702
1,781
20,412
26,895

2018

Weighted Avg
Interest Rate

5.69%

Carrying
Values

b2y |

1,462
1,381
3194

1,622
1,363
15,007
17 9488

1,065
2,724
1,458
5251

4,702

a7
15,331

21,030

Carrying
Value

16,328
16,328

All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments, There is no recognised markeat for the

financial assets of the Counci,

continued on next page ..
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MNote 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

Risk Exposures

Cradit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to pedform as contracted. The maximum credit
risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any impairment. All Council investments are made with
the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government, Excepl as detailled in Notes 5 & 8 in
relation to individual classes of recevables, exposure is cancentrated within the Council's boundaries, and there is no material
exposure 1o any individual debtor,

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, All of Council's
financial assets are denomanated in Australian dollars and are not raded on any market, and henca neidher market nsk nor

currency risk apply

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial kabilibes. In accordance with
the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LG A Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of maturlty dates. Council also has
available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrewing facilities that it can access

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Coundl has a
balance of both fived and variable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are managed holistcally
in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse manner
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Financial Statements 2020

Mote 14. Capital Expenditure and Investment Property Commitments

§ 000
(a) Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in
the financial statements as liabilities:

Land & Buildings
Infrastructure

These expenditures are payable:
Mot kater than one year

(b) Other Expenditure Commitments

Other non-capital expenditure commitments in relation to investment properties
at the reparting date but not recegnised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Audit Services
IT Helpdesk & Support
‘Waste Management Services

These expenditures are payabla:
Mot later than one year
Later than cne year and not later than 5 years

2020

3,008
3,008

il

3,008
3,008

]

169
2504

2,589

il

1,378
1,210
2,589

1

2019

3.043
19
3562

3,562
3,562

a3

3,588
3,959

1,378
2,563
3,959
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Mote 15. Financial Indicators

Amounts Indicator Priar pariods
§'000 2020 2020 2019 2018
These Financial Indicators have been calowialed n accordance
with [nformalion paper 9 - Local Government Financral
Indrcators prepared as parf of the LGA Financial Suslaimabily
Frogram for the Local Gowernmenf Association of South
Ausfralia.
1. Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus {11)

L

Total Cperating [ncome 24,886 P Ca s
Thiz ralic expresses the operafing surplus as a percentage of
lolal cperating revenue.
2. Met Financial Liabilities Ratio
Met Financial Liabilities 18,210
Total Operating Incoms © T 24888 3% 4% 4%
Nel Francal Labvithes are delined as lolal kabihes ess
financial assels (exciuding equidy accounted investments n
Council businessas). These are expreéssed as a percentage of
tolal operaling revenue,
Adjustments to Ratios
In recent years the Federal Govermvmen! has made advance
paymeniz prior fo 30th June from fulure year alocalions of
financial asmstance grants, as explaned o Mote 1. These
Adiusted Ralios comect for the resulting disfortion in key ralics
for gach year and provide a more accurale basis for comparison.
Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus 63
Total Operating Income 24,960 Dk 2Pk 2
Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Met Financial Lizbilities 18,136
Total Operating Income 24980 2 °h . .
3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Met Asset Renewals 5,887
Infrastructure & Assat Management Flan required expenditure 3,492 169% 205% s
Netl assal renewals expendifure s defined as nel capital
expendiura on the renaval and reclacement of exisling assels,
and excivdes new capifal expendiure on the acgquisifion of
continued on next page ., Page 35 of 53
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MNote 15. Financial Indicators (continued)

Financial Statements 20020

Financial Indicators - Graphs

1. Operating Surplus Ratio
B

Tatio %

6.3
i
ks 14
| I
o

Purpose of operating
surplus ratio

This InSenier i 10 Salsrmins (e
praccmntans tha oparating nevene

Commentary on 2019720 result

Fomcast i ke the fimt year of sirabegc cehicii to
oorstrect Payirth, a small opeating deficd s a
54534 farvouira by warianes o budgst Primanily, the

WANANCHE i§ reultanE from necuced mnena sl

waries from operating expendiue Frcsim btk o meduction inmarkest (vanabde) irdesest
% apsiicalble and & timng vananoe of conglruchon
0.0 complation requiring full bormowing drave doen
2018 2019 2020
2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
100
. Commentary on 201920 result
Purpese of net inancial
o T4 1 liabilities ratio e
£ ¥ Counct nas utilsed a mic of debt facities to panmit
2 T i | repanran] of debl whed Suiplus caibh S o
5 40 34 hand A5 a resul, 8 reduoed cutstandng balance as
’ at 30 Jure 2020 (following the O instalimant date of
8 ;:::Ima o m:aun':ut 2 Jure 20320) & svident in a reduced net tinancs!
F_M vy fabuity batance. Snodt tevrn vanabie facilties may be
m e A S, company pedrigwr 7 et cash Mo (ecdterenls m future
oparating rewarus yoars
Pl il i anpaetted in 2000-2021 with prncipal
=] ard irterest payermres for al acities bl o the
2018 2019 2020 Fang Tetm Firancat Plan
Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
B
) Commentary on 201820 result
- Purpose of adjusted
i OpCEaRIG SRS 1D 2019/20 ratio  0.3%
]
g i
" Councll rece ved aevance payment of its
EL) Ths “""“"""",“""“"“""“"""‘ “Supplmmartony Road Grart” in 2018-2020 but no
; o o i b o chvance paymont in 2010-2020 for Bik gran
2 the Fi Aa:ﬂunw Grare) compenent. Tha has led bo an ncrease in adjustment
v diit of e comrating surplus (et comgand 1o the
0.3 AT DG Wi unadasted rato.
o N

20018 2019

2020

continusd on net pags ..
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MNote 15. Financial Indicators (continued)

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
100

Commentary on 2019/20 result

Purpose of adjusted net

7 13 financial habiliies ratio Z019/20 ratic  73%
I This ingicaie s 10 deterrming ths

g

Rafic %
™
o

percantage the oparabing nevenus
(BLeatael fer timing dfen iy | | Mirar adiustment to the Net Financial Liabéites Ratio

the Financial Assistance Srant)
wares frem operating sxpanrdiue

34
) J
Q

018

2010 2000

2. Asset Renowal Funding Ratio
350

Commentary on 201920 resuit
Purpose of assed

renewal funding ratio m 19/20 ratic  169%
o e L izl

300

250

285
I
# 100 Constructicn of Payialni hos besn incduded as a
z 168 peirtial ‘Penewal' [51%) dnd Tew' [40%) capita)
Z 150 mapandnure profect Borcss 3 inancial years
[2047-2018 o 201 B-2020) Ths genarational projpct
104 This indicador aime b dewrmmne I winh rod nchuded 0 the Asaet Managemsnt Plans
assals are boing renewed and with no espectation that the Department of Education
Fapinoid I BN opbrTel way e ok racee 1R lebds of the Thormas Shest
50 Centre
Revmead Assel Managermsnt Plars are curmenthy
a

iy etrm s @i will by riig fol cormeTr
2018 2019 FLUPLL = u;m:monﬂﬂ;uzﬂ“ y
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Mote 16. Uniform Presentation of Finances
§'000 2020 2019

The following ks a high level summary of both operaling and capdal investment
activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework
basis.

All Counals in South Austraka have agreed o summanse annual budgets and long-term
financial plans on the same basis,

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’ of financial
infarmation, which enables meaningful comparnsons of each Council's finances.

Incame 24 BBS 24,570
less Expenses (24, 887) (23, 724)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) _ a1y 841
MNet Qutlays on Existing Assets
Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Reptacement of Exisling Assets (5,B87) (9 843)
add back Deprecmtion, Amoartisation and Impasment 4,605 4123
add back Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets 4734 142
34352 (5673)

MNet Qutlays on New and Upgraded Assets
Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraced Assets (including Investment Property &

Real Estate Developments) (3,063) 623N
add back Amcunts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assets 1,203 1,075
(1860)  (5162)
Met Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year 1,581 (9,598)
Page &1 of 53
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Mote 17. Leases

(i) Council as a lessee
Terms and conditions of leases

Land & Buildings
Council holds a leass to occupy the depot facility at City of CampbelRown. The 5+5 year lease commenced in April 2018
with an annual payment of 385 000 to be indexed annually by Adelaide CPRI,

Set out balow are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised within Infrastructure, Property, Plant and
Equipment and the mevements during the pericd.

Right of use assets

Land &
§'000 Buildings Total
2020
Adoption of AASE 15 at 1 July 2019 718 18
Depreciation charge (T) 72
Balance at 30 June 2020 646 645

St oul below are the carmying amounts of lease habilbes (induded undern interest-bearng loans and bomowings) and the

mavements during the period:

%000 2020 2018
Balance at 1 July 718 -
Accretion of interest 23 =
Payments (&5) -
Balance at 30 June B56 =
Classified as:

Current BE -
MNon Current 500 -

The maturity analysis of lease labilties is included in Note 13

The Group had total cash autflows lor leases of 385 446,
The fellowing are the amounts recegnised in profit or loss:

Depreciation expense of Right-of-Lse Assets 72 -
Interest expense on lease abihes 23 -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 85 -
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Mote 18. Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employvees to Statewide Super (formerly Local
Govemment Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Permanent
and contract employees of the South Australian Local Govemnment sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 Movember
20059 have the option to contribute to the Acoumulation section andfor Salarylink. All cther employees (including casuals)
have all contributions allocated to the Accumulation section

Accumulation enly Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contnibutions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with superannualion guaraniee
legisiation (8.50% in 201920, 9.50% in 2018M8). Mo further liabdlity accrues to the Council as the superannuation benefits
accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink s a delined beneft scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member's
contribution rate, number of vears and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer contributions
to Salarylink as determined by the Fund's Trustes based on advice fram the appainted Actuary. The rate is currently 6 2%
(8.3% in 2018M19) of "superannuation” salary,

In addition, Council makes a separate confribution of 3% of ordinary time earnings for Salarylink membears to their
Accumulation account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund, As such, assets
accurnulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they
accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink secton’s assets and liabilities are pocked and
are nct allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to anather employer within the local govemnment sector
and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers.
As provided by AASE 119.32(b), Counal does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willie Towers
‘Watson as at 30 June 2020, The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are acequate for the
expected Salardink liabilities. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require changes o Council's
contnbubion rates at some future Bme.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes

Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund”
legisiation. ANl such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are
reprezented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liablity attaches to the Council.
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Mote 19. Interests in Other Entities

All joint ventures and assoclates are required to prepare Annual Financial Statements that com ply with the SA
Local Government Model Financial Statements.

Council's Share of Nat Income Council's Share of Met Assets

£ '000 2020 2018 2020 2019
Council's Share of Met Income

Joint Ventures ) P 20 139 114
Total Council's Share of Net Income 25 20 139 114

({a)i) Joint Ventures, Associates and Joint Operations

(a) Carrying Amounts

%000 Principal Activity 2020 2019
Eastern Waste Management Authority (East Waste) Waste Collecton

& Dispoal 32 a7
Eastern Health Autharity (EHA) Health Services BO 8T
Total Carrying Amounts - Joint Ventures & Associates az 114

Eastern Waste Management Authority (East Wasle)

Eastern VWaste Management Authority, a regional subsideary [the subsidiary) was established pursuant to Section 43 of the
Local Government Act 1599, by a number ol constituent councils comprmng Adelaide Hills, Burnside, Campbeltown, Mitcham,
Morwood Payneham & St Peters, Prospect and the Town of Walkerville.

Prespect joined the organisation on 1 October 2017, in order to deliver Councils waste collection services as well as recyclables
and organics collection and processing.

Councils mambership in the crganisaticn brings efficiencies in the delivery of the service across multiple communities.

Eastern Haalth Authority (EHA)

City of Prospect is one of five member Councils of the Eastern Health Authority Inc (EHA). The other member Councils are City
of Burnside, Campbelitown City Council, City of Norwoad, Payneham & St Peters & the Corporation of the Town of Walkerville,
During the report peried, City of Prospect owned 13% of the equity in EHA but did not control either the financial or operating
palicies of the entity, EHA is managed by a board of dvectors compnsed of bavo representatives from each of the fve member
Courncils. Each director has one full and equal voling right on the Board. The principal activity of the autharity is to provide
health services to Councils. As at the 30 June 2017, the net assets of the subsidiary were as disclosed below.

(i) Relevant Interests

Interest in Ownership
Operating Share of Proportion of
Result Equity Voting Power
%000 2020 2018 2020 2019 2020 2018
Eastern Waste Management Authority (East Waste) 5.20% 7.00% 5.20% T.O00%  1420% 1420%
Eastem Haalth Authaority (EHA) 1278%  13.00% 1279%  13.00%  2000%  20.00%
continued on next page ., Page 44 of 53
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Mote 18, Interests in Other Entities {continued)

{c) Movement in Investment in Joint Venture or Associate

$ 000

Cpening Balance

Share in Operating Result

Council's Equity Share in the Joint
Venture or Associate

{d) Summarised Financial Infermation of the Equity Accounted Business

Statement of Financial Position
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade and Other Receivables
Men-Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Trade and Other Payables
Current Bormowings

Current Provisians

Men-Current Borrowings
Mon-Current Provisions

Total Liabilities

Met Assets

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Council Cantributions

Statutory Charges

User Charges

Grants, Subsidies & Contributions
Irvestment Income

Other Income

Total Income

Employes Costs

Materiaks, Contracts & Cther Expenses
Depreciation, Amorisation and Impaiment
Finance Costs

Total Expenses

Cther Revenue ! Expensea [tems
Operating Result

2502
1,m8
7,652
10,983

1,206
1,629

a7
6,21

17,454

5,851
9,120
2,069

281

17,321

193

Eastern Waste Management
Authority (East Waste)
2020 2015
A5 |
32 15
78 45

1,967

7y
6,100
8,784

i
1,887

Financial Statements 2020

Eastermn Health Autherity [EHA)

2020

&7
{7}

60

T3
156
1.481
2,368

i

158
262
308
1.144

1,894

474

1,804

330
246

2,464

1.626
585
120

2477

{1 3;

20139

62
5

&7

43
168
324
1,235

144

JE3
186
25
747

488

1,723
150

258
18
16

2,557

1.768
716
a7

12
2,633

24

Page 45 of 53

City of Prospect - Annual Report 2019/2020

Page 112



Appendices

Financial Statements 2020

City of Prospect

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Mote 20. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations
§'000 2020 2019

Carrying Amounts of Assets and Liabilities

Assets

Cric Centre = £os
- Depaot . 1,7 2,855
Total Assets 1,771 3,451
MNet Assets 1,771 3,451

Council has resalved to Sale partions of land at 218 Main Marth Read, Prospect S& S082.

Settlement of this sale contract is scheduled to oocur prios to 30 June 2021

Note 21. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabilites do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet, but knowledge is considered relevant
to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce resources.

1. LAND UNDER ROADS

As reported in the Financial Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably for
these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been recegnised in the reports. Land acquired
for road purpeses during the year is iniBally recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing
off the expenditure

At reporting date, Council controlled 88 km of road reserves of average width 9 metres,

2. POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES

Council is a multi-purpose arganisation providing a large range of buikding, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and other faciities
accessible to the public. At any time, it is ikely that claims will have been made against Council that remain unsettied.

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which i subject 1o deductable
“insurance excesses’, the amaunt of which varies according to the class of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses ansing from claims known at reporting date based on average historical net cost
(including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential clains not reported to Councll may have existed at
reparting date.

3. BANK GUARANTEES

Council has not guaranteed any loans and ather banking facilities,

4. LEGAL EXPENSES

Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Development Act 1803 (as amended). Pursuant to that Act,
certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of the Council may appeal. It iz normal practice that parties bear their cwn

legal costs. Atthe date of these reports, Council had no notice of any appeals against planning decisions made prior to reporting
date. All known costs have been recogmised, bul the amaunt of further costs cannot be known wunbil the appeals ane determined.
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City of Prospect

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Mote 22. Related Party Transactions

Key Management Personnel
Transactions with Key Management Personeal

The Key Management Personnel of the Council include the Mayor, Councillors, CEQ and certain prescribed officers under
secton 112 of the Local Government Act 1999 | In all, 15 persons were paid the following total compensation

5000 2020 203

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:

Allowances 211 215
Employes Costs 358 835
Termination Benefits = 2
Total 1 069 1 1?3 )

Amounts paid as direct reimbursement of expensas incurred on behall of Council have
naot been included above.
Reccipts from Key Management Personnel comprise:

Cther than amounts paid as ratepayers or residents (g.g. rates, swimming pool entry
fees, etc.), Council received the following amounts in total;

Contributions for Fringe Benefits Tax purposes 35 F
Total 39 41
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Daniel Moon o

CHARTERED ACCOUNTAMTS™
AJETRALLA » MI'W TEALAND

Mount Ga

Stirling

INDEPENDEMT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of City of Prospect

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of City of Prospect (the Council), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the Council Certificate of City of Prospect.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the
financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2020, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards,
Local Government Act 1999 and Local Government [Finoncial Monagement) Regulations
2011,

Basis for opinion

We conducted owur audit in accordance with Awustralian Auwditing Standards. Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Financiol Report section of our report. We are independent of the Council
in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {Induding
Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in
Australia. We have also fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Council’s responsibility for the financial report

Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regufations 2011 and for such internal control as Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, Council is respensible for assessing the Council's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Council either intends to liquidate the
Council or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged
with governance are responsible for overseeing the Council's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's responsibility for the audit of the financial report
Qur objectives are to olbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our oginion. Reasonable

assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a puarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

error and are considered material if, individually or inthe aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence

the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this inancial report.

As part of an audit of the financial report in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the aodit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstaterment of the finandal report, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and approgriate to provide a basis Tor our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misregresentations, or the override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the financial report in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Council’s use of the going concern basis of acoounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's regort to the related disclosures in
the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinian. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's repart. Howewer, future events or conditions
may cause the Council to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant awdit Tindings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

7 Ay

Tim Muhlhausler cs, Registered Company Auditer

Fartmer

& November 2020
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AUBTRALIA » WEW DEALAMD

Mount Gambic

INDEPEMNDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON THE INTERMNAL CONTROLS
To the members of City of Prospect

Opinion

We have audited the compliance of City of Prospect {the Courcil) with the requirements of
Section 125 of the Locol Government Act 1939 in relation only tothe Internal Controls established
by the Council to ensure that financial transactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and
investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities for the
period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 have been concducted property ang in accordance with law.

In our opirion, City of Prospect has complied, in all material respects, with Section 125 of the
Local Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls established by the Council in relation
1o the receipt, expenditure and imvestment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and
incurring of liabilities so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of the
Council have been conducted properly ang in accordance with law for the periog 1 July 2019 to
30 June 2020.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagemant ASAE 3000 Assuronce Cngogements Other than Audits or Reviews of Mistorical
Finoncial Information and ASAE 3150 Assuwronce Engogements on Controls, ssued by the
Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all material
respects, the Council has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation
only to the internal controls specified above for the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020, ASALC
3000 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements of the Australian
professional accounting bodies.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

The Council’s responsibility for internal controls

The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adeguate system of internal
controls, in accordance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 to ensure that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property, and incurring
of liabilities have beer conducted properly and in accordarce with law,

Our independence and quality control

We have complied with the indepencence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to
assurance engagements, and apply Auditing Standard ASQC 1 Quality Contral for Firms thot
Perform Audits and Reviews of Finoncial Reports ond Other Finonciol Informotion, and Other
Assurance Engogements in undertaking this assurance engagement.
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Auditor's responsibility

Qur responsibility s to express an opinion on the Council’s complianoe with Section 125 of the Loce! Government Act 1999
inrelation onby to the internal controls established by the Coundil to ensure that financial transactions relating to receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities have been
corducted properly and in accordance with law, based on our procedures. Qur engagement has been conducted in
accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3000 dssurance Engogements Other
thon Audits or Reviews of Hstorica! Information and ASAE 3130 Assuronce Engogements on Controls, issued by the
Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all material respects, the Council has
complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal contrals specified above for
the period 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020, ASAE 3000 alko requires us to comphy with the relevant ethical requirements for
the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Limitations of contrals
Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are suitably
designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, or non-compliance

with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected,

An assurance engagement on controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls operating ineffectively as it is not
performed continuously throughout the period and the tests performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of the
autcome of the evaluation of controls to future periods (s subject to the risk that the controls may beenme inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with them may deteriorate,

Limitation of use

This report Ras been prepared for the members of the Councll in Accordance with Section 129 of the Loce! Government
Act 1999 in relation to the internal controls specified above, We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance
on this report to any persons or wsers other than the members of the Council, or for any purpose other than for which it

was prepared

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

7 Ay

Tim Muhlhausler CA, Registered Company Auditar
Fariner

6 November 2020
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City of Prospect

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Certification of Auditor Independence

Tothe best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the awdit of City of Prospect for the year andad 30
June 2020, the Councdl's Auditor, Galping has maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of the Locs/
Government Act 1993 and the Local Govemnmen! (Financial Management) Regulations 2071 made under that Act

This statement 5 prepared in accordance with the requirements of Reguiation 22(3) Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011,

e e

Carinneg Garratt
Presiding Member, Audit Committes

Date: 19 October 2020
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Accountants, Auditore CITY OF PROSPECT

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement by Auditor

I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of City of Prospect for the year ended 30
June 2020, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110
— Code of Ethics for Professional Accowntants (Tncluding Independence Standards), Part 44,
published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical $tandards Board, In accordance with the
Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Manogement] Regulations 2011
made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 {5) Locol
Government (Finonciol Monogement] Reguiation 2011,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS™ GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

AUSTRALLA « SEW DLALAMD

AN 4

Tim Muhlhauslerca, Regisered Comgary fuditar

e

Mount Gambier
S broet Partmes

6 November 2020
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Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility s to express an opinion on the Council’s compliance with Section 125 of the Loce! Government Act 1999
inrelation only to the internal controls established by the Coundil to ensure that financial transactions relating to receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities have been
conducted properly and in accordance with law, based on our procedures. Qur engagement has been conducted in
accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3000 dssurance Engogements ther
thaon Audits or Reviews of Historical Information and ASAE 3150 Assuragnce Engagements on Controls, issued by the
Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all material respects, the Council has
complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal contrals specified above for
the period 1 July 2019 ta 30 June 2020, ASAE 3000 alko requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements for
the Australian professional accounting bodies.

Limitations of contrals
Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are suitably
designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error, or non-compliance

with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected,

An assurance engagement on controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls operating ineffectively as it is not
performed continuously throughout the period and the tests performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of the
autcame of the evaluation of controls to future periods (s subject to the risk that the controls may beenme inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with them may deteriorate,

Limitation of use

TRis repart has been prepared for the members of the Councll in Accordance with Section 129 of the Loce! Government
Act 1999 in relation to the internal controls specified above, We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance
on this report 1o any persons or wsers other than the members of the Council, or for ary purpose other than for which it

was prepared

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

7 Ay

Tim Muhlhausler CA, Registered Company Auditar
Fartner

6 Movember 2020
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EHA has continued to
deliver outstanding service
during a global pandemic.
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Message from
the Chairperson
Cr Peter Cornish

The Eastern Hoalth Authorily (EHA) has conbinued (o
gelver gutstanging senvies dunng a ghobal pandermic

The residents and ratepayers of itz ive Constituent
Councils (the Cities of Burnzide, Campbellfown, Nomood,
Payneham and 51 Pelers, Prospect and the Town of
Walkarville) have coninuead b bensht diracily and
indrecty from the operabons af EHA

It has been a challenging year tor us all, more sein he
public heath sechor and our local businesses, The novel
coranavirus (COVID-19) and the resticions thal the
Gavernmaent of South Australia progressively aopiied
and revised has been challengng for reany o navigate,
|'r|;|Ir-|r|re|1" E § monikon

nave welcornad the Badership and the suppart from
EHA's Conslifeent Councils o enslre the cparabions and
rmanageraent of EHA were sugrmented to continue Al of its
slablory unchons dunng he resticbons, EHA was able
o conbinue o deliver Fio InEpechons of oo [T -'.I'E:-'..
supparted residental facilibes, hairdressers and swimming
pogis and vacoinaton programs

The South Ausiaban Public Healtf Act 2011 recognises
e lunchons of coundls in profecing and peormetin
public healh and preventing public healln risks, EHA
Envirgnimental Haalin Oificers have plavad an active

rede as physical distancing officars to protect hia health
and wellbaing of indiviguals and e Sammunity ¥om he
spread of COVID 13 (Ratien the curve) Biraugh educatian,
surveiliance and suppart EHA 1S also well placed 1o play
3 [.l.'ﬂ[ m .'i'-i"-'::'-i:l.”:'. ouUr Cornmumies wilh ary rfi’]l_‘-il:"lj
response once a COVID-12 vacoination program Decomas
avalabie

EHA and its Conshiluent Councils approved a revized
Ragional Fublic Health Flan, it has bean a collaborabve
approach walh sorme amagzing oulcomes |1 bulds on

Messapa fram e chairpersen

reqional siengths, addresses regiong challenges and
conaders prianty popuabions (dentified in Souh Ausiralia’s
Nate Fubbc Heallh Plan 2001 9-2024

t has been a
challenging year
for us all, more
SO in the public
health sector
and our local
buUSINESSES.

Hoardang and squalor coniinues to be an 1ssue withn our
carmmunity . The angaing management is complex wikh
rultple Fayers of is2ues and many organisations, state-and
[wiehit L}Z:\'PTI11TII'-'!"|| EenCiEs

This year EHA alsochanged its extemal audiler, which
provicded a morough unmodihed audit. The Audit
Commilies has also ssan @ new indegendent member
appaintad

| arn defighted to brng the 20193-20 Annual Beport for your
cansideration

Cr Fater Cormish

Chalrparaon
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About Eastern
Health Authority

Eastern Health Authority (EHA) has a proud history of promating
and enforcing public health standards in Adelaide’s eastern and

inner northern suburbs.

Continuing in the tradition of the East Torrans Council
Board, which operated from 1838, the present day reglonal
subsidiary protects the heallh and wellbeing of about
160,000 rasidents plus visitors, EHA is an excellent example
of pouncil shared sanvice delivery

Established under the Local Govarrment Act 1994, EHA
works across our Constituent Councit ameas 1o improve
public and emnviranmental heelth standards.

City of Burnside

Campbeliiown City Council

City of Morwood Payneham and St Peters (MPSF)
City ol Prospedt

The Corparation of the Town of Walkervilie

With a singla focus and highly specialised and expanencad
staff, EHA k= wall-aquipped to daal with the increasing
diversity and complexily of public and environmental health

During 2019-20 EMA discharged the amviranmeantal health
responsibilives of its five Constifuent Coungils under the
South Ausiralian {8A) Publie Health Act 2011, Food Act
2001, and Supported Residential Faciliies Aot 1592,

Services include the provision of immunisation senicss,
hygiene and sanitation control, leensing and manitoring of
supparted residential facilittes and maonitonng of food salaty
standards, including inspection of food premisas,
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Chief Executive
Officer’s Report
Michael Livori

When we look back on the last inancial year it is extremely
hard not to focus on the COVID-19 pandeméc which has
seamingly paraiysed the worid. Most of us have not hived in
alime with such an incredible amaunt ol disrugbion in cur
daily livez |tis cerainky a parncd in our lives that | think we
will look back and rallgeton

The pandemic puts & spotlight on the imporlance of having
a robust public health system 1o protect our community
Comparing the infection rates in South Ausiralia with vast
araas of he world indicates that our aystem has served us
vary wall

While it has been a challenging period, the resilience of

our stafl has been oulstanding As an essential senvice we
did not have the option of having our statf work from home.
Within a shon period, we needed 10 develop and implement
a diffarant siructure of warking

Recognising the risk to empioyess and the public dunng
any face-io-face inleractions, guicance tools lor stall were
deveioped for both office based and angoing hsld work
Tha foole were continuaily updated to recognise the ever
changing directives issued by the Govarmment

Az many food businessas were not Sparating 2t full capacity
for an extanded period we focused on ‘high risk” priority
areas within the business. Concantraling on crifical arsas
sich as hand washing, sanitising and lood processing

a1 the peak of outhreak ensured appropriate fosd safety
standards weara baing maintained but minimised the impact
on businesses during this stressful time.

Many aged care facilites prevented access 1o (heir laciliies
whigh made conducting food auditing challenging, Cur
Auditors arranged for reconds that required 1o be audited

to e deliverad to our offices and conductad 'virtual’
assesamants of the premises as a successiul shon term
alternativa.
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t b nletests of public hedlh, we conbnued o orovide
mmunizalion sarvices rghl fruough the pendemc. Te do
trus safely wo reoded oo phieical disiancing and
ather safaty and fygiens requirements ralated 1o COVID-13
werg pul in place fo pretect tha community and o stafi

Te azsziat with thia all public clinkzs normally cenductad

at cur Conattuant Councll vanues ware ralocaiad to

ol St Pelers office, The clinics ware all converted 1o an
appointmant anly basis which our bespoks booking system
Hediiated very smooinly

Wilh the gporoprals messurss i placse we glao cohbinueg
€O Qe i = ::.‘.I!'J-EITF."\r r1||';::'t.9r.t S0 ImmUrrSguon

wm with & ranirnum ol dizrupbion Adcibonal absenbes
spacific ahnics wen provided at our 5t Patars offces =
accommadaie 2ludenta whe may nat have bean attending
zohocte whan we vigiieo, It is extremely pleasing to sse thal
e vaceire completion rates at the sehoals lecaled inour
arsa conlinue o be above the atgle averags

Early inthe pancamic ke Chig? Putlic Health Cflicer
eireylated communicalions in relalhon 1o limiting he spread
[Hattening the curve) of COVID-12 through shyslcs
csiEnding and prohibibire noreessential roaas gathanng
Our Erviranmendal Hesabth Offeers (EHOa ) immodiate by eat
a plan o Senbity and &fesinvaly commun cals, educals
ard manitor tha Dusinessss ard losal cammunity within the
Coretitusrt Gounsil areas 1hat we gensaily beve contas!
with

78

Dueto Local Governmnends” role in public heaith and the
enormity of the task, both EHA and e Corabituenl Souncis
agreed ooaclon g reglonal bagie o monilor and enfores
chysical delancing and olher governmeant impoead
mudtietnonks relaling b the COVID-19 crsis 1o ase sl
SAFOL and the State and Commorwealtn Governments

Baty E-A and Councll 21a¥f monibored thaes requiremants

Chinf Executve Oftios s Feporl

The resilience of
our staff has been
outstanding.

wall o locusof educalion of business wnd Tha comiinunly ir
the fral imzlance. EHA look on the role of Turther monionng
and onlorcemeant whone reguired, wilh sepous matbers
rerfarred 11 SAPGL

T Eastam Heslh Aulnority and its: Constituant Courails
devaiapad ard adoptad 1ra secora leraton of the
Regional Public Heslth ang Wellbang Flan, Bathar Living
Betlar Health 2020 = 2025, The plan 2 prezenied man
eas|ly gigastile tifold farmat (with supplemantary maternal)
ahd focuses on regional achvilies thal sequife eoliaboralion
b bwessn e councils @nd commuty parnea, bukds on
teijinral 2lrefgits Brd addresses regueral challangss

A vibwerys, 1L has beenan axtiormely busy yes: wilh (he
addsd alemant of e disruption caused by tho pardermic

| wewhe like to thank altof our nardworking ataff for ther
commitrment and efforts duning this Interesting yesr, Tranks
20 10 the Board of Maragemant for their continusd inlarss)
ir punlic neaith and suppen 1o both myaell end our sizf

Michas Liv

Chiel Exsculive Dice
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Governance

Board of
Management 2020

EHA is a body corparate,
governed by a Board of
Management comprised of two
alected members from each
Constitusnt Counal. The Board
met six timas during the year to
consider EHAS business.

e nibar Kootings Attondad
Cr Peter Cornish [Chair] & E8ARO
Zr Jane Davey AR EEE
Cr Sus hitington [Deputy Chair) wasasa
Cr Garry knoblauch "R EE O
Bndresa Caddy RO N
Cr Jennifer Joshi Ry
Cr John Kennedy 8@ a R
flichelle Harmmond "9 8P RD
Cr Kristina Bamett sEmeEwEm
fathan Cunningham R AR
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Annsal Repart 207020 Governance

City of Burnside Campbelltown City Council

Cr Peter Comish Cr Jane Davey Cr John Kennedy Michelle Hammond
{Chair}

City of Norwood Payneham City of Prospect

& St Peters

Cr Sue Whitington Cr Garry Knoblauch Cr Kristina Barnett Hathan Cunningham
(Deputy Chair)

Corporation of the
Town of Walkerville

Andreea Caddy Cr Jenniter Joshi
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Finance Audit Committee

I acoardarss with tha raquirameants of the Losal
Govarmmen! Act 1699 EHA hae astablished an Audil
Commiles {Tha Commities)

Functiors of tha Commiftise inclugs: llalsing with extsrna
suditerz, reviewing annua! financial stalemenia, reviewing
{he moequany of accaunting, resoring and other fnancia
managernean ayalem including numenoua fingneial gnd
QOWEINECE DOICIES

Lizg Scinlp garved gs Fresiding Member unil Febnuary
2020 wihan b tarm of appointmant expingd. Wi thank L ss
o har sarvice ower 8 numiar of yeare an e Tamnniies
Claudiz Goldemith cortinued ar an Indapendant Mamibar
of tre Cormrnities during tha reparting perod snd nas now
bBarn apportad as 1hs Prasicing Mamibear of the Commities
G Petar Cornish contnued in his role 28 Board Appoinleg
Membar, Tre Commiites held thres mestings during the
reporting period

Annual Business Plan

EHA develops an Annaal Busimess Hlan o egbaohsh
aralipgic direclions and msEzul e 0 asaess 18
patforrmanees, The cong schvibes s uncdelakan o oalive
i obipelives of the plsn 88 dielsiled in thie aporl

Structure and Statfing

EHA comprsss hrea funclional areas —emeronmanial
health, imrurisation and adminisyation, The adm instaten
tesrn, jed by the Chief Executive Officer, sugports the
sntivites of he emirormentsl heaith and immunizaton
fearns The Team Leader - Emdronmental Health and

Tzam Leadar - Adrminigirabon and Imrmareesiion Dhave
Joreiohibeg for aehieving he Annosl Bugiresa Plan
obscives relevan] o hain lunclional giea

Slaffir as et 20 June 2020 comprsed a lotal of 27
employess (1HFTE)

Financial Statements

Tra Auditad Finarcial Statsmants for the year ending

20 Jurs 2020 are proviced on page 34, Trey show an
cperating daficit of §13401 The budgsted operating result
was a 528,000 defieit. The reaull wes negatively moacied
by he sppleabion of AASHE Sanderd 16 Lesase by £35,970
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EHA provides a comprehensive, specialised, and convenient
Immunisation service by way of public immunisation clinics, school
Immunisation program and workplace immunisation programs to
the residents of our Constituent Councils.

As demonstrated in Figure 1, March through to June is the

penod of peak demand for immunization services due to the

timing of the Influenza and School Immunisation Programe.

Wiith the large media foocus and high demand for influenza
vaoeines oreated by the alarming nature of COWID- 12

the demand for immunization at EHA publio clinics was
estremely high during Mareh to June. As a result, olinios
were booked out for several months in advance.

To enczure the safest possible environment forourclients
and to effectively manage COWID- 19 restrictiong, all public
clinicz were moved to EHA's offices at 5t Peterson an
appointment onby basis.

SME and email messages were zent out to all olients with
prebooked appointments regarding venue changes and
epecial instructions prior to attending their appointments.
Information on safe pracstices and physical distancing

procedures were also distribited o olients before
attendarce.

The immunisation pagez of our webste have been
continually modified to reflect the evolving changes to our
zervice delivery and relevant COVID-19 requirements and
have been popular with clients.

The online booking gyetem on the website continues to be
well utiliced with 1,505 confirmed bookings online.

There was a strongfoous on improving the customer
experienee of our online appointment syetem. Mew email
confirmations and reminders prior to appointments are now
being gent, together with the abilty for clients to cancel their
own appointments.

Degpite the extremely high demand, the change to
appointment-based clines only (as cpposed to providing a
number of drop-in eliniog) has impacted the total number of
clients that were able to be cerviced.

A total of 4 4675 olients were provided with 8 812
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Annual Repart 701K Immunisation

=
1
[ =
- e e
vaccinations, a decrease of 838 clients [15%) in commenced in July and October 2018, These wera the
comparnison 1o 2018 (Figure 2), The long term trand single dose Meningococcal ACWY vaccing and the two
however, s2es an increass when considesing a longer dose Maningooccal B vacsing. The catch-up pragrams
peraod, wers compiated in December 2018 and February 2020
respecively

The decrease was also influsnced by the complation
of the catch-up programs for two vaccines which

Figure 1 = The combined demand for all immunisation services over the last year

§ ¢ 8888

I | | | ] | ] I I I I I
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 19 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 20 Feb 20 Mar 20 Apr 20 May 20 Jun 20 13
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Figure 2 - Cllent attendance at public Immunisation clinics for the last 3 years
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Flgure 3 = The number of vaccines adminlsterad &t public clinics for the last 2 years.
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Annial Reporl =01000 Irveiis vt an

Table 1 = The number of clients per council area and their cholce of clinic venue

Whaera cilents attend (Slinic Vienue by 55

Wirare clients Number of cliels
come from
[Couned Aran) trom Counci Area

Durnside Campbelitown  NPSP Proapect  Walkerville  Unley
B s 111 17% 4% T 0¥ Fard T
Canpbaditown 1251 3 17 T 0¥ 2% Fa
PSP 1.3 A% % LR 0% 2% A
Proapect” Ay b 1% fiT 5% A% F2 Y
Wallowrville o b2 ¥ ISk 1% T L1
Unbgy™ i 5% 1% [ % k] AT
Drtfviee i 57 bk TAF 1% 2h 8%
Tatnl Numbsr of Chanty 483

TS ST CRYIEE Wi Snly ODETALONAl DELEEN Jatiary = Marer ZIED Gue 10 recevsisLmenL
Unlkey shinice ceased Decemrber 2012

Telle 1 ehoae which of e lve clinie v ocalion
frier resdciards trom cur Conslituant Councils shooss 10
bevaociratad at. It=Rould be noted that the numbeTa nave

pear impected oy the centralizaton of clinics 1o 50 Paler's
r Maneh 2020 Residerts will attena the sits thal bast auils

thair mesde which iz often not in their own courcil area 4 8 ?
Thig cerronaiaties he tanefl of ouwl councila® collective 3

appreach O mmureseton semacs provigicn
Clients Atended

school Immunisation — 2019 Program decrease

= 3 et :.lEEI.I
Duting 2019, EHA completed 12 Righ sshool immurisation
wgile o detiver the annual Sshoal Immunigatian -"'c-;r.ar‘f"ue
(BIPL Atow] of 14, TA7 vacoines were adminalared |0 Year
g 10and 11 gludents (Tadle 21

The amounl of vaceinos adminislered has inelzased by
B.24 P whan comprarad 1o the same pened n 2078 Thie
rareaan was dus o he sxpansion of the echool poogrm
m 2018 b include 2 Maringaceceal B ealch-un program
ko Yaar 17 stidants ogethel with e miraduction of

Maningoocoocs! Band ADWY for Year 10 students
SA Health cornples data inrelation o sludant 8 5 8 1 9
mmunizatiens sach year to maazure tha sucoezs of he

SIP program, EHA vaceing coverage 1S conlinue fo be Vaccines Administered
righer than the sizle everage r each vaocing delivarad

gl ¥ 8: EHA 89:35% (Slzle 55 B6%),
HPFY Y1 8 dose 7: EHA 39% [State 82, 76%),
HP Y8 dose 20 ERABZ 7% (Siaie 74 B1%)
Meaningococcel B ¥r 10 doge 1: EHA 30.46%
[State 72 38%)

Meningococcal B Y 10 doge 2: EHA T3.89%
[Sate 70170

Meningooooesl B Yr 11 dose 1) EHA TH 64%
{Stute 73, F6%)

Meringoeocesl BYr 11 dose 2 EHA T2 BER
{Slais B4.04%)

Maningacoscal ACWY: CHA 50.28%

(Slate 74 86%)
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A new SMS
reminder system
for school

absentees was
iIntroduced.

Table 2: School vaccinafions for calendar year to dale - January v December 2019

[phthama Tetnu=s

Counagl Human Papllovarmus SREy T
Bum=id= 1254 /ail
tampbdhown 530 474d
NPER v a7
Pro=p=ct 190 ar
‘Walkery il 180 2z}
Unk=y 227 193
Tatal 3,714 2037

A newy S reminder gy stom for school absentoas was
intredused. Additional reminders sert at the end of the
yeark program has prowven to provide a better rasponse
rate from parents werzus posting absentes slips. This has

Meningacacca | B
2213
143
1473
pefzi]
2aa
432

54874

cortributed to the ongoing succase of BHA 2 SIP pogram,
evidanced by the results detailed abowve.

Figure 4 demonstrates how the S1P vacoine coverage rates
comparad o the State average in 2018,

Menngococca
| ey

an2
841
ddd
1az
g3
191

ana

Total

4,722

3408

3334

7d1

asd

1,304

14747
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ik | P it

fivyirinni=atian

RAgure 4 — EHAwaccine coverage rates compared with e SASte coverage rates across all vaccines administered.
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ATpa frd HW\":S LIniR ]
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Work place Immunisation Program

The 2020 Workplece Influenea Progrem which aggisis
businezs in protesting their etsff frons highly conlagious
respiratry illneseee caused by Influsnza A and B
eormrnancss in March 2020, rasulling in 4,238 vaosnes
peing provioed across B8 worksites,

Throughout the chatlanging ime that resuizd trom he
ZOVID-12 pandemiz EHA worked extremaly hard with
burinegses to anaurg all echaculed visits could procesd
whaie posslbs. Successhll booklirgs were 280 condugisg
pnegite gl EHA offiges al S Pelers snd & gingle ori-gile dive
through.chme was highhy suecesaful for a cllent & ersure
i origingl boaking epuld te fwnoured

Wilh COVID-13 providing a chillengimg emaronimes il ko
workplaces o anable visits, EHA dis axperiarne sevaml
cancellations dus 1o companies operatng with staff working
from Roma Thess challznges rasulling (5 a minor dacrease
6% ) o workplaces visiled and vacoinas administered in
Hj# gompaned o fheaame cariod in 20189,

EHA atatt ara raviewing promatordl eppatiunities for ihe
program prior o the upcoming fiu seasen with considaration
ot COVID- 19 whan planning for aliernaiis cptions in
eorducting future workplase vigits

Upgrades continue to be made o olr unigue onfine
workslace booking system which coninuss to be 2 success
wilh workplaces Dooring Our senvices

98 107

Workplace visits Workplace visits

4,238

Vaccines
administered

4,442

Vaccines
ol Estered

Despite

COVID-19
proving a
challenging
environment,
EHA worked
extremely hard
with businesses
to ensure all
scheduled visits
could proceed
where possible.
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z0  Sulteof enforgeable Direchions

Public and

Environmental Health

Environmental health is the branch of public health that focuses
on the interrelationships between people and their environment,
promotes human heaith and well- bemg and fosters healthy and

SEIfE com I'T’iLH'IItIEE webhsite NEHA Eravrmnme

The SA Public Heaith Act 2077 and Heguiations are
mechanisms employed by EHA o fulfil is duty of care on
behalf of the Constituent Councils with the foilowing public
health ssues: prevenbon and management of domeshc
grualer and hosrdng, surveilance of swimming pools and
spa poots; high risk manufachured water systems (cooling
owers and warm water sysiems), assesament of personal
care and bady art premises; approval and inspecton

of waste contral systems and prevention and conbrol of
notifable diseazes.

Thia year Ervironmental Heallh Officers’ responsibilities
unger the SA4 Publc Health Act 201 Thas extended to
encompass dubies o assst wilh controling o the COVID-19
pandenic spread withn South Australia On 22 March 2020
the State Coordinator, Commissioner Grant Stevens made
a-Declaration of 8 Major Emergency under the Emergency
Management Act 2004 The State restnstions based on the
Frime Mingters® recommendations wera enacted through a

Whilst vacecines and therapeutics are not avadable, EHOs'
role to monior, educale and where reguired enforce the
requyed physcal distancing measures and resinctions

to stop indandual chams of bansmeson has played a
valuable role n preventng fur her cutbreass and in imding
further spread of COVID-18

Complaints and Referrals

We receved 213 public health related complaints feferals
from the public o Stale Government agencies during
2012-20. Thiswas a significant increase {+23%) compared
to the previous year

Figure 5 shows the category of compiant issue ypes by
proportion required to admnister the 54 Pubic Health Act
during 2019-20 Az shawn in Figure 5 veclor contral relating
torodents, pigeons and mesquitoes {33) and sanitaton
[38) accounied for a large proparhon of publs heallh
complanis
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Anmeil Ropon 201020 Public and Envirenrrenkal Hesh

|[EHA] played an active
role in protecting the

health and wellbeing
of individuals and the
community from the
spread of COVID-19
through surveillance,
education and support.

O the 24 March 2020 the Chief Public Health Officer Flgure 5- Category of complaint issue types by proportion
communcated the mtent to lmit the spread (flatten the required to administer the 54 Publie Health Act 2011
eurve) of COVID-19 through physical distaneing and during 2019-20.
prehibitng non-essential mass gatherings mposed by

the Federal Government and State Police Commissiones

The 84 Public Haalth Act 2011 (he Act) recognses the
functions ol seunsils (. 37) n protecting and promoting
public health and preventing public heaith risks. EHOs are
Autherised Othcers under the Aot and played an active
role in protectng the health and wellbeng of mdmduals
and the community fram the spread of COVID-12 hrough
surveillance, educaton and support

Officers were proachve in educabing busnesszes and
shopping centres in the lead upto significant public events
(& Easter, Mothers Day) in ensure the reguirements wede
adeguately managed

We were required torapidy change and quickly adapt
to Ut new roles and respongibiiilies. Authonzed Olficers
undertook a otal of 277 social dislancing observation
mapeciions which we estmale io cover more han

1,000 premises

A 1otal of 28 physical dstancng complanis wens recenved
and imveshigated (Figure 5). These complainis accounted
for 123% of the total somplaimis received for the year. This
a considerable praportion of complaints recenved withina
condensed timeframe.

\ockor Cortel . 92 B mioem W Dechuege - B
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Table 3 - & three year comparison of the type of public
health complalnts received.

2017-18 2018-19 2018-20

Animil Keeping 3 4 8
Motifiable Disassa 12 13 12
Sanltation 28 41 38
Vector Control 108 73 93
Wasla Control 2 0 i}
Alr Quality o g )
Water Quality (+] 5 5
Hazardous g B g
Subhstances

Cther 13 0 )
Total 185 150 185

Hearding and squaicr comelainla made up 48% ol
saritation complain during 2319-20 (Tabke 3], Tha number
of aguslnr mestigations dec:eszed whan comparsd to 1he
orevidns year, with he sumber of hegrding Fvesligations
remening the same (Tabie 43 These maliereare ofien
complee and Soreslive an fegquing o HokRbe aporoash 1o
achigve the best auteomss, EHA & commitisd o faciitating
whiene posaible & multdieciplinary coordineing sporosch
with othar Gevernmman and non-Govarnmaent agencies. Ths
18 e armurs public Realth neke are acaresssd 0 addition 1o
tha irdividualie ) Iving in ingopropriate congiions recaiving
appropriate gupport

EHA adopts
where possible
an informal
(non-legislative)
approach when
addressing
matters relating
to hoarding and
squalor.
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Anniat Report 201000

Public and Emdroamental Health

Table 4 - Athree yoar comparison of the total number of
sanitation complaints and scvere domestic squalor and
hoarding complaints

2017-18 2018:18 2019-20
Total number 38 44 a9
of Sanhtatlon
Complaints
Sevens B 18 kb
Domestic
Squalor
Hoarding ] 8 8

EHA adopte where pozeible an informal {nor-hegiziative)
approash when addrezaing mathars relating o haaiging
ang souetor, Whare thera g nd senoug and imminerit

nigle, bo public health mdivdual{g) are encouraged o
sddreas condhtions perlaining Lo hoarding apnd acgualol
wifhir theur fving arvironmert. (f thasea oplong do not
achias compliancs of thans iz 8 eerious rigk o public
health, withaut lzgal drecticn enforcamant action & takan
urder the 34 Public Heatth Act 2011, During 2019-20 two
comestic aquaky matters wase determined to be a breach
al the General Duty unted the SA Publc Haslth Act 2010 1
Complance Molices wene 5180 istusd under Sechon 92 of
the A Pubfic Heslh Act- 2017 to both residenbial properties,

EHA coninpes o lsad the Saslem Hoarding and Sgquaior
Group [1he Groug ). The Group contnued inte its-eavenih
succeeafil yaar ana met four times This collabortive
forum far EHCe and réprasentatives from Govarmmeand

anad ren-Governman] agencies aliows for proactive
chiggussion-and informaiion shafng on hosrding and
soualor, a8 well as services and resouices aveilanis 1o help
Teanive 1ees lBeues

A lotal of rune hazsrdous wasle compiginis requited
mvegbigebon duning the year invohang the colisstion of
gytirges mnd he rpeshgabon ol asbealos and clandesting
oz lsbomiones. The incresse in 1he number of hezardous
wasle compiaints comparsd o he preavious yasr was
attrinutad 10 e raquest e collsction of uesd Secardes
syringes. The rvestigation of o separate Catsgory &
Clandeztira Drug Lanoralories reeultad in the esueofa
Compliance Nolice under Saclion 92[1) of the S84 Public
Hewith #0717,

The 8A Putalic Healife Act 2011 presenbes | izl of gegsss
thal are notisgbls. Noblication of iheae discases allows for
sunvhillanoe Bnd investination o be undariakan o erobact
Hra community fram (he nekaf mfactious dissase

Campyiobactar iz tha most cornmonly nobfied causes of
gasteesisils n Austalia’ Foodbormes lness saused by
Salmonalia has been signifcanty noreasing over the past
20 years and ras ore of tha Highaest rates when comparad
2 mirnilar Countiss. fAmmtas oot Sness Raosron Srmegy 20089001

Foxt Brgumionn Beoretew, 200

Table 5 = The number of reported notifiable diseases for
2018-20

Camgyiobacter a7
Seimomelia Ta
Legionelizsks 5
Cryptosporidlosts 5
Hepatitis A 1
Rolovirus 47

Sakponels ana Canpyfobiaciarsonlinue o ba e most
raquerty mponied food borma deassa within EAAR e
Corsfituent Councile [Table B) The raporing oariod saw
267 confirmed cases of Campylobastarand 13 conficmed
cages of Saimonalla (Table &)

E Hzalin reguestad an investigation 2t an ary lzaming
cerirs and primany school inslalon o conlimes casss of
Salmonelia allegediy ivoliing animal haiching program
The: invesligabng Oificer ansured hal approoridle infesfon
senlrol mesades were implemened and appropnale

and oducslions mstedal was provicaecd, Oulcormes of the
irepactons wars provided ta A Health

Monitoring and Surveillance Cooling
Towers and Warm Water Systems

A 1otal of 30 higherisk manufRciumEs walsr sy=1ame
[HREMWS) wara regiatered ab 16 sibes within EHA under the
E4 Puttlre Haalth (Legionala) Reguiatons 2013, All HRMWS
gyslems were apecied el a3l ence Ihioughoul the year
with & lols! of 30 reulng inspecions urderlswen at 12
Eofileg tonsnst snd felie walki wealir siysslern stion | Tabls §)
My Torlkows un imspesfione wors reguind

Watsr sarnpleas wers laker from 2l waren waler syetams and
coolirg dowers 2ites during rouing inspectons. Testing of
tha 2amoies resulted in two oelections of Legionslla a1 two
separate sMes.

Authorized Officars worked clogsly with the faciites that
reportad detsctions of Lagionsila to enaurs ths systema
wera shul down end Cecontaminabions ware prompliy
underigken as raquired by the Reguiations

Four Legronella dissase nold celons were recewved from
SA Heallh Guning he yesr, Thie reguired ievoslgalon,
No potantizl sourses wete idantited
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Table & - The number of registered high risk
manufactured water systems and the number of routine
end follow-up inspections undertaken and Leglonelia
high count test results

Humber of sites il 16 )
Total number HRMWS registerad .' a0
Humber of system Inspections | 3D
Number of folow-ups R
Motices issued to HAMWS a
Expiation Notices issued to HRMWS 0
Detections of Legionella 2
Investigation of Legionela disease 4
notifications from CDCE

Public Swimming Pools and Spas

Alotal of 71 rautine inspections al 27 awimtming pool

and spa atas was undertaken, winch was comparablets
s proveous year (Table £ Despile tw COVIDA12 Sisle
Directionz requiting the closurs of public posls and spag
for & mariag of e, all swimming, spa and hydrotherany
ponls were assezsad al less! once duning 1he year sgains!
the slandards creseribed In the SA Fublic Heallh (General)
Regulations 2013

There wag & 38% decrasss in ine number of follow up
repactions conducisd whan compared to the previoua year
tTablz 7). High combined ehiloring and free chiotine, pH
and. alalinity rod wathic: the required parsmelens ragquired
adchjonal inspechors 1o eneure complinnse wilh the
Ganeral Regulators

Table T — A three year comparison of the number ol
routine and follow-up Inspections conducted at epas,
ewimming and hydrolherapy pools.

2017-98  208-19  2019-10

Humber of Sites 28 28 j 27
Humber of Pools/Spas 44 43 5 42
Inspections of Poola/Spas 58 63 J |
Follow-ups of Poola/Spas 24 36 | 22
Voluntary Temporary & 5 l 4
Complaints . 2 1 1 J 1

Ihree silee clogad voluntanly o o recily

nigh comizired chloring levelz and one due te hign pH ana
alialinity. One gite was isausc with 3 Compliance Noboe
Jnder Eection 0 of the 24 Fubiic Haglth At 2017 as e

reEull of pacegquabe chloning lovels o cmplech (e poot,
radegualn rmoond keanicg, failurs i operabe the Nibtratian

ayaiem o the peol 8nd apa anc aceesziplity lo the public
The pool operalors were ingl uoled 1o choss e pool end
spa o the pubic and: underiake the recesasiy comechve
Kt

Persanal Care and Body Art (PCBA)

Aszezzmanis of high-riek pereonal cars snd body art
[PCEA} premizes involving high risk 2kin paretrztion
practices sush ag alooing, permanent maks-up,

et oder mabiasion, derrra-rofling ard plercing with
reuzabla neadies were undertaken cuning the year Traze
anivilies ware assessed aganst ne siEncards preserloed
Inthe SA Public Health [Genena!) Regulations; 2013,

Diurkng by 2013-20 wll 10 lalloo premises moling
high 1isk sk panebation pracice were gssessad. No
follosw-up Ingpoctinrs wans reouinsd

Six bieauly pramises underaking mgh sk tresimsn
pricanatos Ware saeassan. This was 20 bas inepeclicora
har the previous year The decraass in the number

of inspactong was rliuanced by the COVID-18 State
Cirectiors which resulted in 1he closura of & beauty
pramisas for a panoc of time

Cra complaint was received durnng the year imvohing
cleanlineze and inappropriaie fygisne practices during

2 microdermabrasion procedirs 2t a beauty pramises
Education and rscemmandstionsz on the eale and hygisnic
practice of skin panetration was provided snd ro further
Iollow U was required

Waste Control Systems

A sl s wilhin EHAS calchmanl i ool gonnechizd o
SA Waler Sewsr or a Comrmunity Wastawatar Managamant
Seharnag, feguiring he insislabon of &n approved ansite
WRRMAWRET BYR TR

Durng the year EHA sssersac e waztewatar apolcations
for waste water works approval and wo pencing
apolications carisd over from (he oreviols reporting perod
in gccorcance with the requirementa of the A Public
Haalth (Waztewsier) Reguletiora 2013,

Folicwing the gasegamenl of the applicelans and onsile
mapechion: asven applicebons ware graniad works
Epproval Cre applhicabon was relused approvil and s stil
perding furlher informaton

MNocomplam meeslipatiors wenn urderlsen Dutieg he
1epot ling period
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Food Safety

EHA administers the Food Act 2001 in conjunction with the Food
Safety Standards to protect the public from food-borne iliness and

associated risks.

llinesses caused by the sale or consumpion of unsale food
ara preventabe through education and interventon from
EHO= during regular inspections and audils, investigation
al complamts and wheoa régquired, enforcameant

Food Safety Inspections, Complaints,
Audits and Enforcement

As at 30 June 2020, a total of 1,174 known lood pramises
ware cparating within our jurisdiction, a small decrease
(7.5%) comparad to the previous year. This decreasaisa
result of temporary and permanant closures rasulting from
the CCVID-18 pandamic

Food businesses ara classilied on the basis of food

salaty nsk, using the Scuth Australian Food Business Risk
Classification (FBRC) proffing framework (1he Framework)
Thie FBRC allows for the monitonng and enforcemeant 10 be
alsgned with tha inharent foed salely risk of the business,
taking into account the business’ performance during
Inspacions,

The magonty of lood businesses are risk classified as

P1 (Figure 5. P4 lood businesses sedling shell stable
and pre-packaged lood are consicerad ‘low nsk’ and
are only mspecied il there has been a changa in activity
or a complaint has been recaived.

EHA's food salety practics s 1o conduct thorough
reuling inspactions and Tollow-up inspachions 1o ansura
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Anrmsal Rspory =70 °

non-campliances are rectiied and appropnate food Figure 7 — Type of food safety inspections undertaken
safely standards are maintained, Routine and follow-up during 2019-20

inspactions ar opporunites tor EHOS o provice advice
and inforrmatian and for businesses lo demonsirale
improved syslems of processes

During the year EHOs undertook a tosal of 1,310 food
salety inspectons (Figure 7)., As shown in Figure T alarge
proportion of inspactions undeftaken duning 2019-20
accounied for rouline food inspeations (633) and follow-up

inspoctions (463) 1,310 lood

sately mspeclions

Figure 6 — Number of food businesses per risk
classification

58H
. Routing - B33
. Folenw-up - 465
B

3
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Atolal of B33 acheduled roaling inspactions wate
uridarizken durng 251920, The deciagss in schaduled
fend ingpeciiors was & produel of lhe ircreasng publc
hieallt consers surrourchng SOVID-13 A sigmificsnt
rumeer of food busmessss closes and EHOz quickly
had fo sdap! to thalr new meles and primeary reepansibility
as Pryecal Catarcing Officars faliowing the msthictians
impeead by the Federal Governmant and Stats Police
Commisgionsr

Tra impacts of the pandammic and state restnations resuliza
in ether-the ooy of gamansnt closue and imibed or
silered noapitality aervices proviced by food bugineasas.
Despie theze changas THA identified that the continustion
ol acheduled irgpechions was imporlant 1o eneure feod
was prepared noa asfe and suilable manner. Following the
srnouncarrant an 24 Mareh 2020 from tha Slats Folice
Commisianar EHA mplamantog the tollowing changes o
1ha scheduled ingmactons

*ipod ineprcion assessman] forme woens charged o
reflect COVID-12 As most businesess wara not cparating
at {ull zapacity 1hars was a fosus on ‘tigh iex’ prionity
atzas during inspections, Le. hand washing, sanitising
and food proceszing

aFysical diﬂ'.ancirg rastrictions and requiremsanis ware
manitorad

To zzaist food Dusinesses krowlsdge and interpretation of
the ever-changing aiate physical diztancing requirementz
reqular sleclionie emaEle. website updaies, mondloning and
face o lace vails wee proviced

| Table 8 - The percentage number of follow up
Inapections conducted based on the number
of routine inspections

2019-20
Routine inspections B33
Total number of fallow-up 465
inspections
Number of businesses 305
requiring a Tollow-up
inspection
% of routine inspections 48%
inapection

A lotal of 485 holihw-up inspechors were conduslsn during
e ymar (Table 8] Az ehown in Tabla 8 48% of irepeclad
Dusinezsas recUires st lassl one Iollow-up inepection. This
& reflecive of the commitment k2 ensure non-compliances
ara rectifed within &n aopropnate Urmefrarme

I repeated nor-complinnee conlinues, ERA's enforcamenl
pabcy raquings a graduatsd and proportionats esponass o
e applied 16 aithar racicing of ey saricus fod satesy
breachas.

Flgure & camonatraiss the gracualed rezponzes ©
antorcement Legal acton may Se lg8ken (o repeal ofendars
Iyt foei b senlten wimings, Improvernent Notioss,
Fremabiten Drders, Expliatons or Prosecutons

EHA identified that the continuation of

scheduled inspections was important at
the height of the pandemic restrictions
to ensure food was prepared Iin a safe
and suitable manner.
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Figura B — Tha graduated regponss 1o enforcamant
underthe Food Act 2004

——— A rtinfion Ordars
‘— B Ciliw: Bepidod

#—— B I mtmennit
: Heibioin:

IT Litlorof \'uurl'rx_;

Food Salety

Thee magonty of food busnesses regquenng legel acbon

are P1 high risk businessss {Table 9). Enforcement

action ig however nol limited o high ek busnessoes wilth
Imgrowerment Malices also msued Lo moderate nsk P2 food
husinessas {Table 8)

Table 8 — Summary of enforcament action 1oken as par
risk ol awsification

P P2 P3
Warning Leller 16 1] 1
Improvement Nolioos 50 & ]
Offancas Expiated 5 u} 1]
Frohibition Crdars 3 a Q
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improvement Nalces continue b accaunt for the majority
of enforcement action taken, with a total of 85 Improvement
Motices Bsued to41 food businesses {Table 10). A iotal

of 13 businesses recened more han one iImprovement
Motice during the year with ong busness recening three
Improvement Notices

Table 10 - The percentage of Improvement Notices
issued based on the number of routine inspections

2018-20

Routine inspactions

Total number of Improvement Notices issued b5

Humber of businesses issued with 41
Improvemant Notices

Number of businesses issued with multiple 13
Improvemant Notices

% of mutine inspections resulting in the G558
tssue of an Improvement Notica

In 2018-20, five busnesses were expialed for fve ollences
commilied under the Food Act 2001 (Figure 8) Olences
nchided fallure o comply with an Improvemnent MNotice and
failre to clean and sanibice

Three Protubition Cirders were ssued (Figure ), fve less
than the previous year. The Prohibition Crders were ssued
{0 a bakery, restaurant and lakeaway iood busness for

sersis Afences relabng o signiicant buid-up o moukd in
a cool reom, extremiely poor standards of cleanliness and

unsafe faod processing practices and inadequate structural
suitability

EHA mspected B3 food gtalls (Figure 7) at nine magr
special events hiedd within the Consbiuent Coungils Several
major council events were cancelled durng the event
season due to COVID-19. Food handlers were assessed
on ther applaation of tood safety and hygiene practices
EHOe also considered the struchure and it out of each

stall to ensure food was stored, prepared and deplayed
appropriately and safely

Foad safely aining videas were developed and made
available on the EHA website for free public acoese. These
franing videds am 1o educate food handlers of the publs
n general on mproving food safety practices through clear
demonstrabons and statementsfinsiructions and symbols
The avadable wdeos focus on handwashing, sale storage
pracltces and lemperature measuring devices

During 2013-20 EHA fealred in the FEANA Food Safely
Culture Connections Aulumn Newsletter. The arhcle titled
‘Cullure changers: Celebrating food salely champions'
highlighted a food business that worked with our officess to
take steps to mprove ther food safety culture

The artiche hghlghted the mportance of the balance of

an EHO's guidancefeducation with reguiaiory responzes

1o encourage and athrm the mportanse of food salety, the
food busmess' will mprove and idenffy ndwduals polential
&z a food zafety champion
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Food Sutely

Safety training videos were
developed and made available
for free public access.

Audits

Food businesses seving faod 1 winerable populaliors,
nehading nogpiials; aged carg laciibies, chid care cenbres
and adalvarad maeal droanisaiione am captuad undar

Food Safety Siandard 331, This-Standard requirss food
cuginesass 10 comoly with Fooo Safety Standsrd 3.2 1, and
the implemeniation of 2 documehied and audied Food
Saleshy Friocgian

Despite tre deciaration of & mais: smargancy ralating

i COVID-3, 24 Health requirsd food safety auditons i
condusl he audity oreaite. Howsver, many aged ceare
faciifizs prevenied gooess IO thair facilites o proleei the
public: agfaty of thair rasidents. To enable thess Bailhes
i be auditad EHA arrangsd for recorce o be calivensd
H& offices and & virtual' azsessment of thesis D De
condieled Wilsl & nol Commmon prectice, tha scluthon
allowwed for e slabilony reduitermanls of lhe busingss o
ba fulfillea wiils: minirmie g the fsk i not only the
amplovess of EHA and the businsssss but moal imporantly
1o he aned iesidents

Az arawn in Table 11, & tolal of 73 screduled food salely
audile and fve Ioliow-up Budis wareg conduled within
ERA'e urisaiston durmeg the year, Thars was an increass

n the nurmiber of audits condustiad oulside of EHA'
juradietion when compared 10 the pravioua year. During

tre yeat EHA secuted en agreemenl io audil the lesd
safely pan &l 15 aged carg gitas scmoss Adalaica This
agraemer Siong with olhar new aifee with EFA's juradiction
coniripuied o 2n Incrasse In2usie comduchked during tha
regorling peEriod

Table 11 - Athree year comparison of the number
of audils and lollow-up audits conducted in our five
Constituent Counclls and other council areas

| EHA | Other |EHA | Other |EHA | Other
| Cauncli Ceouncl Councll
| Mreas Areas Areas

Ho. of &l ar B4 48 73 73
Audits

Mo.of | & 1 6 3 5 2
Follow-up

Complaints

Agshownin Tablz 12 ERA receved g oal of 117 food
12lated complamts, g 34% incresse when compared o the
Pravinus o yoant

Az deoicled in Table 12 themw was & significart increasza In
the number of comaoiainia relating o poor peraons! hiyglers
of poor Tocd Randbing oraclices; a sgmbcanl proporbicn ol
thess cormplaints (45%) wara recewved batwesan March and
June #0230 This may o altnbutsd 1o the incrzased subhic
swarensss of COVID-10 and Rcus on health and fygiene
rmece feadily available Hrough media and waelgilss duntg
Lhig lame

Table 12 - Total number of complainta received 2019-20,

Total number of
complal s necoeived

Type of Complaints

Received
2017-18 20916-18 2018-20

Feod unsullablefunsafe dueto 10 3 12
foreign matter
Food unsulablefunsofe dua to bl B 15

miGrobial contaminaton/growth

Food unsultable/unsafe cua 4] 3 1
to presence of unapproved or
excesshve chemical residues

Allaged food polsening = 14 i 12 ‘ 17
Uncigan premises 5 17 8

Poor parsonal hygiens or poor 21 13 3

food handling practices

Redentfinsects/pests observed L] 5 r

Ini p_rﬂ'nlsas

Refuse storage 2 | 10 i3
Labelling oues 1 2 4

Ciher 8 ¥ 3

Total 82 L: ] 111
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Health Care and Communily Services

Health Care and

Community Services

Supported Residential Facilities

EHA iz the beersing guthority for all Supportied Residential
Facllibes [8RFa) within the Conattuan Courcils. A total of
five faciiites &ie lcarssa, with two Pamson Only and 1es
retiramant Village /Dual Licensa Facilitise

Licensing, Monitoring and Complaints

ErIe condict unanniounced iauling audits and,
wiene reguired, lolow-up Inspeclions an2 cormplam]
vestigainns

Churing 207820 we conducied (ree unsmnounced mutme
augite and o follow up visits. COVID-13 irmpacied ths
auditing process schoduled for the feet half of 2020 Tha
COWD-19 Emargancy Respones Act 2020 prohibited
Authonzed Offcers from entering SRF2 and a2 a resull
audits oy EHA and wers rof conductad at 1he thres dual
liperced faciitas. Alematively, dosumeniaton audite wers
parformed for these Tacililez

Eoth cnatle stuctuz! audits-and documentation audiks
ware pondusted al Lhe two pergion only l2cHiles, The
tellonwr-up irsEpadinet for one persen-oniy Beihty was rol
abla fo be parformed dus o thie esinotons

The shijena assesssd o determing comphansa wilh the
Supporad Rezcenial Facitiss Act 1982, the Supportsd
Reggiceniial Facliles Regulations 2202 and the Succortea
Resigantial Faciities Guidelines ard Standards 2071,
inelugzd the folowing
cgsequacy of documeniation and sultabiity of service
plers

el of stallicg and approprale gualilcalions

Sridtribonil quaity and variety of the lood provded bo the
rEsicEns

sgolvency ol he Business
spublic lieblity msuranca
gnustura! condifion o] the premigas

firmncial maEnagaman!

sganeral amenity and cleanliness of the facility
ermedisalion managemsn

cprvacy, dignity and respect of resicents
savidance of an up 1o.date Vigitors' Book

M the sudils petformed, the mmaprity of nan-conformances
isantified relates o struciural mantenancs and
documantation managemant. A lrmitad namber of non-
cornformances ratated to stendards of care including
nulritior and mediceton managaman

Fire aalety inspections were akc impacted by COVID-19
Counedl Fire Salely Officers coula rol condui] oraits
rapecions Inesd, corespondence wans receved from
e Buildimg Foe Sahely Sornm ees from eseh Sounei

I indcate tral thare 2ra no oustand'ng bulsing fre

safaly mathars that would prvent thi loensing of thess
facilitizs, Buiding fire safely ingpecions are axpastad o be
conducied at all fasilites in tha 2020-27 financial year,

Two complains were received and invealgated cunng
the teponing vear. The numbers of compia ms received
was compasi's o the previows yesr Complainis relgiEa
b mecess o the laciliby ord resdents by an MOS8 semice
provider and the nutnticral veloe of loog served. Relevent
aclion was 1akan by the faciitios whiera requirad 1o reeobe
ther matters

Whers sudite wane not pariormac, reduced erm icenpes
wera Bauas for four of the faciites, As with othar years,
where ihere wore significani or pergisiant issuea igantilisd
during the auditing procsss, condiions wels IMposed

on the aeility's rext licesse. All 521 Hes wens givan thie
cordilion loomainiainall Tseenlizl Fie Salely Frovisions
Thres tacilitea ware maged hoences for e monihe wih

A cohchbor. Orie fEcilly wes issosd 8 locenss e hhas
maontha with congiiior=s. Ona fEoiily was issund s icerss
fial one yesr with congiticns

SRF Manager and Acting Manager

approvals

Ore acting ranager application was approved by EHA'z
Chiaf Exacitive Officer urdar delagated authotity

City of Prospect - Annual Report 2019/2020

Page 156



Appendices

The General Purpose
Financial Reports for the
year ended 30 June 2020

Canon sz
A ares marryey 0

200000

000080
0DOOMG
ooooUo

City of Prospect - Annual Report 2019/2020 Page 157



Appendices

Annual Report 2015520 General Purpose Financial Reporis

Eastern Health Authority
General Purpose Financial Reports
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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EASTERN
HEALTH
AUTHORITY

EASTERN HEALTH AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have been authorised by Eastern Health Authority (EHA) to certify the financial
statements in their final form. In our opinion:

¥ the accompanying financial statements comply with the Locol Government Act
1998, Local Government (Financial Manogement) Regulations 2011 and Australian
Accounting Standards.

¥ the financial statements present a true and fair view of EHA's financial position at
30 June 2020 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the financial year.

¥ internal controls implemented by the Council provide a reasonable assurance that
the Council’s financial records are complete, accurate and reliable and were
effective throughout the financial year.

¥ the financial statements accurately reflect the Council’s accounting and other
records,

Cr Peter Cornish

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRPERSON
EHA BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Date: 2 September 2020
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Eastern Health Authority

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019

Notes $ $
INCOME
Council contributions 2 1,803,571 1,723,013
Statutory charges 2 72,447 150,360
User charges 2 330,134 394,577
Grants, subsidies and contributions 2 245,618 257,814
Investment income 2 8,183 16,316
Cther income 2 4,031 15,841
Total Income 2,463,984 2,557,921
EXPENSES
Employee costs 3 1,636,215 1,767,577
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3 594,507 716,089
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 3 190,358 37,355
Finance costs 3 56,305 12,811
Total Expenses 2,477,385 2,533,812
OPERATING (DEFICIT) / SURPLUS (13,401) 24109
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Other Comprehensive Income - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (13,401) 24,109

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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Eastern Health Authority
Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2020

2020 2019
ASSETS Notes $ 5
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 721,310 743,272
Trade & other receivables 4 155,650 168,200
Total Current Assets 876,960 911,472
Non-current Assets
Infrastructure, property, plant & eqguipment 5 1,491,511 324,192
Total Non-current Assets 1,491,511 324192
Total Assets 2,368,471 1,235,664
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables 6 157,719 149,195
Borrowings 6 262,051 64,393
Provisions 6 307,885 322,578
Total Current Liabilities 727,655 536,166
Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings 5] 1,143,669 186,350
Provisions 5] 22,268 24,868
Total Non-current Liabilities 1,165,837 211,218
Total Liabilities 1,893,592 747,384
NET ASSETS 474,879 488,280
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 474,879 488,280
TOTAL EQUITY 474,879 488,280

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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Eastern Health Authority
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Acc'd TOTAL
Surplus EQUITY

2020 Notes $ $
Balance at end of previous reporting period 488,280 488,280
Net (Deficit) for Year (13,401) (13,401)
Balance at end of period 474,879 474,879

2019
Balance at end of previous reporting period 464,171 464 171
Net Surplus for Year 24109 24109
Balance at end of period 488,280 488,280

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

City of Prospect - Annual Report 2019/2020 Page 162



Appendices

Eastern Health Authority
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes $ $
Receipts:
Council contributions 1,983,928 1,895,314
Fees & other charges 72,447 157,878
User charges 373,345 372,381
Investment receipts 7,234 16,316
Grants utilised for operating purposes 245,618 257,814
Cther revenues 4,031 18,497
Payments:
Employee costs (1,645,676) (1,779,142)
Materials, contracts & other expenses (802,416) (974,102)
Finance payments (57,773) (14,213)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 7 (b) 180,738 (49,257)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments:
Expenditure on renewal/replacement of assets (24,677) (19,633)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (24,677) (19,633)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments:

Repayments of borrowings (67,488) (64,392)

Repayment of lease liabilities (110,535) -
Net Cash or used in Financing Activities (178,023) (64,392)
Net (Decrease) in cash held (21,962) (133,282)
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period i 743,272 876,554
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 7 721,310 743,272

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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Eastern Health Authority

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation
1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2071.

1.2 Historical Cost Convention

Except as stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention.

1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates, and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying
the Eastern Health Authority’s (EHA) accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
specifically referred to in the relevant sections of this Note.

1.4 Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar ($).
2  The Local Government Reporting Entity

Eastern Health Authority is incorporated under the SA Local Government Act 1999 and has its principal
place of business at 101 Payneham Road, St Peters, SA 5069. These financial statements include EHA's
direct operations and all entities through which EHA controls resources to carry on its functions. In the
process of reporting on EHA as a single unit, all transactions and balances between activity areas and
controlled entities have been eliminated.

3 Income recognition

EHA recognises revenue under AASB 1058 Inccme of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058) or AASB 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (AASB 15) when appropriate.

In cases where there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with ‘sufficiently specific’ performance
obligations, the transaction is accounted for under AASE 15 where income is recognised when (or as) the
performance obligations are satisfied (i.e. when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer).
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which EHA expects to be entitled in a contract with a
customer.

In other cases, AASB 1058 applies when a not-for-profit (NFP) entity enters into transactions where the
consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset principally to enable
the entity to further its objectives. The excess of the asset recognised (at fair value) over any ‘related
amounts’ is recognised as income immediately, except in the case where a financial asset has been
received to enable the authority to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset that is to be
contrelled by the authority. In this case, the authority recognises the excess as a liability that is recognised
over time in profit and loss when (or as) the entity satisfies its obligations under the transfer.

4  Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at EHA’s option with an insignificant
risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
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All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt
of which is considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statermnent of the
accounting pelicies applied to financial instruments also form part of Note 8.

5 Property, Plant & Equipment
5.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost
is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition.

5.2 Materiality

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are conly capitalised where the cost of acquisition
exceeds materiality thresholds established by EHA for each type of asset. In determining (and in annually
reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. Examples
of capitalisation thresholds applied during the year are given in Note 5.

5.3 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

All property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over their useful lives
on a straight-line basis which, in the opinion of EHA, best reflects the consumption of the service potential
embodied in those assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually.
5.4 Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are reviewed annually for
impairment. Assets carried at fair value whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to
generate cash flows, and where the future economic benefits would be replaced if EHA were deprived
thereof, are not assessed for impairment.

Other assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (which is the higher
of the present value of future cash oufflows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such
amount as stands to the credit of that class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being
recognised as an expense.

5.5 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs in relation to qualifying assets (net of offsetting investment revenue) have been capitalised
in accordance with AASB 123 “Borrowing Costs”. The amounts of borrowing costs recognised as an
expense or as part of the carrying amount of qualifying assets are disclosed in Note 3, and the amount (if
any) of interest revenue offset against borrowing costs in Note 2.

6 Payables
8.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as
liabilities when the goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month
of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts.

6.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts received from external parties in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against
possible damage to EHA assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage
reinstated, or the amount is refunded as the case may be.
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7 Borrowings

Loans are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows
associated with servicing the debt. Interest is accrued over the period to which it relates and is recorded as
part of “Payables”.

7.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitlements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid
or settled within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based on
costs) measured in accordance with AASB 119.

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based on costs) to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using
government guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms.

No accrual is made for sick leave as EHA experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each
reporting period is less than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this experience is expected to recur
in future reporting periods. EHA does not make payment for untaken sick leave.

Superannuation

EHA makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Government
Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently.
Neo changes in accounting policy have occurred during either the current or previous reporting periods.
Details of the accounting policies applied and EHA’s involvement with the schemes are reported in Note
1.

8 Leases
Accounting Policy applicable for the yvear ending 30 June 2019 (comparatives).

Lease arrangements have been accounted for in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB
1M7.

In respect of finance leases, where EHA substantially carries the entire risks incident to ownership, the
leased items are initially recognised as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The assets are disclosed within the appropriate asset class and are amortised
to expense over the period during which EHA is expected to benefit from the use of the leased assets.
Lease payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction of the lease liability, according to
the interest rate implicit in the lease.

In respect of operating leases, where the lessor substantially retains all of the risks and benefits incident to
ownership of the leased items, lease payments are charged to expense over the lease term.

Accounting policy applicable from 01 July 2019:

EHA assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

EHA as a lessee

EHA recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

EHA recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received and the estimate of costs to be incurred to restore the leased asset. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.
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The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (5.4)
Impairment of non-financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, EHA recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of

lease payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, EHA
uses its incremental borrowing rate or the interest rate implicit in the lease.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

EHA applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (i.e. those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date).

It also applies the low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of equipment that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

9 GST Implications
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax"
» Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

> Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude
GST receivable and payable.

» Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.
> Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.
10 New and amended standards and interpretations

Adoption of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit
Entities:

EHA applied AASB 15 and AASB 1058, for the first time from 1 July 2019. AASB 1058 clarifies and
simplifies the income recognition requirements that apply to not-for-profit (NFP) entities, in conjunction with
AASB 15. These Standards supersede the NFP income recognition requirements previously in AASB 1004
Contributions (with the exception of certain matters relating to public sector NFP entities) as well as current
revenue recognition guidance including AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations. The timing of income recognition depends on whether such a transaction gives rise
to a liability or other performance obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service). Details of the
accounting policy adopted for these standards can be found in section 10 of this note. EHA has elected to
adopt the modified retrospective method on transition o the new standards with an initial application date
of 1 July 2019. The cumulative effect of initially applying AASB 15 and AASB 1058 is recognised at the
date of initial application as an adjustment to the opening balance of Accumulated Surplus. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and continues to be reported under AASE 111, AASBE 118, AASB
1004 and related Interpretations.

The impact of adopting the new standards as at 1 July 2019 was an increase to liabilities of nil and a
decrease to Accumulated Surplus of nil.

Adoption of AASB 16 Leases (AASB 16)

EHA applied AASB 16 for the first time from 1 July 2019. AASB 16 supersedes AASB 117 Leases,
Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and other related Interpretations.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet under a single on-balance
sheet model. EHA has lease contracts for a building and some equipment. Before the adoption of AASB
16, EHA classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an
operating lease.
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EHA adopted AASE 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard has been applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of inilizlly applying the standard
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of Accumulated Surplus as at 1 July 2079 and
comparatives have not been restated

EHA recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified as operating
leases, except for short-term leases with l2ase terms that end within 12 months of the date of initial
application and leases of low-value assels. The nghl-of-use assets for all leases were recognised based
on the amount equal to the lease liabilities. No adjusiments were nesded for any previously recognised
prepaid or accrued lease expenses as there were none. Lease liabilties were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application

The efiect of adoplion AASE 16 as at 1 July 2019 (increase/{decrease)) is, as follows;

2020 2021 022 022 2024

s 5 5 s $
Income Satemeant
Inerest axpense i 485 " 42,788 " g5 " ag0m " 32063
Depreciaticn i 146,495 7 151,278 " 19277 " 1083 " 100,833
Lease expensa " {157,190y " {164,067 (A1 (1174757 {113,543)
Profit or Bss Impact i eI 2098 " 16,388 " 18,508 7 19,354
Balance Sheet
Right of usa assat " qeesss T 1035277 " 15833 " aig000 " 715,167
Lease kabiity T zzass)” (1,081,487 eesz2n”  (oe.2s1" (834,787
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 2 - INCOME

2020 2019
Notes $ 5
COUNCIL CONTRIBUTIONS
City of Burnside 437,022 444,498
Campbelltown City Council 426,994 403,854
City of Norwood, Payneham & St Peters 559,954 523,301
City of Prospect 230,650 237,123
Town of Walkerville 102,500 114,237
Public Health Plan/Service Review (equal constituent share) 46,451 -
1,803,571 1,723,013
STATUTORY CHARGES
Inspection Fees: Food 53,213 108,095
Inspection Fees. Legionella 8,603 9,795
SRF Licences 1,520 2,200
Fines & Expiation Fees 9,111 30,270
72,447 150,360
USER CHARGES
Immunisation: Clinic Vaccines 87,211 116,097
Immunisation: Worksite Vaccines 98,799 98 418
Food Auditing 84,428 79,5638
City of Unley 59,566 100,523
330,134 394,577
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on investments:
Local Government Finance Authority 8,183 16,316
8,183 16,316
OTHER INCOME
Motor Vehicle Reimbursements 1,627 10,597
Sundry Income 2,404 5,244
4,031 15,841
GRANTS, SUBSIDIES, CONTRIBUTIONS
Other grants, subsidies and contributions
Immunisation: School Programme 220,308 169,874
Meningoccal B Study - 59 644
Immunisation: AIR 25,310 28,296
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 3 - EXPENSE

2020 2019
Notes $ 3
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 1,453,727 1,521,123
Employee leave expense 9,091 38,321
Superannuation - defined contribution plan contributions 1 124,020 117,126
Superannuation - defined benefit plan contributions 11 12,212 24,653
Workers' Compensation Insurance 18,441 16,470
Other - Agency staff and Consultant Medical OCfficer 18,724 49 884
Total Operating Employee Costs 1,636,215 1,767,577
Total Number of Employees 15 18
(Full ime eguivalent at end of reporting period)

MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration

- Auditing the financial reports 7,494 7,210
Bad and Doubtful Debts 1,227 1,632
Governance expenses 11,144 15,946
Lease Expenses - short term leases 10 6,000 60,708
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 25,865 85,396
Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses
Accounting 5,473 5,971
Contractors 26,466 26,506
Energy 10,808 10,967
Fringe benefit tax 12,447 17,165
Human resources 18,983 11,742
Income protection 24177 22,430
Insurance 28,817 27,248
IT licencing & support 161,608 136,462
Legal Expenses 13,605 17,484
Motor vehicle expenses 14,250 26,293
Office rent - 104,829
Parts, accessories & consumables 181,373 130,593
Printing & stationery 15,088 17,557
Staff training 6,843 13,254
Sundry 21,889 33,703
Telephone 18,923 17,638
Work health & safety consultancy 7,892 10,831
Subtotal - Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses 568,642 630,673
Total Materials, Contracts & Expenses 594,507 716,069
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3 - EXPENSE (cont.)

DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION & IMPAIRMENT
Depreciation

Buildings & Other Structures

Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings

Right of Use Assets

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on Loans
Interest on Leases

Notes

10

10

2020 2019
$ S
23,642 23,642
20,271 13,713

146,445 .

190,358 37,355

9,650 12,811
46,655 :
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 4 - CURRENT ASSETS

CASH & EQUIVALENT ASSETS
Cash on Hand and at Bank
Deposits at Call

TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Accrued Revenues

Debtors - general

Total

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts

Amounts included in receivables that are not expected to be
received within 12 months of reporting date.

Notes

General Purpose Financial Reports

2020 2019
$ $
168,947 158,728
552,363 584,544
721,310 743,272
949 s
154,701 168,200
155,650 168,200
155,650 168,200
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 5 - PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (PP&E)

2018 2020
5 $
’ 1 P Carnying " ; 1 Carnying
Fair Value Cost Acc' Dep'n Amount Fair Value Cost Acc' Dep'n Amount
Buildings & Other Structures - 472,846 (188,328) 284,518 - 472,846 (211,970} 260,876
OficaEquipmant Furiure - 238,509 (199,835) 39,674 . 264,186 (220,106) 44,080
& Fittings
Right of Use Assets - - - - - 1,333,000 (146,445) 1,186,555
Total PP&E| - 712,355 (388,163) 324,192 - 2,070,032 (578,521) 1,491,511
Comparatives | - 809,838 (467,924) 341,914 - 712,355 (388,163) 324,192
2019 CARRYING AMOUNT MOVEMENTS DURING YEAR 2020
$ $ $
Carrying Met Adjust Additions Disposals Dep'n Impair't Carnying
Amount AASB 16 |New/Upgrade| Renewals
Buildings & Other Structures 284,518 - - - - (23.642) - 260,676
Office Equipment, Furniture 39 674 _ _ 24 §77 _ (20,271) - 44 080
& Fittings : ; k $
Right of Use Assets - 1,333,000 - - - (146,445) - 1,186,555
Total PPAE| 324,192 1,333,000 - 24,677 - (190,358) - 1,491,511
Comparatives 341,914 - - 19,633 - (37,355) - 324,192

This note continues on the foliowing pages.
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note & - LIABILITIES

TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES Notes

Goods & Services

Accrued expenses - employee entitlements
Accrued expenses - other

GST Payable

Amounts included in trade & other payables that are
not expected to be seftled within 12 months of
reporting date.

BORROWINGS
Loans
Leases Liabilities 10

2020 2019
$ $

Current Non-current Current cErcr)g;ﬂ
108,316 - 111,829 -
39,736 - 31,904 -
3,994 - 5,462 o
5,673 - - -
157,719 - 149,195 -
70,732 112,523 64,393 186,350
191,319 1,031,146 - -
262,051 1,143,669 64393 186,350

All interest bearing liabilities are secured over the future revenues of EHA.

PROVISIONS
Employee entitlements (including oncosts)

Amoaunts included in provisions that are not expected
to be settied within 12 months of reporting date.

307,885 22,268 322578 24,868
307,885 22,268 322578 24,868
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 7 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to insignificant risk of
changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the Cash Flow Statement is
reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

2020 2019
Notes $ $
Total cash & ecquivalent assets 4 721,310 743,272
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 721,310 743,272

{b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash from Operating Activities
Net (Deficit) Surplus (13,401) 24109
MNon-cash items in Income Staterment

Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 190,358 37,355
Net (decrease) in unpaid employee benefits (9,461) (11,560)
167,496 49,899

Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
Net decrease (increase) in receivables 12,550 (45,871)
Net increase (decrease) in trade & other payables 692 (53,285)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 180,738 (49,257)

(c) Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit:
Corporate Credit Cards 5,000 5,000
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Eastern Health Authority

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All financial instruments are categorised as foans and receivables.

Accounting Policies - Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short
Term Deposits

Accounting Policy: initially recognised atfair value and subsequently
measured atamortised cost, interest is recognised when earned

Terms & conditions: Deposits are returning fixed interest rates 0.45%
(2019: 1.25%).

Carrying amount: approximates fair value due to the short term to
maturity.

Receivables - Fees & other
charges

Accounting Policy: initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised
using the expected credit loss method

Terms & conditions: Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Although
EHA is not materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk
exposure is concentrated within the EHA's boundaries.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value (after deduction of any
allowance).

Receivables - other levels of
government

Accounting Policy: initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost. An impairment provision is recognised
using the expected credit loss method.

Terms & conditions: Amounts due have been calculated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the respective programs
following advice of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts are
due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal Governments.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in
the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to EHA.

Terms & conditions: Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Interest Bearing
Borrowings

Accounting mcy: initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost, interest is charged as an expense using the effective
interest rate

Terms & conditions: secured over future revenues, borrowings are
repayable (describe basis); interest is charged at fixed (or variable -
describe) rates between 4% and 5% (2019: 4% and 5%)

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Finance Leases

Accounting Policy: accounted for in accordance with AASB 16
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 8 - FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont.)

Liquidity Analysis
Total

2020 Due < 1 year DL{Je;ygayrzar D;:ﬂ?f Contractual %Eglrz‘ler;g
= Cash Flows
Financial Assets $ $ $ $ $
Cash & Equivalents 721,310 721,310 721,310
Receivables 155,650 - - 155,650 155,650
Total 876,960 - - 876,960 876,960
Financial Liabilities
Payables 157,719 - - 157,719 157,719
Current Borrowings 70,732 - - 70,732 70,732
Lease Liabilities 121,280 386,361 714,824 1,222,465 1,222,465
Non-Current Borrowings - 112,523 - 112,523 112,523
Total 349,731 498,884 714,824 1,563,439 1,563,439
2018 Due < 1year %27 19080 D25 ooy oG
- Cash Flows
Financial Assets % $ $ % $
Cash & Equivalents 743,272 743,272 743,272
Receivables 168,200 - - 168,200 168,200
Total 911,472 - - 911,472 911,472
Financial Liabilities
Payables 149,195 - - 149,195 149,195
Current Borrowings 64,393 - - 64,393 64 393
Non-Current Borrowings - 186,350 - 186,350 186,350
Total 213,588 186,350 - 399,938 399,938
The following interest rates were applicable to EHA's borrowings at balance date:
30 June 2020 30 June 2019
Aomge  Caming QU camyng
Interest Rate Interest Rate
Y% $ % $
Fixed Interest Rates 4.75 183,255 475 690,438
183,255 690,438
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont.)

Net Fair Value

All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised
market for the financial assets of EHA.

Risk Exposures:

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted.
The maximum credit risk on financial assets of EHA is the carrying amount, net of any impairment. All
EHA investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the
SA Government. Except as detailed in Notes 4 in relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is
concentrated within EHA's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices. All of EHA's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any
market, and hence neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that EHA will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. In
accordance with the model Treasury Management Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a
range of maturity dates. EHA also has available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities
that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. EHA has a balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow
fluctuations are managed holistically in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk
averse manner.

55
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 9 - UNIFORM PRESENTATION OF FINANCES

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment activities of EHA prepared
on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term financial plans on

the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common 'core' of financial information, which enables
meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances

Income
Expenses
Operating Surplus / (Deficit)

Net Outlays on Existing Assets

Capital Expenditure on renewal and
replacement of Existing Assets

Add back Depreciation, Amortisation and
Impairment

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial
Year

2020
$
2,463,984

(2,477 385)

(13,401)

(24,877)

190,358

165,681

152,280

2019
$
2 557,921

(2,533,812)

24109

(19,633)

37,355

17,722

41,831
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 10 - OPERATING LEASES

EHA as a Lessee

Operating Lease Commitments

EHA leases various plant and equipment under finance leases expiring within 1 to 4 years. At expiry,
EHA may re-lease, or return or acquire the leased assets.

Some leases provide for the payment of contingent rentals depending on actual use of the equipment.
Contingent rental payments made are disclosed in Note 3.

Commitments under operating leases at the reporting date are as follows:

2020 2019
$ $

Not later than one year 191,219 64,188

Later than one year and not later than 5 years 42,919 73,861

Later than 5 years 988,227 -
Minimum lease payments 1,222,465 138,049
Less: future finance charges - (45,644)
Net Lease Liability 1,222,465 92,405

Right of Use Aset
Office Buildings & Motor Vehicles

Set out below are the carrying amounts (written down value) of right of use assets recognised within
Property, Plant & Equipment

Carrying Value Building & Mt{lor
Structures Vehicles

At 1 July 2019 1,200,000 133,000
Depreciation Charge (96,000) (50,445)
At 30 June 2020 1,104,000 82,555
Depreciation expense right of use asset 96,000 50,445
Interest expense on lease liabilities 42 000 4,655
Total amount recognised in profit and loss 144,000 55,100
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 11 — SUPERANNUATION

EHA makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide Super
(formerly Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of
which is funded differently. Permanent and contract employees of the South Australian Local Government
sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the
Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees (including casuals) have all contributions
allocated to the Accumulation section.

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis.
Employer contributions are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with
superannuation guarantee legislation (9.50% in 2018-19; 9.50% in 2019-20). No further liability accrues to
EHA as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net
assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the
member's contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. EHA
makes employer contributions to Salarylink as determined by the Fund's Trustee based on advice from
the appointed Actuary. The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2018-19) of "superannuation” salary.

In addition, EHA makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary time earnings for Salarylink members to
their Accumulation account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the
Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as
defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and
liabilities are pooled and are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another
employer within the local government sector and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to
allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 118.32(b), EHA
does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.

The maost recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of
Willie Towers Watson as at 30 June 2020. The Trustee has determined that the current funding
arrangements are adequate for the expected Salarylink liabilities. However, future financial and economic
circumstances may require changes to EHA’s contribution rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes

EHA also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the
“choice of fund” legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation
benefits accruing to the employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no
further liability attaches to EHA.
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Eastern Health Authority
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
Note 12— CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There are no contingencies, asset or liabilities not recognised in the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

Note 13 — EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

There are no events subseqguent to 30 June 2020 that need to be disclosed in the financial
statements.
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for the year ended 30 June 2020

MHote 14 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Key Management Personnel of EHA include the Chairperson, Board Members, CEC and certain
prescribed officers under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1989, In all, the Key Management

Personnel were paid the following total compensation:

2020 2019
5 5
Salaries, allowances & other short term benefits 182,847 182,054
TOTAL 182,847 182,054
Amounts received from Related Parties during the financial year:
2020 2019
3 3
City of Burmmside 437,022 444 498
Campbelitown City Council 426,904 403 854
City of Norwood, Payneham & 3t Peters 559,954 523,301
City of Prospect 230,650 237123
Town of Walkerville 102,500 114,237
Public Health Plan/Sendce Review (equal condlituent share) 46,451 -
TOTAL| 1,803,571 1,723,013
Amounts paid to Related Parties during the financial year:
2020 2019
5 5
City of Morwood, Payneham & St Peters 106,978 104,829
TOTAL 106,978 104,829

Description of Services provided to all related parties above:

Assist the Constituent Councils to meet their legislative responsibilities in accordance with the SA
Public Health Act 2011, the Food Act 2001 {SA), the Supported Residential Facilties Act 1992 (SA),
the Expiation of Offences Act 1996 (SA), (or any successor legislation to these Acts) and any other
legislation regulating similar matters that the Constituent Coundils determing is appropriate within the
purpases of EHA; Take action to preserve, protect and promate public and emnvironmental health
within the area of the Constituent Councils.
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CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the awdit of Eastern
Health Authority for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Auditor, Bentleys SA Audit Parinership, has
maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of the Local Govermnment Act
15998 and the Local Government (Financial Managemen() Reguwations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local
Govermment (Financial Management) Reguwations 2011

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDING MEMBER
AUDIT COMMITTEE

L1
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Certification of Auditor Independence

BB Bl Doy 8. O, 6y

benitisys com

I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of Eastarn Health Authority Inc for the
year ended 30 June 2020, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the
requirements of APES 110 - Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 280,
published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with
the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government [Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 made under that Acl.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Government (Finarcial Management) Regulations 2011.

buily

Bentleys SA Audit Partnership

David Francis
Pariner

sl
Dated at Adelaide this 1 - September 2020
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EASTERN
HEALTH
AUTHORITY

EASTERN HEALTH AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDEMNCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit
of Eastern Health Authority for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Auditor, Bentleys
SA Audit Partnership, has maintained its independence in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 19399 and the Local Government (Financial
Management] Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3)
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011,

Chris Cowley
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFF
CITY OF BURNS

Date: 7{ 220
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EASTERN HEALTH AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit
of Eastern Health Authority for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Auditor, Bentleys
SA Audit Partnership, has maintained its independence in accordance with the
requirements of the Locol Government Act 1999 and the Locol Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3)
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011,

Paul Di lulio
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Campbelltown City Council

Date: = 'q' 9}020
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EASTERN
HEALTH
AUTHORITY

EASTERN HEALTH AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit
of Eastern Health Authority for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Auditor, Bentleys
5A Audit Partnership, has maintained its independence in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3)
Local Government (Financiol Management) Requiations 2011,

Date: 5%, 24, 2e)f,
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EASTERN HEALTH AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit
of Eastern Health Authority for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Auditor, Bentleys
SA Audit Partnership, has maintained its independence in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3)
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011,
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EASTERN
HEALTH
AUTHORITY

EASTERN HEALTH AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit
of Eastern Health Authority for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Auditor, Bentleys
SA Audit Partnership, has maintained its inde pendence in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3)
Local Government (Financiol Management) Regulations 2011.

Kiki Cristol
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Town of Walkerville

Date: ,':2 gq;:ﬂ"pmw 2
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local councils working together to protect the health of the community
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East Waste ison a
transformational

path moving solely
from a reactive waste
collection logistics
business to a broader

resource manager
and active community

behaviour change
agent.
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY

CHAIRPERSON'S
REPORT

2019-2020

| am pleased to be able to contribute to, and commend, my first Annual Report for East

Waste. | was fortunate enough to be appointed Independent Chairperson of East Waste,
eommencing February 2020, My appeointment coincided with the onset of COVID-19 and
so my first few months as Chairperson have not been as | initially erwvisaged - they were

more dynamicl

Pwall Ealke Turther Lo this lates in my report, but
before | refer to some Righlightsof the 2019/2020
Financial Year, | would like to acknowledae and
exprass my thanks to some people. Firstly, Deould
like to thank East Waste's out-going Independent
Chalrparson, Mr Brian Cunningham: Brian sansed
as Chairperson for 5ix (6] consecutive years and in
that time cversaw and directed scrme significant
cutCoemes at East VWaste. Brian's leadearship
throughcout his tenure has seen East Waste in the
strong pasition it is today, as both a business and
industry leader.

O behalf of the East Waste Board, East Waste
staff and Member Councils, | thank Brian for his
contribution, and wish hirn well for the future. |
wiould also like 1o thank Mr Paul Di lulio, Deputy
Chair of the East Wasts Board for acting as

the Independent Chalrperson for a number of
menths prior to my appointment, wihereby he
oversaw a number of significant decisions and
outcormnes Paul isa very strong leader, whose on-
going committed contribution to the East Waste
Board has been evident over the years and has
continued In my time as Chairparson.

East Wasta has also seen some moverment
within the membership of its Audit and Risk
Management Committes After 3 succasshul

six [B) vears on the Committes, Mr Leigh Hall,
Indepencent Member has completed his tenure
| wauld like to thank br Hall for his contribution
to East Waste throughout his tenure. Rapladng
wr Hall. is Ms Sandra Di Blasic, whocommenoed
as indepandant Member on the Committes

in Pebruary 2020, Sandra is an experanced

ewscutive, who sits on a numbsr of Boards
and Commitbess as a Non-exscutive Cirector,
and East Waste is fortunate to have Sandra’s
contribution to the Committes,

Strategic Direction

East Waste has a sarmt a reputation asa leader
inwaste management and with an engaged
Board and Member Councils and it has a clear
direction to continue this momentum, A clear
mandate for East Waste s to drive value back to
the communities we serve, and we can do thisin
Mary ways

The waste industry finds itselfin a dynamic space
at the moment, with many unknowns continuing
o presant themeshves, This prasents a great
cpporturity for East Waste to outiine and deliver
a robust strategic direction, which identifies

dear chjecthveswith opportunities to enhance
achsocacy and foster growing partnerships

with like-minded crganisstions to establish
afficiencies and creals sustainable behavoural
change practices that ensure wasta minimisaton
targetsare met

East Waste's so0n W0 be releasad Strategic
Direction 2030 will cutline the objectives and
targets to attain our Strategic goals.

Partnerships

Insupport of these thoughts regarding East
‘Waste's Strategic intent, | am excitad to be able

1o report on a significant partnership agresment
that East Waste has entered into during the
20132020 Financial Year. East Waste has
partnered with tha Fight Food Waste Cooperative
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IRPERSON'S REPORT

Research Centre, Adelaide University and Green
Industries South Australia with the intention of
identifying behavioural change initiatives that
eliminatefood waste being disposed of to landfill.

Eas Waste'starget is100 peroant by weight)

of total food waste collected from residential
premises, to be collected separately and recycled
by 2030 The partnerships aim to nurture
behavioural changetrials, that are supported

by robus data, comprehensive bin audits and
technaology that is able to report on househaold
disposal habits and behaviours.

The elimination of food waste being disposed

of tothe general waste will not only hawve

major positive impacts on the environment i.e.
reduction in areenh ouse gas emissions, it will
also considerably reduce kerbside collection coss
for all households.

| laok forward to being akble to report onthe
progress of this project inthe near furure
Financial Performance

| am pleased to be able to reportthat Eas Waste
has deliveraed an operating surplus of FI9F,000

for the 2019/2020 Financial Year. In a year that
haskesn heavilyimpacted by COWMDI9, thisis

a pleasing resultto be abletoreport. As readsers
and stakeholders can appreciate, the waste
industry saw a significant increase in the volumes
of housshold waste, recyclablesand gresn
organics being collected in the menthsof March,
april and May 2020, which ultirmately sawEast
Waste's driviersworking significant hours oo mset
thisinaease.

Mot only did the drivers perform particularhy well
during thistime, it is a credit to East Waste's

Board, audit and Risk Management Comimittee
and Executive Staff for delivery of a healthy
operating surplus.

Thank you

I wiould like tothank the East Waste Board and
Audit and Risk Managerment Committes for their
strang leadership and decision-making during
iy earlytenure and the year of COWVDA9.

To East Whaste hMember Coundls thank you for
YouUr engagemant, support and leadershipin
working with East Wwaste to deliver its annual
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FPlan, cur new initiatives and service deliveny
model throughout a challenging year. | have
obsarved the strong relationships ea ch Marmlber
Coundcil haswith East Waste and look forward to
bk g with you,

ToEast Waste's General banager, bAr Rob
Gragory thank you for yvour leadership of East
wagethroughout a challenaing and tumultuous
time.

Your care and empathy towards your staff

has been evident and has been the ongoing
kevtoyour successin operating the business
througholut the Z019/2020 Financial Year,

You lead a great team that | had the pleasure

T 2019-2020

107" T
' fastivaste ﬁv'i-\m:,_

m

of wiorking directhywith during some very
challenging timeasin 31 of this year.

| commend the 20192020 East Waste Annual
Report toyou.

Fraser Bell
East Wasta Chair
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GENERAL MANAGER'S
REPORT

Like sveryone else in the world, East Waste has not been immune to impacts of COVID-19. As
an essential service, it was critical that East Waste responded quickly to the ever-changing
environment. | am extremely pleased to report that East Waste responded very early and

decisively to COVID-19 impacts.

With a focus on staff well-being, hygiene
practices, contingency planning and
cantinuation of senice deliveny, lam proud o be
abile to say that East Waste did, and continues
1o dio so, dellver W05 of sarvices to our Mermber
Councils and their residenis.

The ricnths of March, Apel and May saw
increases in residential disposal of waste,
recyclables and green organics, as most residents
ware working from home. In the month of Aol
East Waste saw an incraase of 35% in green
crganics tonnes collected and a15% increase in
recyciables tonnes collected, compared (o the
sarme tme last year. In addition, East YWaste saw
an increase in Hard Waste collections, as again,
mcst residants were working from home and
took the opportunity to undertake early spring
deaning

East Wasta rosa 1o the challerge, at the same
time adhering to and responding to the dadly
or weskly restriction and socizl-distancing
recuirements being imposad. This was only
possible with the commitment and fexibiliny
cf our fantastic staff.

All East Waste staff have worked together, shown
compassion, empatiy for each other and simply
ot the job done, would therelfore like Lo exprass
iy sincere thanks to the entire East Wasta t2am
and thair lRrmilies who continue to support them,

| provide the faliowing highlights toyou
Kerbside Bin Audit
in OctobarMovernber 2019, East Wasts

undertook the largest, most in-depth kerbside
Bin aucht ever undertaken in South australia,

Cwer 2000 keroside bins were randomiy selectad
across East Waste's seven (7] Mermber Council
areas, with 28 tonnes of material audited scross
all kerbside streams [general waste, regyclables
and green organics)

The audit tock a deep dive analysis of food waste
disposal, types of food being disposed of, and to
winich Bin.

The audit identified that more than 275 of the
genaral waste bin was food which ends up In
fandfill and causes greenhouse gas emissions
and is expensive for Councils and residents
Therefore, the glaring coportunity identfied (st
get this food recycled into the green organics bin,
where it can be wrned into valuable compost.
By doing this, East Waste Member Councils and
thedr residents could save up 1o $3M par annum
The audit also confirmed that contamination
within the yellow Bin continues tobe ata

high level Soft plastics textiles and gensral
washe remain the key contaminants that we

will continue to target through our education
progran.

These opportunities are and will be pursued in
Eact ‘Waste's Strategic directon and identified
profects

Increase in diversion from landfill rate

East Waste collectad more tonnes this financial
year than it did last financial year, and that
increzss can be atrributed to COVIDA2 wharaky
residents wers working from home, thus
genarating morewaste than usual anddue tca
farge increass in green organics tonmes collacted,
primarily dus o weather conditions and again,

2019-2020
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per year coukl be saved ¢ all locd

ard compotiable matenals wees placed
$2.?M i the groaen bin rathes thas

tha lan 88 bin

reesich

waorking from hiorme and undenak

rmore gardening than wsual,

Whilst the tornes oollected this finandal yaa
Fave increased, | arm pleased 1o mpcrt that the
averall diversion From landfill mte across East

Whaste's sanvica area, has incraased this firmnd:

vear to 56%, comparad with 54% last year This ks a

Qreat resLUt &5 i means that less onnes are going
b0 landfill and mom tonnes are baing recyled
This result can ba attributed to East Waste's
spsccessiul and on-going waste minimisation
aducation Toous and message delhany through
rrvalia

100% recycled

Thie rEcycling cormmcdity market continues 1o e
a challenging one, with the impacts of the China
Bans still Baing felt A tghter cormmodiny rmarkat
Fas resalted in reduced derrdand ard peioes
being recaived for recyclables Unfortunately,

of resources
were diverted
from landfll

62.1%

howaver...

irvsdrTe Australian states, Sorme oofbected
mecyclables have endad up in landfill dus to there

met being & market for the amount collected

arm pleased to mpart however that this has
not besn the case in South Australia, wheraby
all kerbside recyclables collected by East Waste
Fawva bean recydad through our Reaoncling
Disposal contractor, Morthern Adelaide Wasta
Managarnant Authonty (MAWMA]L who have
and continue 1o do a great job procassing all the

recyclables that they receie

Electric Vehicle

X firmrcial year, East Waste

Earliar Inthe 201572
purchased South Australia's first fully electric

collection vahicle To srsura & full commitment

of-going sustainakality and grean initiatives,
East Waste installed a reoftop sclar system at its
depot, which ansures the charging of the electric

wvabichs | 100% undartaken throwgh solar erercy,
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100% electric

The electricvehicle is being used to service
Eas Waste hMermber Coundil, City of Prospect,
predominantly dueto its location and layout,
wWirhilst there have been some challenges at
timesin the operation of thewvehicle, when in
operation and undertaking a full collection run,
itisa pleasuretorun and operate,

Achwocacy

Faor warying reasonsthrough the financial year,
Eas Waste hasssen itself gamering media
interes, particularly around audit outcomes,
electricvehicle operations, education initiatives
and recycling contamination messagqing.

Asakerbsid e collection operator that undertakes
collections for approximately 2086 of the Adelaide
matket, East Waste is seen as a thought leader
within theindustry. East Waste hasthis wear set

about toreach a wider audience and advocate
far its Mearmlbyer Councils, its stakeholdersand
the industry with respect to pogtive resolrce
recovery opportunities, and particularly
promoting initiatives that will lead to lesswaste
going o landfill,

In my capacity as General Manager, | have seen
areal increase in interest from the media, the
waste industry and all levels of government asto
what East Waste hasto offer, and Dwould like to
express mythanksto the East Waste Board and
Member Coundcils for their support in increasing
out footprint within the advecacy space.

Thanks
The 2019/2020 financial year hasbeen a

particularly challenging one, with bushfires
impacting East Waste's servics area inthe
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adelaide Hills and the impacts of COWVIDA9, Councils for their support, hard work, guidance
henvesnser, | arm wery proud to be ableto saythat and leadership over this pas year.

East Waste staff have responded exceptionally
weell to the challenges presented and have
continued to perform their roles at a high lewel,
sith no disruption to our services levels

East Waste enjoved another sucosssful wear, in
what has baen one of the most challendging years
| hawe experienced, soit is aedit to everyon e

This a real credit to all East Waste and theair
aupportive families Thank you all.

Firnally, | would liketo thank our previous
Chairman br Brian Cunningharm for his guidan ce
and support over my initial years at East Waste
and | am fortunate that this great support has
aontinued wath our aurrent Chair bAr Fraser

Bell. also tothe East Waste Board, Audit and

Rigk Management Committee and all Memlber

Rob Greagory
General Manager
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~ KERBSIDE TONNAGES

~ COLLECTED

Mamber Council

Adetaice Hills Councl

City of Burnsidle

Camphelitown City Council

City of Mitcham

City of Monvood, Payneham & 5t Peters
City of Prospect

Toram of Walkerville

CRTANICS

37642

TONMES

4043

4174

5,801

1787

4,265

6,975

7023

10,266

2045

1154

2019-2020

T542

7459

9521

N3

T

408

1358
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“ EAST WASTE
GOUERNANCE

East Waste s administered by a Board in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act, the East Waste Charter, and various other policies and codes.

The membearship of the Board comprises of eight the decisions made by the Board, and running
directors — one director appeinted by each of the the day-to-day oparations of East Wasts
mMember Councils, and one independent person Thee Board held ejght formal meetings over the
whio acts as Chalr. The Board appaoints a Ganeral 2018 = 2020 financial year. The table below details
Manager who isresponsitie for implementing Board Member attendance
BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS
Mr Brian Cunningham (Chair) “Term Expired 30003 209 o
Mr Fraser Bell [Chair} “appointed 10/02/2020 &5
Cr Linda Green [Adelaice Hills Council) &fa
Mr Simon Bradiey (City of Prospect) &8
CrGrant Piggott (City of Burnside] "Term expired 304122019 i3
Cr Jullan Carbone |City of Burnsida) “appointed 01002020 gfs
Mr Paul Di lulie {Carmpbelitoeen City Council) &8
Mayor Heather Holmes-Ross (City of Mitcham) Ta
Mr Marlo Barcne (City of Morwood, Peyneham & 5t Peters) &8
Cr Rob Ashby (Corporaticn of the Town of Walkerville) &fa

CEPUTY DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE

MrJohn MeArthur (adelalde Hills Courncil)

Cr Paul Huebl [City of Bumside)

CrStephen Fisher (City of Mitcham) *Resignation effective 20 January 2020

MrAndrian Wiguna [Carmpbelitormn City Souncilp

%33%5%

Cr Norm Coleman [Corporation of the Town of Walkanill=)
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Audit and Risk Management Committee legislative and probity requirermsnts as required

I accordan ce with the requiramentsof the by the Local Governmant Act 1999 and other

Local Government Ad 1955, East Wvasts has relevant legislation, standards and codes.

an established Audit and Risk Management The Audit Committes held five formal mestings

Committee [the Audit Committes]. over the 20019 - 2020 financial vear. The table

The principal objective of the Audit Committes below details Audit Committes Mamiber

isto ensurethat the East\Waste Board mesatsits attendance.
AUDIT & RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEMBER MEETINGS
r Paul D lulio (Acting Chair) ¥Term expired 2009209 2f2
Mr Fraser Bell [Chair] ®appointed 10022020 &3
Mr Mario Barone [City of Morwood, Payneharm & St Paters) 5/5
Cr Linda Green (Adelaid e Hills Council) *appointed 2817,/2019 2/3
Mr Tirm Muhlhausler (Independent Mermber) 5/5
Ms Sandra 0 Elasio (Independ ent Mermber) ®appointed 0002020 &3
CrGmnt Piggott [City of Burnside)] *Term expired I002,20019 22

The Audited Financial Staterments for the year ending 30 June 2020 are provided at page 200
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTENTS

Certification of Financial Statements

Principal Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statement of Financial Position
Staternent of Changes in Equity

Staterment of Cash Flows

Motes to, and forming part of, the Principal Financial Statements

Motel - Significant Accounting Policies
Mote? - Income
Moted - Expenses

Mote 4 - Asset Disposal
Motes - Current Assets
NMotes - Property, Plant & Equiprment

Mote7 - Liakilities

MNoteB - PReconciliation to Cash Flow Statement
Note2 - Financial Instruments

Mote 10 - Commitments for Expenditure

Natell - Leases

Metael2 - Events Occurring After Reporting Date

Nota13d - Disclosures of Related Party Transactions

Mermber Council Certification of Auditor Independence
Certification of Auditor Independence
Independent Auditor's Report

2019-2020

22
24
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EDIS-EGEO

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC

ANNUAL FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2020

CERTIRICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Wi have been authoried by Eastern Waste Management Authority inc. to certify the fmancial statomants in their final form, in

our ppinion:
the atompanying financial starements comgly with the Locod Governmand Act J5S%, Lol Go (Finaratial Mo |
Regularions 201 and Auutralian Azeownling Stomderds

the linancial sExtements present 3 trus amd Tair view of the Authenny's Bnancial pesnion at 30 Junae 2000 snd the revults of it
e rabines and cash flows lor the financial year,

- invtwenal controls imnpl d by the Authesity prosdde a ble arsurance that the Authority's financisl fecordi are
corrgeete, accurate and reliabie snd were effective throughout the fimancial year.

= e fimancial statements accorately reflect the Autharity's acooumting and other reconde.

=y
Rab Gregory Fraser Bell
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FINANCIAL STRTEMENTS 2013-2020

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Motes

INCOME
User charges

Investren L Incomee
Grants, subsidias and contributions
Oither

Total Income

EXPEMNSES

Employes costs

Materials, contracts & other sxpenses
Finarce costs

Depreciation & amortisation

Total Expenses

CPERATING SURPLUS

Asset disposal & fair value adjustrnents
MET SURPLUS

Cthar Comprehaensive Incomea

Total Other Comprehensive Income

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

This Statermeant & to bo ros] in conjunction with the attachod Motos.

L P P P

2019-2020

2020 2019
£000 000
16,756 15,440
a 2

. g

G77 ==n
17,454 16,194
5Aag) 5CE0
9120 8.3
751 7090
2069 1955
1733 16058
133 136
&0 32
183 Ba
123 j[=]
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EAETE.DN- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY

FINQNCIFIL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Motes
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5
Trade & ather recenaties 5
Total Current Assats
Moen-current Assets
Progoerty, Plant & Equipment G
Total Non-current Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilides
Trade & Other Payalbles 7
Presigions 7
Borrowings z
Total Current Liabilities
Mon-current Liabilities
Trade & Cther Payatdes a8
Borrowings 7
Prowigions =

Total Mon-current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Met Assets

EQUITY
Aocurnulated Surplus

Total Equity

This Staleament & o beraad in conjunction s h the ailachod Notes,

2019-2020

2020 2019
+'000 000
2322 1267
101 iy
3,341 2684
7652 G100
7652 G100
10,993 B,754
1,205 TN
597 540
1,029 1,987
3,731 3268
627 4702
77 78
6,298 4,780
10,029 8078
64 06
964 06
264 0R
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EAETE.DN- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY

FINQNCIFIL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Balance at start of period -1 July 2019

MNet Surplus for Year

Other Comprehensive Income
Contributad Equity
Distributions to Member Councils

Balance at end of period - 30 June 2020

Balance at start of period - 1 July 2018

Met Surplus for Year

Other Comprehensive Income
Contributed Equity
Distributions to Membar Councils

Balance at end of pericd - 30 June 2019

This Staleament & o beraad in conjunction s h the ailachod Notes,

2019-2020

Accumulated Total
Surplus Equity
$'000 £000
708 708

13 183

o5 65

964 964
473 473

18 3

€5 a5

TOE e
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY

FINANCIAL STRTEMENTS 2013-2020

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Motes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cperating recsipts

Irmeestrmant recsipts

Employes costs

Matenals, contracts & other expensss

Finanoe payrments
Met cash provided by operating activities a
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Sala of replaced assets &
Expenditure on renewalrepiacement of assets &

Met cash used In investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contribution by member councils
Procesds from Borrowings
Repayments of Barrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Met cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Met Increase (Decrease) In cash held
Cash & cash equivalents at baginning of paricd 5

Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 5

This Statermeant & to bo ros] in conjunction with the attachod Motos.

2019-2020

2020 209
§'000 £000
17136 16572
13 32
[5795) {5.555)
(8877 {8,260
(2an {300
2,389 2,480
g1 35
(2.297) 897
{2216) (1,852
85 =53
217 1,814
1.834) {1,906)
(Z20) -
182 [N
355 581
1967 1376
2322 1967
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EAETE.DH WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 201S-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adcpted in the preparation of the financial report are sat out below
These palicies have besn corsistently applied to all the years presented, unlsss otherwiss stated

1 Basis of Preparation
11 Compliance with Austrolion equivalents to intermational Financial Reporting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Acoounting
Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Agcounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation

The financial report veas suthonsed for issue by cartificate under reguiation 14 of the Local Covemment
{Firancial Managemeant) Regulations 2001

The Authority = a Local Governrment Authority Section 43 Regional Subsdiary under the contrad of the
Adelaide Hills Council, City of Burmside, Campheiltown City Council, City of Mitcham, City of Nonwood,
Payneham & St Peters, City of Presgect and the Corporation of the Town of Walkerlke. The saven
Member Councils have an equity share and the Board comprises a Dirsctor from sach Councill and an
Inclependent Chair appaintad by the ab=alute majority of the Member Coundils

1.2 Historical Cost Comvention

Except wheare stated below, these financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the
histarical cost corvention

1.3 Crtical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financizl statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards which
requires the use of cartain critical accounting estimates, and requires management 1o exerciss it
judgemeant in apphing the Authority’s accounting policiss

The areas invehing a higher degres of judgemeant or complesity, o areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial staternants are specifically referred 1o in tha relevant sectons
of this Note

14 Rounding

All armounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearast thousand dollars [$000)
far the first tirme this year.

2 The Lecal Government Reporting Entity

Eastern Waste Managerment Authority Inc. operates as a regional subsidiary and is incorporated under
the 54 Lecal Covernment Act 1993, Its prindpal place of busingss is a1 1 Temple Court Ottoway,

3 Income Recognition

The Authority recoghises revenue under AASE 1058 Income of Mot-for-Profit Entities [AASE 1058) or
Af5B15 Revenue from Contracts with Custormers (A58 15) when appropriate. In cases whera there s an
‘enforceable’ contract with a customer with 'sufficient specific’ performance obligations, the transaction
Is accountad for under AASE15 wheare Incorme s recognlsed when {or as] the performance obligations
are satisfied.
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

Bevenue is measured besed on the consideration 1o which the Autharity expects to be entitled ina
contract with a customer. Inother cases, AASE 1053 applies whan a not-for- profit (NFP) entity enters
irto a transaction where the consideration 1o acqguire the asset is significanthy less than the fair value of
the asset principally to enabie the entity to further its objectives

The excess of the asset recognised fat fair value) over any ‘relatad amounts’ is recognissd asincome
irmmediately, except In the case whers a financial asset that has been recelved 1o enable the Authority
o acquine of Construct a recognisable non-financial asset that is 1o be controlled by the Authority. In this
case the Authority recognises the excess a< 3 liability that is recognised cver time In profit and loss when
{or as) the Authaority sstisfies its obligaticns under the transfer,

& Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financlal Instruments

Cash Aszetsincluds all amounts readily comvertitle tocash on hand at the Authority's option with an
indgnificant risk of changes invalue witha maturity of three months o lessfrom the date of acquisition.

Recehvables are generally unsecured and do not baar interest All recedvables are revisaed as at the
reporting date and adequate allewance made for amounts the receipt ofwhichis considered doubtiul

Al fimancial Instruments are recognisad at fairvalue at the date of recognition. A detalled statemant of
the accounting policies appliad ta financial instruments formes parc of Note 9.

5 Property, Plant & Equiprment
L1 Inithal Recognition

All assats are Initially recognised at cost, Costis determined as the fair value of the asssts ghen as
coneideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition.

All non-cument assets purchasad or constructed are capitalizad as the expanditure s incumead and
depreciated as soon as the asset is held “readhy for use”

52 Materiality

Assets with an economic (ife in excess of one year are only capitalised whers the cost of acquisition
exceeds materiality thresholds established by the Authority for each type of asset. Indetermining (and in
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated serace life.
53 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment assels are systematically depreciated over their uszful lives ina manner
which reflects the consumption of the senvice patential emibodied in those assets

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis. Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are
showm below. Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have been estimated based on the bost
information available to the Authority, but appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of these
assets are not avallable, and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial informaticn based on
these astimales
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EAETE.DH WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 201S-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives Capitalisation Threshold
Plan, Machinery & Equipment 310 Years =E1L000

Buildings & Other Structures 5-20 Years =51L000
Right-of-Lse-assets Over period of expected lease nva

Depreciation methods, useful livesand residual values of classes of assets are revievwsed annually.
B4 impairmmant

Assets that are subject to depreciation ars réviewed for impairment whenewer events or changesin
ciroumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not Be recovseratie.

An impairment boss is recognised for the amcount by which the asset's camying amount exceeds its
recoverable amaount (which is the higher of the present value of future cash cutfiows o valus inusal

For assetswhoss future economic benafits are not dependant on the ability to generate cash flows
arclwhere the future economic benefitswolld be replaced If the Authority were deprived thereof, the
value in usa is the depreciated replacement cost. In assessing impaimient for thess assats a2 rebuttable
assumption is made that the current replacement cost exceeds the ariginal cost of acquikition

& Payables
6.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due toexternal parties for the supply of goods and sandces and are recognisad as
liabilities wihen the goods and sendces are recelved, Creditors ars normally paid 30 days after the manth
of imcice. No Interast is pavable on these amiounts

7 Employee Benefits
71 Salkares, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabdlities for emnployees antitlerments to safarkes wages and compensatad absances expacted o be
paid or sattled within 12 months of reparting dats are acorued at nominal anounts (including payrol
based oncosts) measurad in accordance with AASB 112,

Liabilitizs for employes benefits not expectad tw be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as
the present value of the estimated future cash outfiows lincluding payroll based ancosts) to be made in
respect of services provided by emplovess up to the reparting date. Presant values are caloulated using
Qovernment guarantesd securities rates with similar maturity temns.

Mo acorual s mads for sick leave as the Authority’s experience indicates that, on averags, sick |save
taken In each reporting period is less than the entidernent acorulng in that pericd, and this experience
Is expected 1o recur in future reporting pericds, The authority doss not make pavrment for untaken sick
leave.

T2 Superonnuaticn

The Authority makes emnployer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide
Super (formerly Local Government Superannuation Schamaej.
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EAETE.DH WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 201S-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently. Permanent and
contract employesas of the South Australian Local Covernment sector with Salarvlink benefits pricr
1324 Movernber 2009 have the option W contribute 1o the Accumulation section andiar Salarylink
All other employees (including casualsh have all contributions allocatad to the Accumulation section.

Accumulation onfy Members

Accumulation only members recehe both emplover and employes contributionson a prograssive basis.
Employer contributions are based on a fived percentage of ardinary time eamings in accordance with
Superannuation Cuarantee Legislation (955 in 200120520, 95% in 20879, Mo further liability accnues to the
Authority as the supsrannuation bensfits sccruing to employses are representad by thair share of the
et assets of the Fund.

Satarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salardink Is a defined benefit scheme whare the benefit pavable is based on a formula determined by
the member's contribution rate, number of yvears and level of cantribution and final average salary. The
Authority makas amployer centributions as deterrmineed By the Fund's Trustee based on adhise for the
appointed Actuary. The rate is currenthy 8.3% (635 in 201819) of 'superannuation’ salary,

Im addition, the Authorty makss 3 separate contribution of 3% of ordinany time eamings for Salarylink
members wo thelr Accumulation account. Employess also make member contributions to the Salanyiink
saction of the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the Salandink section of the Fund to meet the
mrember's benafirs, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Salarylink saction ks 2 mult-emplover sponsored plan. As the Salandink section's assets and liabilities
are pooled and are not sllocated by each employer, and emplovess may transfer toanother emplcyer
within the local government sector and retaln meambership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate
benefit liabilites, assets and costs betwesn emiployers As provided by AASE 118.32(b), the Authority doss
notusa defined berefit accountng for these contributions.

The rost recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Loulss Campbell, Flag,

of Willle Towers YWatson as at 30 June 2022 The Trustee has determined that the current funding
arrangements are adecquate for the expectad Salanvink liabilites. However, future fimanclial and
economic circumstances may require changes to the Authority’s contribution rates at scme future time.

Contributions to. Cther Superannuation Schemes

The Authcrity slsomakes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees
undar the ‘choice of fund lagisiation. All such schemes are of the accurmulation type, where the
superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are representad by their share of the new assets of
the scheme, and no further liakility attaches to the Authority.

& Borrowlings

Borrowingsare initially recognised st fair valus, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference betwean the proceeds inet of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the pericd of the Borrowings using
the effective interast method,
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

Borrowings are carfied at their principal smounts which represent the présent value of future cash fiows
associated with sendcing the debt Interest ks 2corued over the period towhich itrelates and is recorded
as part of ‘Payables”.

9 G5TImplications
Inaccordance with UIC Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax™

Recehalbides and Creditors induds S5T recsivable and pavabls

Except In relaton to Input taxed activities, revenues and operating expendituras exciude G5T
recelvable and pavabls.

Hon-current assets and capital expenditures Include G5T nat of any récoupment.

Amounts induded inthe Statameant of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis,

10 Comparative Information

Comparative information has been rectassified to be consistent with the current year disclosure of
equivalent infarmation in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards

T Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The Board evaluates estimates and judgaments incorporated into the financial report basad on historical
knoandeciae and Best available current information. Estimates assum a reasonable expectation of
future events and based on cumrent trends ardd economic data, obtained both extermally and within

the Authority

12 Mew Accounting Standards

Asa result of the introduction of AASB 1S and AASE 1058 a5 from 1 July 2013, therewas no impact to
the historical accounting poficles of the Authority that required to be adjusted

The Authority hes applied AASE 16 for the first thime from 1 Juky 2008 2458 16 superseded AASB 7
Leases Interpratation 4 Determining whethar an armangement containsa Leass and other related
Interpretations. The standard sets oul the prinaples for the recognition, measurement, presentalions
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise mcst leases on the balance shest under a
single an-balance sheet model. The Authority has lease contracts for its building facility, Befors the
adoption of ALSE 16, the Authority classified each of its leases {as lessee) at the inception clate as elther
a finance laase or an operating kease,

The Authonty adopted AASE 16 using the modified retrospective method of sdoption. Under this
method, the standard has been applied retrospectively with the curnulative effect of initalky apphing
the standard recognised s an adjustmznt to the cpening ratance of Accumulated Surplus s atl July
2003 and comparatives have not been restated

The Authority recognised right-of-use assets and lease lialdlities for those leases previousty classified as
cperating leases, except for short-tarm leases with lease terms that end within 12 months of the date of
the date of initial application and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use-assets fior all lkases were
recognised basad on the amount equal to the lease liabilities
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

Mo adjustmeantswers nesded for any previously recognisad prepeid or acorued lease expenses as
there wers none. Lease [lzbilities were recognised basad on the present value of the remaining lease
pavrnents, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initlal application

The effect of adoption of AASE 16 as at 1 July 20019 (increasef{decrease)) is, as follows

$'000
Assats
Property, Plant & Equipment 1345
Total Assets 1,345
Liabilities
Borrowdngs 1345
Total Liabilities 1345
Accumulated Surplus nil

The followineg [= the impact an the profitand lossin the cument year a5 a rasult of the intreduction

cf AASBIE
£'000
Interest Expense = Leass Borrowings 14
Amcrtisation - right-of-use-assets st
Leass Expensss [255)
Net increase in Expenses Recognised in Profit & Loss 35

12 Highbury Landfill Authority Inc,

The Authority, originally known as the East Torrens Municipal Destructor Trust, was established on 19
July 1928 {the nama change took placs in 1993 As at 1 July 2004, the Authority comprised of 3 Memiber
Councils, being the City of Norwood, Payneham & St Peters, City of Burnside and the Corporation of the
Towen of Walkerville.

Cn 5 august 2004, the City of Morwveod, Payneham & 5t Petars, the City of Burmsids and the Corporation
of the Town of Walkenvlle established the Highbury Landfill Authority Inc. its purpoess included the
facilitation of the dosure and the post closure of the Highbury Landfill site, aswell s managing the
Foint interssts and lizbility of the Coundlsin relation to the closure of the site

Cn 3 Decemnbear 2004 the property known as the Highbury Landlill site was transferred from Easl Waste
to Highbury Landfill Authority Inc.

On 1 January 2005, the Authority’s Charter was amended to include the three new Member Councils -
the City of Mitcham, the City of Campbelitonn and the Adelzide Hilks Council
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EAETE.DH- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINQNCIQL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

On 1 January 2005 a loan was created between the Authority and the Highbury Landfill Authornity that
reprasentad the net value of assets in East Waste prior to 1 Januany 2005 Thiswas an At Call Loan and
interest had been capitalised until the loan was called in by the Highbury Landfill Authornty in November
2008 The loan amount was $872,000 and the Authority borrowed the meney from the MNational
Australia Bank with an Interest Only Loan. This lcan has now been re-financed through the Local
Govermment Finance Authority, t be repald in 10 years

The Board of the Authority rescheed in February 2010 wo charge Member Councils the loan repaytments
fior this koan in their equity percentages as set out in the January 2006 Charter
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY

FINANCIAL STRTEMENTS 2013-2020

2019-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 2 - INCOME

USER CHARGES

Waste Collection incoms

‘Waste Procesaing Income
Adrmindstration

tMember Council Waste Collection Rebate

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on ivvestmeants
Local Covernrmeant Finance Authority

OTHER INCOME
Bin Supply
Replacement Bins
Sundry

NOTE 3 - EXPENSES

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries and Wages

Employes [eave expenss
Superannuation

Wiages Casual Agsncy

‘Workers' Compensation Insurance
Other

Total Employee Costs

MNumber of FTE Employesas as at reporting date

Metes

2020 2013
£'000 S000
12155 768
&208 LA5E
25 76
127 a
18,756 15440
i 32

i 32
03 201
457 439
12 44
&7 &84
4,588 4434
55 75
341 365
LET 522
196 120
152 T
5,851 5580
£3 &5
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EAETE.DN- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY

FINQNCIFIL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

2019-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 3 - EXPENSES (Cont.)

MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES
Auditor's Bemuneration

Board Expenses

Leasa costs

Vaste Processing Costs
Elactricity

Fuel, Gas & Cil

GPS Expenses

Lagal Expenses

Mainterancs

Farts, Accessories & Consumaldes
Frinting, Staticnery & Postage
Professional Services

Registration & Irsurance - Trucks
Sundry

Telephone

FINAMCE COS5TS
Interest on Loans
Interest on Leasas

CEPRECIATICON & AMORTISATION
Buildings & Other Structures

Flant, Machinery & Equiprment
Right-ofuss aesets

o

2020 203
$'000 2000
ils] g

i3 25

z gl
4532 I473
27 25
1076 1150
& 17

34 88
2123 1,815
1 g

24 55
449 450
354 58
gty 370
41 42
8120 B
247 220
¥ A =
281 20
= B
1788 1951
Pt o =
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY

- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20138-2020

2019-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 4 - ASSET DISPOSAL

Proceads from disposal
Less: Carnving amount of assets sold

Gain (Loss) on disposal

NOTE 5 - CURRENT ASSETS

CASH & EQUIVALENT ASSETS
Cash on Hand and at Bank
Deposits at Call

TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Debtors - general
Accrued Incone

Metes

2020 2019
$'000 £000
8 38

b4 o3l
60 32
180 1548
1162 419
2322 1867
13 76
6 1
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EAETE.DN- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY

FINQNCIFIL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE & - PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

2020 2008
Motes £'000 000
Bulldings & Other Structures - At Cost B2 106
Accurmulated Depreciation (B2} {56}
80 50
Ftant, Machinery & Equipment - At Cost 16573 15,065
Accumulatad Depreciation (WO (98
6,483 BOED
Right-of-use-asssts 1345 -
Aecurmulated Depraciation (2555 -
1,089
Total Propeorty, Plant & Equipment 7,652 L2 (o]
2008 : . x . 20019
Movernent in Property, Flant & Equipment during the financial year
$000 4 ' i s t $'000
Corrying Additions Carrving
Value - Disposals | Depreciation | Transfer Vaile
Newy
Upgrode | Renewol
Buildings &
Caer
Structures 50 55 - - 25} - 80
Plant, Machinery
& Equiprment 6,050 2242 - (21 7248} B482
Right-of-use-assat - 1,345 - - [255) - 1089

2019-2020
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY

- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20138-2020

2019-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 7 - LIABILITIES

TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

Goods & Servicas
Accruad expanses - other

BORROWINGS

Loans
Lease Liabilities

PROVISIONS

Annual Leave
Long Service Leave

2020 2019

$'000 000

Current  Nenecurrent Current  Non-current
298 - 554
200 a7
1,205 - i |

1692 5334 1,287 &T02
227 8a7 5

1,929 6,221 1,987 4,702
204 236

293 77 204 T8
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EAETE.DH- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINQNCIQL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 8 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash Asgats comprise Righhy liguid Investrments with shart pariods to manunity subject to insignificant
risk of changes of value; Cash at tha end of the reporting pericd as shown in the Statement of Cash
Flows is recenciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2020 0ne

$'000 £000

Total cash & eguinvalent assats 2322 1,857
Less Short-temn bomowings - -
Balances per Cash Flow Statament 2323 1267

(a) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Surplus [Deficit) 123 =]

Mon-cash Items In Income Statement

Depreciation & amaortisation A0S 1954

Met increass (decrease) in unpaid emploves bensfits {=&! 25

Net increase (decrease) accrued interest charges (15} 33

{Gain) / Loss on Disposs! f6C) gy
2131 210

Add (Lessi: Changesin Net Current Assats

Met {increass) decrease in recsivables [Z257) £ ]
Met increase (decrease) in trade & other pavables A3 30}
Met increase {decrease) in other provisions nz

Met Cash provided by [er used in) operaticns 2389 24580

(b) Financing Arrangemeants

Corporate Cradit Cards 15 15
Cash Achance Debanturs Faclliny - LGRA 1,000 1000
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Accounting Pollcy: Initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
Short Term Deposits measurad al amorlisad cost
Terms & conditions; Deposits on Call 9o not have a maturity pericd
andcl have an average interest rates of 0 4% - 0.45% (2019 1.25% - 1.85%)
Carrylng amount approximates fair value due to the short term to

rraturity.
Receivables - ‘Wasts Accounting Policy: Initially recognised at fair valus and subsequently
Collection Fees & measurad at amortisad cost. Animpairment provision is recognoised
Asscoiated Charges using the expectad cradit loss method
Carrying amount approximates fair value (after deduction of any
allovwance).
Liabilities - Creditors and  Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid In
Accruals the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Authority

Terms & conditions: Liabilitiss are normally sattled on 30 day terms
Carrying amount approximates fair valus

Liabilities - Interast Accounting Policy: initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
bearing borrowings at amortised oost. Interest is charged as an expense using the effective
interest rate.
Terms & conditions: secured over future revenues and Member
Caouncits, borrowings are repayable on fixed interest terms. Rates
bebween 2555 - 5355 (2019 3.5% - 5.35%).

Liabilitles - Leaszes Accounting Pollcy: accourned for in accordance with AASB 16as
stated in Mote 1L

Met Falr Value
Al carrying valuss approdimate fair valus for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised
rmarket for the financial assers of the Authaority.

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk repressnts the loss that would be recognised if countenparties fail to perform as contractecd
Thee raxirnurn credlt risk on financlal assats of the Autharity s the camying amount, ret of ary provision
for doubtful debits. All investrments are made with the 34 Local Govermment Finance Authority and Banik
54 There is ro material exposure 1o any Individual debtor,

Market Risk s the risk that falr values of finarcial assets wdll fluctuate as a result of changes in market
prices. All of the Authority's financial assets are denominated in Australian doliars and are not treded on
ary rarket, and hance nalthar market risk nor currency risk 2pply.

Liguidity Risk [s the risk that the Authority Wil encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial
liakilities. In accordancs with the model Treasury Policy (LG4 Information Paper 15), llabilities have a
range of maturity dates based on cash Inflows. The Authaority also has avallable a range of bank overdraft
and short-term draw down facilities that it can access
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EAETE.DH- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY 2019-2020

FINQNCIFIL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 9 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont.)
Liquidity Analysis

2020 Maturity MNon-
<7 year = year > 5 yaars Interast Total
=S years Bearing
Fingncial Assets 2000 $000 £000 $000 $00C0
Cash & Equivalents 23202 2522
Recaivables - - - 1013 1913
Total 2322 - - 1,013 3335
Financial Liokilities
Payatles - - - 288 3498
Borrowings 1922 5,450 F26 - ans
Total 1,929 5460 T26 998 9113
2019 Maturity Mor-
=1 year > year =5 years Intarest Total
=5years Bearing
Financial Assets $000 000 2000 000 $000
Cash & Equivalents 1,967 - - - 1,.9:7
Receivables - - - & &
Tatal 1,967 - - T& 7653

Firmancial Liobilities

Pavaldes - - - 554 554
Borrowings 1,287 3390 1312 - Be88
Total 1987 3330 1312 554 T243
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTOAUTHORITY 2019-2020

- FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 20138-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

Expenditure Commitments

The Authority has expenditure commitrments relating to fleet replacernent totalling 523M as at

reporting date.

NOTET - LEASES

Authory as o lessee
Right-of-uss-assets
The Authority leases its administrative and depot fadilities at Cttoway.

Bulldings &

Other Structures
£°000
At1July 2018 1,345
Additions of right-of-uss-zesets -
Drepreciation Charge [2585)
At 30 Jurne 2020 1,089

Total
£'000

1,348

{255)
1,088

Set cut below are the camying amcounts of leass abllities and the movemeants durng the period:

2020

£'000
AtTJuly 2019 1345
Additicns
Accretion of intenest 34
Payments {255)
At 30 June 2020 1124
Current 237
Men-Current as7

NOTE 12 - EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE
Theare wera no events after Balance Date that are required 1o be disclosad,
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EAETE.DH- WASTE MANAGEMENTRAUTHORITY

2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 201S-2020

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 13 - DISCLOSURES OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Key Management Personned include the Chalr of the Board Chief Executive and other prescribed
officers asdafined under Section N2 of the Local Covemment AcU1299 . In all, & persons were paid the

fallowdng total compensation;

2020 2019
$'000 $000
Salaries, allowances & other short tarm benafits 476 457
TOTAL 476 467
Transactions with Related Parties:
The following transactions occurred with Pelated Parties.
Amounts Description
Sale of Coods CQutstanding from of Services
and Services Related Parties Provided to
Related Party Entlty {$000) (5'000) Related Parties
i Pronision of ke rbsids wase
Adelaicle Hills Council J'STD 2= e larct i v habdasastio
an g Pronvizion of kerbside weaste
City of Bumnside 2343 15 oollection and hardweste
A Pronargion of berbaide cate
C“'F of Mitcham A0 4 e lctian and hand aseste
; : ; Prorvision of kirbside warae
City of Noraood, Payneharm & St Patars 2709 Tieds eollectionarit Pk
ity e Priresaon of herbsidn derto
By R . 1a o4 ecllaction and harduwsste
Corporation of the Sity of Campbelitawn i 1 VoG Provsen ol ksl v
= i enllection and ardesece
Corparation of tha Town of Walkendlle 589 . Frevisn o bl

oollection and hardosaste

Amaunts recorded as outstanding from Relatsd Parties ars recordad in Trade and other recsivables
in Mote 5. The Related Parties disclosad above are equity owners of the authorty and are referred to
as Member Councils Member Councils have equal representation on the Board of the Authority and
accordingly hanve significant influence on the finandal and operating decisions of the Authority.
Nerorve Memnber Council individually has control of those policlies
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why waste it?

HARD RUBDBISH
MADE EASY
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTEAUTHORITY

2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EDIS-EGEO

MEMBER COUNCIL CERTIFICATION
OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2020
CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the bes of cur kearwiedpe and bolief, we confirm that, for the purpase of the audiy of the Eastern Waste Maragemsat
Mugthority Tor the year ended 30 Jene 2020, the Authority’s fusditcd, Beéntleys 54 Autit Peimerihin, hai masmained f1
indepandences in accordance with the requirements of the Locs! Governmend Act 1999 and the Local Government [Finamosal
Management) Begulations 2001 made under that At

22(3) Local (Fingmial

This satemnent b prepared In accondance with the reguiremnents of Begpulad

Management] Qegulatian 3011

Dute: 1 Saptemier 2010

Matthes Feany

Ty of WBDIFem

Date: J0R2020

ki Cranl
i Laiitivg Ofiper

fowm of Walkersile

o G/ G /220

Chis Cowlery
Thigd Eemguiieg
City of Remude
e 2 9/2/ 7020

Faal QD lda

el Dnagutie PR e
CarepleeBteram Lty Conanpd

(Dage: )
4

A
A

Pl Mg Dride
[l D naraten Dfficer
Cory of Peodpen

Dunee A0 M
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTEAUTHORITY A 1N FC 2019-2020

FINI‘-‘INCI!’-'IL STATEMENTS EUIS-EGED

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

Bentleys

Igridlorgn. A Rapil Prartnortn

3 S
i Bk I

GG Boo 00
Adeipae 58 B001

Certification of Auditor Independence

I confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of Eastern Waste Management
Authofity Inc for the year ended 30 June 2020, | have maintained my independenca in
accordance with the requirements of APES 110 - Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountanis, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1839 and the Local Government
({Financial Management) Regulaticnrs 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requinements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Gowernment [Financial Management) Reguiations 2011,

Bentleys SA Audit Partnership

David Papa
Partnar

Dated at Adelaide this 25" September 2020
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTEAUTHORITY Er] REFCGRET 2019-2020

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2018-2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

» Bentleys

G0 (B TOEH
Aduinaie 58 5001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE EASTERN WASTE
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY INC

Opinian

W have avdited the accompanying financial report of the Eastern Waste Management Autharity Inc,
which comprises e siatement of Gnancial postion 25 al 30 June 2020, the satement of
comprehensie income, statermant of changes in equity and statement of cash Nlows for the year then
ended, and noles to the financial sistements, including & summary of significant accounting polickes
and the Certification of the Financial Statements.

In pur opineon, the financial report gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Eastem
Waste Management Authority Inc as of 30 June 2020, and of s financial paripemance and s cash
fows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Loca/
Govermmant Act T899 and thie Loca Govaramaend (Financisl Management) Regulations 2071

Basis for Opinion

W conducled our audi in accordance with Ausiralian Auditing Standards, Ouwr responsibiities under
those standards are further described in the Audiors Responsibifities Tor the Audit of the Financial
Report section of ow repon. \We are independent of the antity in sccordance with the athical
reguirements of e Accountng Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accouniants (the Code) thal are relevant 1o our audit of the financial repod in
Australia. Wia have also fullilled gur other athical responsibdifies in accordance with the Code.

Wi belve that the audd evidenca we have obtained is sufficient and appropeiate to provide a basis
for our opinion,

Rozponsibilities of Managemant and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Report

Management is responsibée for the preparation of the financiad report, which gives a true and fair view
In pcoordance with Ausiraian Accounting Standards and the Loch Govermmid Acl 1999 and the
Local Government (Financial Managermenil] Reguatons 2017, and for such internal control as the
commities and management dabermines is necassary 10 enabie the preparation of & financial repon
Ehat givers & troe and faif view and i free from malenal messtalerment, wihelther due b fraud of eftar.

In prepanng the fnancial report, management is responsible for assessing the anlity's ability to
continue 85 @ going concem, daciosing, &5 apphcalble, matters relating 1o going concem and using
the goang concem basis of accounting wunless management either inends o hgudate the entity or to
caase oparakions, or has no realistic altemative but o do so.

Those charged with governance afe responsible for oversesng the entity's financial reportng
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EASTERN WASTE MANAGEMENTEAUTHORITY FCh 2019-2020

~FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EUIS-EGED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

% Bentleys

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectves aro to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
Frene From maberial misstoterment, whether due 10 frawd of ermor, and 1o et an auddor's repon that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assiwance & a high level of asswance, but is nol a guaraniee that
an aud conducted in accordance with the Australan Auddng Standards will always detect a material
misstalement when it exsts. Misstalements can anise fom frined o emor and are congidened matersal
if, individually of in tha sggregate, they could reasonably ba sxpecied 1o influencs the sconamic
dectsions of users laken on the basis of this Gnancial repon.

A Burihar description of our responsibdties for e audl of the financial repor is located at the Audaing
and Assurance Standards Board webs#ie at hitp'wew suash oov auMHome aspx. This description
femna part of our sudifor’s report.

BENTLEYS 5A AUDIT PARTNERSHIP

DAVID PAPA
PARTMER

Dated at Adelaide ths 30™ day of September 2020
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* The waste industry finds itself
in a disruptive space at the
moment, with many unknowns
continuing to present
themselves.

This presents a great
opportunity for East Waste _
to outline and deliver a robust

strategic direction, that
identifies clear objectives,
advocacy enhancement and
growing partnerships with
like-minded organisations to
efficiencies and sustainable
behavioural change practices |,
that ensure waste minimisation
targets are met. §§

Fraser Bell
East Waste Chair
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Waste

@ 1 Temple Court
Cittoway 54 50135

PO Box 285

Mansfield Park sd 5002
08 8247 51
easlfteastwastecon
EastWastaSh

CiEast Wasls

East Waste - Eastarn Waste

Management Authorty

4 FC&EBO

eastwaste.com.au
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For further information contact:
City of Prospect

128 Prospect Road
Prospect, South Australia 5082

Telephone 08 8269 5355

admin@prospect.sa.gov.au
www.prospect.sa.gov.au



